€E— AKM

AKM Industrial Comg
E XN EXZEBH

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited I|ab|I|ty undet

(RIBEA REBIER B2 BRA 7)
Stock Code A% 5% : 1639

_ Annual Report

2019




Annual Report 2019 —Z—hEFER

Contents

5 8

Corporate Information NAEAE# 2
Chairman’s Statement FRWMES 4
Directors and Senior Management of the Group rEEEERESRERE 8
Management Discussion and Analysis ERENREAN 16
Corporate Governance Report NEIEAmE 31
Environmental, Social and Governance Report RE -HERERABRE 42
Directors’ Report EEEgRE 54
Independent Auditor’s Report 18 3 % B RS 75
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and maEnkEMEmkaX 82

Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position e Bk R 83
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity HERmEHWME 85
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows FeRenEx 86
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements fRE B SRR I A 88

Financial Summary BB E 216




AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Corporate Information
AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive director
XIONG Zheng Feng (Chairman)

Non-executive directors
GAO Xiaoguang

JIA Junan

WANG Chunsheng
ZHANG Xiaoming

YU Daochun

Independent non-executive directors
HUNG Chi Yuen Andrew

CUI Zheng

YANG Zhaoguo

COMPANY SECRETARY
HUNG Ching Yuen

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
XIONG Zheng Feng
HUNG Ching Yuen

AUDIT COMMITTEE

HUNG Chi Yuen Andrew (Committee Chairman)
CUI Zheng

YANG Zhaoguo

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
YANG Zhaoguo (Committee Chairman)
CUI Zheng

ZHANG Xiaoming

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
XIONG Zheng Feng (Committee Chairman)
HUNG Chi Yuen Andrew

YANG Zhaoguo

E 4
BTES
FRIE U (/%)

FHITES
BEEX
TELE
o 5% B8

BAFHTES
HEER

EF

HBIKE

RNEME
HEFER

REAR
AR IE 18

BRZ
B (
B

&
=]
=84

W4

FIE)

FHEES
BKE (ZEFEF)
B

R

RBEZEE
RRIEE (ZEE2E %)
sji:l:‘ﬁ

Zaydv

HILE




Corporate Information

NEIE= >

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants
(resigned on 27 December 2019)

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
(appointed on 6 January 2020)

LEGAL ADVISOR
Tracy Ong & Co.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA
63 Huan Shi Road South

Information Technology Park

Nansha District

Guangzhou City

The People’s Republic of China

188 Lushan Road

Suzhou National New & Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone
Suzhou City

the People’s Republic of China

REGISTERED OFFICE

Rooms 2708-11, 27th Floor

West Tower, Shun Tak Centre
168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR &
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd.
Bank of China (Nansha Branch)
China Construction Bank
(Suzhou Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone Branch)
United Overseas Bank (Guangzhou Branch)

STOCK CODE
1639

COMPANY HOMEPAGE/WEBSITE

www.akmcompany.com

_...‘

"%W\

Annual Report 2019 —Z—hEFER

=R ED

=8 e WEMR AT

EVCEZES-4a1]
(RZZE—NF+ZAZ++LHEE)

S A (FEE)
EVCEZES-4a1]
(R=ZF=_FTFE A REZRT)

5 R
IRREMERHN

B E R R A
PE AR
M

MY E

EFBHRE

B K ERI635

GETENEBAAER QA

AR
g T

SE

2 LU 5 18855

HMRERE
5%

F &+ 168-2005%
EEP L E
27182708-11=

BERODBFETRE

EBRRELEEDZERA
BEET
ERKRER183%
AL
17481712-1716%

IE@EK&E?‘T
SRRTAERRA
R EERTT (@/)\% )
B R RTT

(B M =¥ & 1T)
RERT (BEMDTT)

B 1K 5%
1639

ACIEI=P i

WWW.akmcompany.com

R



AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF
Chairman’s Statement

TEHES

“Board”), |
would like to present the annual report of the Company and

For and on behalf of the board of Directors (the

its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

RESULT ANALYSIS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, the global electronic products market showed trend
of rapid development due to the advancement of 5G, electric
vehicles and semiconductor processes as well as maturity of
artificial intelligence technology. On the other hand, the supply
chain of electronic products was severely affected by the China-
United States trade war and the United State’s sanction on
Huawei. Against this backdrop, as one of the foundations of
the electronic industry, the circuit boards and components
business became more polarized, with the intensification
of price competition among low and medium-end products
and short supply of products with high complexity and high
technology levels. Under this changing trend of the industry,
in addition to focusing on the strategy of “developing major
customers” and providing “one-stop service” to customers,
the Group proactively enhanced its technical capabilities and
standard, explored new application fields, and strengthened
the integration of upstream and downstream resources through
acquisitions or co-operation, captured opportunities to achieve

better operating results.

The Group recorded turnover of approximately
HK$1,463,630,000 in the financial year of 2019, representing
an increase of approximately 19.60% as compared to that
of last year (2018: approximately HK$1,223,803,000). Profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$177,711,000,
69.77% as compared to that of last year (2018: approximately
HK$69,334,000). For the year ended 31 December 2019,
basic earnings per share was approximately HK7.66 cents,

representing an increase of approximately

representing an increase of approximately 67.25% as compared
to that of last year (2018: approximately HK4.58 cents). The
Group’s gearing ratio remained low. Taking into account of the
Company's profitability, shareholder returns and sustainable
development needs in the future, the Group has proposed the
payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent per share for 2019.
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Chairman’s Statement

ITEHES

In 2019, although the overall shipment volume of the
smartphone industry declined and direct orders from major
mobile phone customers decreased as affected by the
upcoming launch of 5G communication networks, by exploring
camera modules, wireless charging modules, etc. for acting
as smartphone manufacturers’ second-tier supplier, and by
expanding new application fields such as new energy car cells,
the overall sales of our circuit boards and components business
still increased by approximately 19.08% as compared to that
of last year. By increasing the proportion of products with
high complexity and high technology levels, and adjusting the
price bidding strategy for low-end products, the overall gross
profit margin of circuit boards and components business of
the Group increased from approximately 12.48% in 2018 to
approximately 14.22% in 2019.

The Group will continue to invest in research and development
and intelligent manufacturing to ensure the continuous
improvement in its capability to provide sustainable services
to customers. In 2019, the Group commenced small batch
production of flexible printed circuit products for 5G
application with high frequency and high speed requirements
after samples testing was passed; sample production of busbar
module products for application in new energy car cells was
passed; wireless charging modules products passed the review
by major smartphone end customers and mass production
was commenced; and favourable results were achieved in
modification of smart factories which effectively reduced the
number of operators.
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Chairman’s Statement

TEHES

PROSPECTS

Although the global electronic products market is showing
trend of rapid development, competition in the electronic
product market is becoming increasingly fierce, technological
innovation and intelligent manufacturing have gradually
become the mainstream of the industry. At the same time, the
novel coronavirus pandemic and the unstable China-United
States relations has also brought relatively high uncertainties
to the market. The Group remains cautious about the future
and will pay close attention to the changes in the economy,
industry and major customers to evaluate its risk exposures and
the impacts on orders and supply chain. Meanwhile, the Group
will enhance its internal capacity, so that, (i) by adhering to the
strategy of “developing major customers” to strengthen efforts
in exploring and serving major customers in key markets, (ii)
by strengthening technology research and development and
improving intelligent manufacturing capabilities, to improve
the technical standard of products and the capability for mass
production of high-end products, and (iii) by strengthening the
localization service capabilities for overseas market, integrating
upstream and downstream resources and improving the risk
resistance capabilities, the Group will strive to turn risks into
opportunities and continuously improve its operating results.

The Board believes that, following the commercial launch of
5G network, “5G”
the mobile phone market will resume growth. The market

smartphones will become popular and

for wearable products such as true wireless headsets, smart
watches and bracelets is growing rapidly, following the
overcome of the adverse effects of the novel coronavirus, the
circuit boards and components business is expected to maintain
its continuous growth in the foreseeable future. The Group will
strengthen its core capabilities, overcome the adverse effects
of the novel coronavirus and keep on improving its operating
results, so as to present satisfactory results and bring favourable

returns to its shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

APPRECIATION

For and on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank the management and all staff members
of the Group for their dedication and invaluable contributions
to the Group in the past year. | would also like to thank our
customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders for
their continuous support to the Group. The Group will do its
best to achieve good results and secure ideal returns for our
shareholders.

AKM Industrial Company Limited
Xiong Zheng Feng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENSREEE

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out below:

DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (EEIFi£)
and the executive Director of the Company. In July 1992, he

aged 50, is the chairman

graduated from the Department of Computer Science of Fg
KE (Nankai University) and obtained his bachelor degree in
science. He then obtained his master degree in economics from
m KB40 28T (Nankai University School of Economics) in
July 1995. He is a director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited (%
FEEARAA), the controlling shareholder of the Company,
since March 2001. From April 2003 to January 2011, he was
an alternate director of Raymond Industrial Ltd, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong, and is a non-executive director since January 2011. Mr.
Xiong is also a director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu)
Ltd. and an executive director of AKM Electronic Technology
(Suzhou) Company Limited, both of which are subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Xiong is the chairman of the board of directors
of AKMMeadville Electronics (Xiamen) Co., Ltd (& EF|ZE 4
BT (EM)BMREMLAA)since December 2019. Mr. Xiong
joined the Company in March 2001 and is responsible for
the Group's corporate policy formulation, business strategies
planning, business development and management of the
Group. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Xiong does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the past three years,
and does not have any other relationship with any directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling

shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENSREEE

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gao Xiaoguang (BB} ), aged 44, is currently vice
president of GoerTek Inc. (“GoerTek"), a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Gao graduated from Shandong Institute
of Technology (ILE T# 2F%) in July 1998 and obtained
his master degree in business administration from Southern
Cross University in 2006. Mr. Gao joined GoerTek in 2001.
Mr. Gao was appointed as a non-executive Director since 12
March 2015. Mr. Gao does not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the past three years, and does not have
any relationship with any other directors, senior management,
substantial shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Jia Junan (EE %), aged 49, is currently vice president
of and secretary to the board of directors of GoerTek. He
graduated from Shandong Institute of Finance and Economics
(LU BFELE BT ) in July 1993 with a bachelor degree in
economics and obtained his master degree in economics from
Shandong University (ILIZRKE) in 2003. Mr. Jia obtained a
doctorate degree in economics in 2008 from Xiamen University
(JFEF9KE) . He is a member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of The Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Jia obtained a qualification
certificate for secretary to board of directors (ZEEEWEE
1 E ) issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in 2013. Mr.
Jia was previously manager of tax department of KPMG China,
Tsingdao office, and he joined GoerTek in 2010. Mr. Jia was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 17 November 2015.
Mr. Jia does not hold any directorship in other listed companies
in the past three years, and does not have any relationship
with any other directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENSREEE

Mr. Wang Chunsheng (£& %), aged 45, graduated
from School of Mechanical Design and Engineering, Jiangsu
University of Science and Technology ()T &k F2 T K 3 # 4 3%
5T TR EPT) in June 1998. Mr. Wang joined Suzhou Anjie
Technology Co. Ltd (#RMZRZE KM BR AT ("Anjie
Technology”)(a substantial shareholder of the Company) in
2000 and is currently the chairman of the board of Anjie
Technology (which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
with stock code 002635). Mr. Wang was appointed as a non-
executive Director since 30 January 2018. Mr. Wang does not
hold any directorship in other listed companies in the past
three years, and does not have any relationship with any other
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders, or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Zhang Xiaoming (& B283), aged 41, is currently a
director of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited and a supervisor of
the finance department of China North Industries Corporation,
the controlling shareholders of the Company. She obtained
a master degree in accountancy in April 2003 from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics (R4t BF & K£) . She
also obtained a doctorate degree from The Research Institute
for Fiscal Science of the Ministry of Finance ( Bf B 3084 Bl 22
7T FT) (now known as Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences
(FRE B BRI EATZERT) ) in July 2011. Ms. Zhang is a member
of the Beijing Institute of Certified Public Accountants (1t =
e tAii%E ) since September 2010, and also a member
of the Institute of Management Accountants since April 2003.
Ms. Zhang is a director of NORINCO International Cooperation
Ltd. (b BB EERMDBMRAA) (@ company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 000065) since 29
March 2017. She is also currently a director of China ZhenHua
Oil Co., Ltd. (JRZE A M IEE B R 2 7)) and Wanbao Mining
Ltd. (BEEEGR 2 a]) . Ms. Zhang was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 24 August 2018. Save as disclosed, Ms.
Zhang does not hold any directorship in other listed companies
in the past three years, and does not have any relationship
with any other directors, senior management, substantial
shareholders, or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

rEBESKReREEE

Mr. Yu Daochun (R#E&), aged 52, is currently a director
of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited and a supervisor of the
accounting department of China North Industries Corporation,
the controlling shareholders of the Company. He obtained
a doctorate degree in economics from Central University of
Finance and Economics (R REF4EKE) in June 2007. Mr
Yu is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ( R EIEEMt & 5TAN13 & ) since September 2010. Mr.
Yu is a director of NORINCO International Cooperation Ltd. (1t
B AVERD AR A F) (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange with stock code 000065) since 20 March 2018.
He is also a director of China Wanbao Engineering Co., Ltd. (
HEEETEEMR A7), China ZhenHua Oil Co., Ltd. (REHR
MIERE B PR A E]) and Wanbao Mining Ltd. (BEBEEGR A
A]) . Mr. Yu was appointed as a non-executive Director on 27
November 2018. Save as disclosed, Mr. Yu does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the past three years,
and does not have any relationship with any other directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENSREEE

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew (3 3&) , aged 51, is currently
the director of Norton Rowland CPA Limited. He received his
professional training in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and has
worked for UBS Investment Bank as business unit controller
for seven years. Mr. Hung was awarded the degree of Bachelor
of Arts in Accountancy by The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (formerly known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
and the degree of Master of Applied Finance by the University
of Western Sydney. Mr. Hung is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant, an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a fellow member of
The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants. Mr.
Hung is also an independent non-executive director of FDG
Kinetic Limited and G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited
respectively, companies which shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 17 October
2011. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hung does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the past three years,
and does not have any relationship with any other directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling

shareholders of the Company.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

rEBESKReREEE

Mr. Cui Zheng (#48F), aged 65, is currently the supervisor
of the academic committee of the Suzhou Institute of Nano-
Tech and Nano-Bionics, Chinese Academy of Science (/1 B %}
B2 BT Bk M AR K B AT B2 4 K (5 AE AT 3R AT) and the supervisor of
the Printable Electronics Research Center ( H1ffl| & ¥ & #ff 3¢
#6) at the Suzhou Institute of Nano-Tech and Nano-Bionics.
Mr. Cui obtained his doctorate degree in engineering from
Southeast University (B2 ® A2 ) in 1988. He is a fellow of
the Institution of Engineering and Technology (previously the
Institution of Electrical Engineers) since 2004. He is also a State
Specially Recruited Expert under the “1000 Talent Plan” of the
Government of the People’s Republic of China since 2009.
He is also the vice secretary-general of National Innovation
Association of Printed Electronics Industrial Technology ( 2 E
ENRIE FEEFMABIF ), and vice president of Touch
Screen Advisor Committee of SEMI China (regional office of
Semiconductor Equipment and Materials International). Mr.
Cui was elected “Scientific Chinese” of Year 2010. Mr. Cui
was previously a visiting fellow at the Cavendish Laboratory of
the University of Cambridge. Further, he was also previously
Principal Scientist at the Central Microstructure Facility of
Rutherford Appleton Laboratory in the United Kingdom. Mr.
Cui was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 3 May 2016. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cui does not
hold any directorship in other listed companies in the past
three years, and does not have any relationship with any other
directors, senior management, substantial shareholders, or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Directors and Senior Management of the Group

REBEENSREEE

Mr. Yang Zhaoguo (% JEBl), aged 48, is currently
chairman of /N B{LEHR A A (transliteration “Suzhou
Hangri Chemical Co., Ltd"”). He obtained a master degree in
engineering in July 1997 from Dalian University of Technology
(KEIE T AZ) . Mr. Yang previously worked as senior
engineering at the Shanghai Research Institute of Materials (_E
BM B FEAT) and was previously project manager of AVIC
International (HK) Group Limited. Mr. Yang was previously a
director of Shenzhen Sunway Communication Co., Ltd (&3
MEHEBERMBBER2AT) (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange with stock code 300136), during the period
from 11 May 2016 to 23 April 2017. Mr. Yang was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director since 15 May
2018. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yang does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies in the past three years,
and does not have any relationship with any other directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang (4¢%& %) , aged 59, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. He was previously an executive Director
and has retired as an executive Director on 26 May 2017. In
January 1982, he graduated from the ¢ flT= % (Faculty
of Laser Technology) of &&X ZRBE#MZERT (Changchun
Institute of Optics and Fine Mechanics) and obtained his
bachelor degree in engineering. He then obtained his #5#%
£ (Certificate on continuing education) from the &F& i RE
I EFT (Hong Kong Sino-Australia Management College) in
June 2001. From February 1982 to September 1992, Mr. Chai
was employed by the JL# & 15 /1 T BE %t E 88 M (Shuguang
Appliances Factory of Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province) as
engineer and branch-factory manager. He then joined iR
BN ETERETEAR LT (Alpha Luck Electronic &
Electric Appliance Industrial (Guangzhou) Ltd.) in October
1992 as project manager. In January 1994, Mr. Chai joined the
Company and is responsible for research and development and
overall management of the Group. Mr. Chai has over 27 years
of experience in the flexible printed circuit production industry.
Mr. Chai is also a director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu)
Ltd, a subsidiary of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management of the Group

rEBESKReREEE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hung Ching Yuen (& 3&), aged 40, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Hung graduated from the
University of Hong Kong and obtained her Bachelor of Laws
degree and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in 2001 and 2002
respectively. She obtained her Master of Laws degree from
University College London in 2003. Ms. Hung is a solicitor
practicing in Hong Kong since 2006 and was appointed as the
company secretary on 13 June 2011. Ms. Hung is also company
secretary of Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2360)
since 18 December 2018.
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®WE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the turnover of the
Group was approximately HK$1,463,630,000, representing
an increase of approximately 19.60% as compared to
approximately HK$1,223,803,000 of last year. The increase in
turnover was mainly due to the increase in purchase of major
customers and the increase in sales of new products such as
camera modules, wireless charging modules and new energy
car cells.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was approximately HK$117,711,000,
representing an increase of approximately 69.77% as compared
to approximately HK$69,334,000 of last year. The increase
in profit was mainly attributable to the remarkable growth
realised in the overall sales of the Group and the increase
in gross profit margin of the circuit boards and components
business.

The turnover for the circuit boards and components business of
the Group for the year was approximately HK$1,448,487,000
(overall turnover for the FPC business and the flexible
packaging substrates business in 2018: approximately
HK$1,216,351,000). During the year under review, the overall
gross profit margin increased to approximately 14.26%
(2018: approximately 12.42%), of which the gross profit
margin of circuit boards and components business increased
to approximately 14.22% (overall gross profit margin of FPC
business and the flexible packaging substrates business in
2018: approximately 12.48%).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the other income
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$41,171,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 26.81% as compared
to approximately HK$56,253,000 of last year. The decrease in
other income was mainly attributable to the decrease in interest

income and exchange gains.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DM

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the distribution costs
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$20,952,000,
representing an increase of approximately 7.82% as compared
to approximately HK$19,433,000 of last year. The increase
in distribution costs during the year under review was mainly
attributable to the increase of sales, which resulted in (i) the
increase in commission, and (ii) the increase in transportation
expenses, express fees and travelling expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the administrative
expenses of the Group were approximately HK$40,017,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 2.84% as compared
to approximately HK$41,187,000 of last year. The decrease in
administrative expenses was mainly due to the decrease in loss
from disposal of assets during the year under review.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the research
and development expenses of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$57,352,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 10.07% as compared to approximately
HK$63,774,000 of last year. The decrease in research and
development expenses was mainly attributable to the decrease
in government projects undertaken by the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the finance cost of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$2,091,000, representing
an increase of approximately 872.56% as compared to
approximately HK$215,000 of last year. The significant increase
in finance cost was mainly due to the significant increase in
bank borrowings.
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®WE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of the
manufacture and sales of FPC and flexible packaging substrates
(including components), which are used in electronic products.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the turnover of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$1,463,630,000,
representing an increase of approximately 19.60% as compared
to approximately HK$1,223,803,000 for 2018. The increase in
turnover was mainly attributable to the increase in purchase
of major customers and the increase in sales of new products
such as camera modules, wireless charging modules and new
energy car cells. During the year under review, the turnover
of the Group's circuit boards and components business was
approximately HK$1,448,487,000, while the overall turnover
of FPC business and flexible packaging substrates business
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$1,216,351,000. In 2019, the profit attributable to
the owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$117,711,000, representing a significant increase of
approximately 69.77% as compared to approximately
HK$69,334,000 in 2018. The increase in profit was mainly
attributable to the remarkable growth realised in the overall
sales of the Group and the increase in gross profit margin of
the circuit boards and components business.

During the year under review, the turnover of the Group's
circuit boards and components business increased by
approximately 19.08% as compared to the overall turnover of
the FPC business and flexible packaging substrates business
last year, and its gross profit margin increased to approximately
14.22% (2018: approximately 12.48% for the overall gross
profit margin of FPC business and flexible packaging substrates
business). During the year under review, turnover from the FPC
business was approximately HK$1,228,364,000, representing
an increase of approximately 13.24% as compared to
approximately HK$1,084,759,000 last year, and turnover from
the flexible packaging substrates business was approximately
HK$220,123,000, representing an increase of approximately
67.28% as compared to approximately HK$131,592,000
last year. During the year under review, the turnover of the
"other” business of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$15,143,000, which was mainly derived from the business of
sourcing and sales of electronic components, and accounted for
approximately 1.03% of the total sales volume of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE D

During the year under review, by following the strategy of
“developing major customers”, the Group strengthened its
efforts in customer development and customer services. The
Group also proactively enhanced its technical capabilities and
standard, explored new application fields, and strengthened
the integration of upstream and downstream resources through
acquisitions or cooperation, captured opportunities to achieve
better operating results. The Guangzhou Nansha Factory and
Suzhou Factory achieved increase in the amount of orders and
deliveries and improvement in their core capabilities. The Group
also achieved satisfactory growth in new market fields such as
camera modules, new energy car cells and wireless charging
modules.

During the year under review, although the overall shipment
volume of the smartphone industry declined and direct
orders from major mobile phone customers decreased as
affected by the upcoming launch of 5G communication
networks, by exploring new products such as camera modules,
wireless charging modules, etc. for acting as smartphone
manufacturers’ second-tier supplier, and by expanding new
application fields such as new energy car cells, the overall sales
of the Group's circuit boards and components business still
increased by approximately 19.08% as compared to that of
last year. By increasing the proportion of products with high
complexity and high technology levels, and adjusting the price
bidding strategy for low-end products, the overall gross profit
margin of circuit boards and components business of the Group
recorded an increase from approximately 12.48% in 2018 to
approximately 14.22% in 2019.

During the year under review, the research and development
expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$57,352,000, representing a decrease of approximately
10.07% as compared to approximately HK$63,774,000 of
last year. The decrease in research and development expenses
was mainly attributable to the decrease in government
projects undertaken by the Group. The Group will continue
to increase investment in research and development in order
to continuously uplifting technology standard and technical
capability and conducting research and development in new
materials, new products and new production techniques.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENW RO

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 20 December
2017,
manufacturing factory with ancillary facilities in the existing

the Group intended to establish an intelligent
factory of the Group in Nansha, Guangdong, PRC for
assembling new application modules of FPC. During the year
under review, construction of the main building of the relevant
project had been completed. It is expected that trial production
will be commenced in some of the intelligent workshops in the
first half of 2020.

On 6 December 2016, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) and GoerTek Inc. (“GoerTek”, for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) in relation to the
transactions for selling of parts, components and other
products (including but not limited to FPC products) for a
term commenced from 1 January 2017 and expired on 31
December 2019. Such transactions constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules. As the Purchase Agreement expired on
31 December 2019, on 13 January 2020, the Company (for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) and GoerTek (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a renewed
purchase agreement (the “Renewed Purchase Agreement”)
for a term commenced from 1 January 2020 and expiring
on 31 December 2022. The Renewed Purchase Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder, as well as the
annual caps for each of the years ending 31 December 2020,
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 were approved
by the independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20 February 2020. Details of
the terms of the Renewed Purchase Agreement, the continuing
connected transactions and the annual caps were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 13 January 2020 and
the circular dated 4 February 2020. The annual cap set for
the continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2019 was RMB300,000,000. During the year under
review, the Group sold circuit board products of approximately
RMB83,389,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$94,793,000)
to GoerTek and its subsidiaries, representing a decrease of
approximately 30.18% as compared to that of the year ended
31 December 2018 (2018: approximately RMB119,440,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$141,220,000)).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DM

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 31
December 2019, AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Limited
("AKM Panyu”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
had commenced the sales of FPC products to Suzhou Anjie
Technology Co. Ltd (&RINZ 2R AR 2 F) ("Anjie
Technology”) since June 2019 as part of its ordinary and
usual course of business. During the year under review, the
Group sold FPC products of approximately RMB5,762,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,550,000) to Anjie
Technology, which had exceeded the minimum exemption
threshold of HK$3,000,000, while the respective applicable
percentage ratios were less than 5%. The transactions
concerned are therefore subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but are exempted from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. On 31 December 2019, the
Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) and Anjie
Technology (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered
into a framework materials sale and purchase agreement
(“Framework Agreement”) for a term commenced from 31
December 2019 and expiring on 31 December 2020, and the
annual cap for the year 2020 was set at HK$60,000,000.
Details of the terms of the Framework Agreement, the
continuing connected transaction and the annual cap were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 31
December 2019 and 15 January 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®WE DM

On 13 December 2018, the Group proposed to adopt the
restricted stock incentive scheme (the “Scheme”) to further
improve corporate governance of the Group, retain and
motivate the Scheme participants to make contributions to
the long-term growth and profits of the Group with a view to
achieving the objectives of increasing the value of the Group
and to promote a greater alignment of interests between the
scheme participants and the shareholders. Pursuant to the
Scheme, the Board shall select the scheme participants and
determine the number of restricted stock to be granted. The
Company has appointed a trustee to purchase the shares from
the secondary market. At the extraordinary general meeting
held on 31 January 2019, the Scheme was duly approved by
the independent shareholders. On 14 February 2019 and 27
March 2019, the Board approved the initial grant of restricted
stock under the Scheme, pursuant to which 27,500,000
shares of restricted stock were granted to 81 selected scheme
participants on 14 February 2019 at the grant price of HK$0.65
per share and 2,490,000 shares of restricted stock were
granted to Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (executive director) and Mr.
Chai zhi Qiang (chief executive officer) on 27 March 2019 at
the grant price of HK$0.77 per share. Details of the Scheme
and the initial grant of restricted stock were disclosed in the
Company’'s announcements dated 13 December 2018, 31
January 2019, 14 February 2019, 15 February 2019 and 27
March 2019 and the circular dated 16 January 2019. As of 31
December 2019, the trustee had purchased 4,480,000 shares
in aggregate from the secondary market. As of 31 December

2019, none of the restricted stock granted had been unlocked.
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On 22 March 2019, the Group entered into respective equity
transfer agreement with Jiangxi Changjiang Chemical Co.,
Ltd. GIFAR)I{E THERE T A A) (“Changjiang Chemical”)
(a connected person of the Group, and an indirect subsidiary
of the Group's controlling shareholder China South Industries
Group Corporation (PRI EEHEEEBER A A)) and
Capital Loyal Limited (X% AR A 7)) (“Capital Loyal”) (an
independent third party). Pursuant to such agreements, the
Group acquired 38% and 10% equity interest in Jiujiang
Flex Co., Limited (JLUT@&F = i B R Q7)) (“Jiujiang Flex")
from Changjiang Chemical and Capital Loyal respectively (the
“Acquisitions”). The Acquisitions were completed in April
2019, and the Group is interested in an aggregate of 48%
equity interest of Jiujiang Flex, which in turn has become
an associate of the Group. Details of the Acquisitions were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22
March 2019.

On 27 December 2019, AKM Panyu, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement
with Meizhi Investment (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. (EEEE (&)
B A al) (“Meizhi Investment”), Xiamen Semiconductor
Investment Group Co., Ltd. (EFI¥E2REEEBBRA
A]) (“Xiamen Semiconductor”) and Anmei Ventures (Xiamen)
Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) ( %23 &l 2
(EFREREEGECE(BRAE%)) (“"Anmei Ventures”)
for the formation of the joint venture company AKMMeadville
Electronics (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. (ZEFEZ=#E T (EF) A
R EERQF) ("AKMMeadville”). Under the joint venture
agreement, the joint venture company shall be owned as to 6%
by AKM Panyu, 53% by Meizhi Investment, 40% by Xiamen
Semiconductor and 1% by Anmei Ventures. The registered
capital of AKMMeadville is RMB4,500,000,000. AKM Panyu
contributed a total amount of RMB270,000,000 (representing
6% of the total contribution) in the form of cash. On 20
January 2020, AKMMeadville (as purchaser) entered into an
equity interests purchase agreement with TTM Technologies
China Limited (as seller) and the seller’s ultimate controlling
shareholder TTM Technologies Inc., pursuant to which the
purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire all of the equity
interests of Guangzhou Meadville Electronics Co., Ltd. (/&
MNEMHETAHARAA), Shanghai Meadville Electronics Co.,
Ltd. ( /=M EF T AR A a]), Shanghai Meadville Science &
Technology Co., Ltd. ( E/BE#ARIEER A F]) and Shanghai
Kaiser Electronics Co., Ltd. ( E/@S\EBETHRAF) for a
total consideration of US$550,000,000. Details of the relevant
matters were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 27 December 2019 and 23 January 2020.

Annual Report 2019 —Z—hEFER

RNZZE—AFE=RA-+-H A£EDZHIAER
TIEIERETRAR ([RIT]) (AAEE
CHEBEALTRAEEERBERETHESEHSE
BERARZEEWNBAR) KB FE =7 RiE
ERAR ([REDAEZEERRFER IR
BEBAAR AEED MR/ RERK
BIIERSMAERAT ([IEHH )
38% K% 10% % ([WEEE]) - BEEER
TE-NFOAEK AEER NIRRT
R & H48% R A E D JUTRM T AR
BEAEEZHBHENR WHEEANFBERAALR
RAZE—NF-AZF+ B HFEE-

RZZE—NAF+-_A=-++RB AQAFZL2E
MBARLEFNESHEEZRE(EM AR
RAEI([ELKE]) EMFEBRESES
RAF ([EMFEE]) ReEAZE(EM)R
BINEERILE (BRER) ([LX81%E])H
RIIEGERFILRENER (EM)AEREER
Al ([ZREMEL DL HERZ - RIBLEW
HAERPBALENESHEBRRE X8
WEEES3%RE  EFTF B8 E40%MKE
MEEHRFI1%RE - ZEFEZH 2 FMERE
ANE#4,500,000,0007C ° ZEFEFEB AR
NHEEA L AREE270,000,0007T (15 H & #E%58
6%) R-_E-_ZTF—A=-+H TEMNEH
(ERER)BEAERBHEERAR (ERE
F)REFRSEEIERBRRDLERKE ARG
EEEHZ B EFAKHERENER
f&550,000,000& T EMEHES FHR A
A EBEHTETHERAF LBEERTER
RAINEBIEREFARAGNEIBAE -
EEEENFBEERARF T —NF+=A
T+ tEtARZE_EF—A -+ =ZHKNAMHF

23



24

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®WE DM

OUTLOOK

The Group has become an authorised supplier for a number
of world-renowned high-tech companies. To meet the
requirements of the global supply chain system of such
customers, the Group has established two production bases
(Southern China Guangzhou Factory and Eastern China Suzhou
Factory) and has established a new overseas factory in Uttar
Pradesh, India in 2019 to serve customers with production
bases in proximity. The India factory had commenced to
produce product samples for customers in the second half year
of 2019. The Group also plans to invest in a new overseas
factory in Vietnam in 2020 to serve international customers
with production bases in Vietnam. The Group has also
established sales centre, research and development centre,
supply chain management etc. which are independent from the
manufacturing system to cater for the comprehensive needs
of the Group's customers. Under the guidance of the strategy
of "“developing major customers” and with the gradual uplift
of the Group's technology, production, quality management,
supply chain management and information technology
capabilities, the Group’s capability to satisfy the “one-stop

demand” of such customers has also been largely improved.

RE

AEBERREZRERMEBHUREEZAE
REER SREREEPENHERER
ZBEFR - NEEE R EREMN T RNERH
NI ESERN YR T NFHEHNE
IEFHRT —FKBINT THIARBHILRAE £
EEMNEP -HEIBRER _T—NAFT*
FRIGATPREEMEM AEBEAF IR
R _TFEBERE T THIARSE
EUBRIEEEMNBERERF AEEE
RUBINBUERR ZEHP L &P L H#
EREREZRERAEEEFPZ22HULFER
EREFPEE ZEM T AKE 2Kl £E-
mEEE HEREERESRMERLNITEZ
Thm ARRRTAKEREEP [—WXF
k1 Z 8




Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE D

Although the global electronic products market is showing
trend of rapid development, competition in the electronic
product market is becoming increasingly fierce, technological
innovation and intelligent manufacturing have gradually
become the mainstream of the industry. At the same time, the
novel coronavirus pandemic and the unstable China-United
States relations has also brought relatively high uncertainties
to the market. The Group remains cautious about the future
and will pay close attention to the changes in the economy,
industry and major customers to evaluate its risk exposures and
the impacts on orders and supply chain. Meanwhile, the Group
will enhance its internal capacity, so that, (i) by adhering to the
strategy of “developing major customers” to strengthen efforts
in exploring and serving major customers in key markets; (ii)
by strengthening technology research and development and
improving intelligent manufacturing capabilities, to improve
the technical standard of products and the capability for mass
production of high-end products; and (iii) by strengthening the
localization service capabilities for overseas market, integrating
upstream and downstream resources and improving the risk
resistance capabilities, the Group will strive to turn risks into
opportunities and continuously improve its operating results.

The management of the Group is of the opinion that, following
the commercial launch of the 5G network, the popularity of
“5G" smartphones and the rapid development of wearable
product market, and the overcome of the adverse effects of
the novel coronavirus, the circuit boards and components
business is expected to maintain its continuous growth in
the foreseeable future. The Group will adhere to the strategy
of "developing major customers”, continuously uplift the
technology capabilities of products, pay full attention to the
market opportunities in new application fields. By following
development strategies such as strengthening integration of
upstream and downstream resources, and enlarging economic
scale to promote operational efficiency, the Group will be able
to strengthen its core capabilities, overcome the adverse effects
of the novel coronavirus and keep on improving its operating
results, so as to present satisfactory results and bring favourable
returns to its shareholders.

Annual Report 2019 —Z—hEFER

HAEHETFTERMSHEZRAREBHRES B
BT EMMIGHEF AR Rial 2
RERESZHARITREIR AR FEREE
BRARRITARPERBEOTIRE BT H K
TR THEE M - REBEE KRR RTZERE
B ZUIRE TEMEIZEFPNEL ¥
R EETEMEEROTZE  RRINRA
EREENER - BB()ERE [ KEFP B IMAE
RMBEREFPHFHENEMREHE ()58
RMEMES SR ER D KEFFERN
Rk AEFN = 0% EE rn eV HE B AR EERE 77 ¢ DA R (i)
ASRBINTIZ A AL AR TS RE ) BB iB £ T &
REG RBALENRREN hFE(RIR
(] TERACENRERE-

AEEEEERS BEGEEHANRRA
[5G BREFHNERANAFHERTHN
ABRBER ERRATHERBERRKONNE
B ERREAHTEEARRZKEDE
ERFFELER -AEEBKERFANEP B
THRTEMRBRMEN AFXDBIFHERE
HzmE#E AEREGHEERBLTHER
EE BARERBRRUESERBE TRA
W RARLEES  RRFERERIER KT
ME 8 TERTHEERE  HEIL MR R
B BRRERIEB DR

25



26

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®WE DM

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group financed its operations primarily with internally
generated funds from operating activities and existing bank
facilities. It is anticipated that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its present funding requirements. As at 31
December 2019, the outstanding loan balance of the Group
was approximately HK$39,358,000 (31 December 2018: HK$0).

EMPLOYEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 1,315
full-time employees based in Hong Kong and China (2018:
1,270 employees). For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the total labor costs (including Director’'s emoluments) for the
Group amounted to approximately HK$166,933,000 (2018:
approximately HK$133,473,000). The Group determines and
reviews the remunerations of its Directors and employees
based on their respective qualifications, experiences,
performances and the market rates, so as to maintain the
remuneration of the Directors and employees at a competitive
level. The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans and insurance schemes in compliance with
the statutory obligations under the laws and regulations of
China and Hong Kong. The Directors believe that being one
of the most important assets of the Group, employees are
important contributors to the success of the Group. The Group
appreciates the importance of staff training, therefore, regular
trainings are provided to the employees to enhance their
technical and product knowledge. The majority of the Group's
employees are stationed in China.

MATERIAL INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
material investments during the year ended 31 December 2019.

RBETRTBER

REBXZULEEBBANRES RINFEA]
RAZRITRERNEEENT BHASESR
MEEESCRNEBMESTEE-RZ2T—AN
F+ZA=Z+—RH AEEHNKREEZERLDY
£39,358,0008 L (ZE—N\F+ZA=+—
H:0%87T) -

BE

R_ZB—hE+-_A=+—H A&EEEEB
R BEERAE #1358 2BEE (T — N
F:12704EE) BEZZTE—NLF+ZA
“t+—HUEFEALSEZHBEINA (REE
£ 4 )4 /5166,933,0008 7T ( =T — )\ F:
#9133,473,000870) - AKBREEERET
ZERE 88 RERTIGKESITEREZHE
O AgBEEENEIFHN —EEARSEZ
KE-REBMBMETERPEARE B A R
GOl 2 EZEEERTE 2 EEHIRIKRRBE
E-EERE BENASESREREEZ —
HAEB K NELEEZEER - ASBEHBE
IHEIzEEZN HEHRAEEE TRMHE
A B2 T+ H B4y & BE G AN sl - AR B K E 0 1B
BYEMNPE-

EARE

BRABREMBRBEEIN RBEE-_T—NAF+=
A=Z+—RLEFER AEEALEETAEAR
iéo




Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE D

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SUBSCRIPTIONS

On 29 November 2017, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with Alpha Luck, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, and a subscription agreement
with Anjie Technology respectively, pursuant to which
Alpha Luck and Anjie Technology respectively subscribed
for 103,900,000 shares and 200,000,000 shares at the
Subscription Price of HK$1.5 per share (collectively the
“Subscriptions”). The Subscriptions were completed
simultaneously on 30 January 2018. The net proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$454,886,000 (“Net Proceeds
of Subscriptions”). As of 31 December 2019, approximately
HK$387,606,000 of the Net Proceeds of Subscriptions had
been applied, among which: (i) approximately HK$88,720,000
was used for the civil engineering construction of the new
intelligent factory; (ii) approximately HK$112,669,000 was
used for expanding the production capacities and enhancing
production capabilities of the Group’s existing production
plant of FPC products (all of which was used for acquiring new
machineries); (iii) approximately HK$137,331,000 was used
for the enhancement of production capacities and capabilities
of the Group’s flexible packaging substrates products (all
of which was used for acquiring new machineries); and (iv)
approximately HK$48,886,000 was used for the general
working capital of the Group (all of which was applied as
supplemental working capital). The capital utilization was
consistent with the intended use of the Net Proceeds of
Subscriptions as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated
20 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2019, approximately HK$67,280,000 of
the Net Proceeds of Subscriptions (“Remaining Net Proceeds”)
has not yet been utilized, which is intended to be applied
for the construction of the new intelligent factory and the
establishment of new production lines in the new factory. It is
expected that the Remaining Net Proceeds will be fully utilised
by 2020 in accordance with the intended use as stated above.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR PURCHASE OF CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
future plans for material investment or purchase of capital asset
as at 31 December 2019.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2019, bank deposits of approximately
HK$2,364,000 (as at 31 December 2018: approximately
HK$2,358,000) of the Group were pledged as collateral to
secure bank facilities granted to the Group. The Group did not
have trade receivables pledged as collateral to secure bank
facilities (as at 31 December 2018: Nil).

As at 31 December 2019, land use rights and buildings with
carrying amounts of HK$0 and approximately HK$51,069,000

respectively (as at 31 December 2018: approximately
HK$16,318,000 and HK$49,291,000) were pledged to secure
the general bank facilities granted to the Group.

mERRER

BRAREMEBEEN R_F—-NLF+-H
St BRREEAHREAH HEXEHAK
SEBERFENEMF-

EABRBRHE

BRABRESABEEIN RBEE-_T—NF+=
A=+t—RALEER AEELEFBHEL
ABERRRAERERNEARBRLE-

BHREAREIBAEREEZRR

=F &

BRAREMPEEEIN R _F—NF+_H
TR ARBEAYETANEAREXBAEL
REERARER S

EEEEEH

RTZE-—NAE+-_A=+—8 XEFYH
2,364,000 T (ZE—N\FT+_A=+—H:
#92,358,000/ L) W IRITIF R E BERBITE
FTAEBEZRITEEMERLSBERR -AEE
WEEBERERERERBITEEZER(Z
T-NF+ZA=+—H: &)~

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H EEED 5 A0
77T K #951,069,00078 ;L 2 L i i R IEF

—E-N\F+ZA=+—H:%16,318,000/%
TL 249,291,000 7T ) EHIFUERE TAREE
Z2—RERITEE -




Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DM

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2019, the net cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$119,707,000.
As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio of the Group
was approximately 31.47% (as at 31 December 2018:
approximately 28.92%), which was calculated based on the
Group's total liabilities of approximately HK$581,916,000 (as
at 31 December 2018: HK$483,432,000) and the Group’s total
assets of approximately HK$1,849,066,000 (as at 31 December
2018: HK$1,671,449,000).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly
denominated in US dollars and RMB, while the assets and
liabilities of the Group are denominated in HK dollars and RMB.
The Group is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from currency exposures, primarily with respect to US dollars
and RMB. The operating results and the financial position of
the Group may be affected by any changes in the exchange
rates, the Group has not taken any hedging measures in this
regard. Furthermore, the conversion of RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the foreign
exchange control rules and regulations promulgated by the
Chinese government. However, taking into account the Group's
current operation and capital requirements, the Directors
do not consider the Group is subject to any material foreign
exchange risk.
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DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend the payment of final dividend of
HK1 cent per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: HK1 cent per share) to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
5 June 2020. Subject to the approval by the shareholders at
"AGM"), the
proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or around
Thursday, 18 June 2020.

the forthcoming annual general meeting (the

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 3 June 2020 to Friday, 5 June 2020 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the
Company in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 2 June 2020.

CLOSURE OF SHARE REGISTER FOR ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 19 May 2020 to Friday, 22 May 2020 (both
days inclusive) for the purposes of determining shareholder’s
eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM and during which no
transfer of shares will be effected. To be qualified to attend the
AGM, which is to be held on Friday, 22 May 2020, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar

and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 18 May 2020.
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INTRODUCTION

Save for the deviations as disclosed in this report, the
Company complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (collectively “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules by establishing formal and
transparent procedures to protect and maximize the interests of
shareholders during the year under review.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less favorable
than the standard of dealings as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Model Code of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
on all Directors, it is confirmed that the Directors have complied
with such code of conduct and the standard of dealings
regarding securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

During the year under review, the Board consisted of 1
executive Director and 8 non-executive Directors of whom 3
were independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Director:
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (Chairman)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Gao Xiaoguang

Mr. Jia Junan

Mr. Wang Chunsheng

Ms. Zhang Xiaoming

Mr. Yu Daochun

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew

Mr. Cui Zheng

Mr. Yang Zhaoguo
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The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategy planning, business development,
risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial
matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to the management include the preparation of
annual and interim accounts for the Board’s approval before
reporting to the public, execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal control and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules
and regulations. During the year under review, the Board and
its audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee have performed corporate governance duties in
accordance with the functions set out in the Code Provision
D.3.1.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the chairman,
other Directors, and chief executive officer of the Company are
set out on pages 8 to 14 of this annual report. All Directors
have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. The executive Director has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently. There is no relationship among the members of the
Board.

During the year under review, all independent non-executive
Directors had appropriate and sufficient experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties to protect the interests of
shareholders. Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew, Mr. Cui Zheng and
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo were independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew was appointed since 17 October
2011 and his appointment was renewed for a further term of
three years commenced from 17 October 2017. Mr. Cui Zheng
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
commenced from 3 May 2016 and his appointment was
renewed for a further term of three years commenced from 3
May 2019. Mr Yang Zhaoguo was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director for a term of three years commenced
from 15 May 2018. All of them are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in

accordance with the Company's articles of association.
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Under the Code Provision A.4.2, every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director confirming his independence to the
Company. Based on such confirmations of independence, the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

During the year under review, Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng was
the chairman and Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang was the chief executive
officer.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer were
segregated and were not exercised by the same individual
during the year under review. The chairman’s responsibility
was to manage the Board while the chief executive officer’s
responsibility was to manage the business of the Company.

The Board held a full board meeting each quarter.

Details of the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the
members of the Board during the year under review are as
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follows:

Attendance
Director -} R E
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng ARIE & 5o A& 4/4
Mr. Gao Xiaoguang =B A 4/4
Mr. Jia Junan EEZEE 4/4
Mr. Wang Chunsheng FHEERE 4/4
Ms. Zhang Xiaoming SREERRZZ & 4/4
Mr. Yu Daochun RBELE 4/4
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HEEL A 4/4
Mr. Cui Zheng EfF i E 4/4
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo 15 IR B 5 A 4/4

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year, the
members of the Board will meet on other occasions when a
board-level decision on a particular matter is required. The
Directors will receive agenda and details of items for decision in
advance of each board meeting.

BLiFRNEMEESSRN EFTEXNER
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BN -
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CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Company organised all
Directors to attend training on new accounting standard Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS") 16. All Directors
had complied with the requirements set out in the Code
Provision A.6.5 by participating in the continuous professional
development, developing and refreshing their knowledge and
skills, in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
would remain informed and relevant.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the audit committee with written
terms of reference in accordance with Rules 3.21 to 3.23
of the Listing Rules. The relevant written terms of reference
was amended on 31 December 2018. The primary duties of
the audit committee are to review and monitor the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, review the finance and practice of
accounting policies of the Company and its subsidiaries, and
provide advice and comments on the Company's draft of
annual reports and accounts and half-year reports. During the
year under review, the audit committee comprised of three
members, namely Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew, Mr. Cui Zheng
and Mr. Yang Zhaoguo. All of them were independent non-
executive Directors. The chairman of the audit committee was
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew.

During the year under review, four meetings were held by the
audit committee. Details of the Directors’ attendance of the
audit committee meetings are as follows:

EECRESIRER
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REBERER REOBEFEAN BXREES

=—EZKBMERK DRI AREREE EFRER
BKBELLE 2 ABBUIERTES - FRE
BeXRARERLE -

ERZEEROBEFEARITOREE B
ZEggm It mRgFBOT

Attendance
Director = R E
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HERESE 4/4
Mr. Cui Zheng EEFEE 4/4
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo 15 IR S A 4/4
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The Group's unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2019 and audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2019 had been reviewed by the audit committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that adequate disclosures were made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in August 2005
with written terms of reference. During the year under review,
the remuneration committee comprised of three members.
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo, an independent non-executive Director,
was the chairman of the committee. Other members of the
remuneration committee included Mr. Cui Zheng and Ms.
Zhang Xiaoming. Accordingly, the majority of the members
were independent non-executive Directors.

The role and function of the remuneration committee include
the determination of specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for appointment or loss of office, and the provision
of recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and feasibility
of performance-based remuneration.

During the year under review, two meetings were held by the
remuneration committee. Details of the Directors’ attendance
at the remuneration committee meetings are as follows:
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Attendance
Director -} R E
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo 5 KB 5t A4 2/2
Mr. Cui Zheng BTt 2/2
Ms. Zhang Xiaoming SR EBEAA 22 & 2/2
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The remuneration committee of the Company has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the
executive Directors and appointment letters of the independent
non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee of the
Company considers that the existing terms of employment
contracts of the executive Directors and appointment letters
of the independent non-executive Directors are fair and
reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established on 22 March 2012
with written terms of reference. The relevant written terms of
reference was amended on 31 December 2018. During the year
under review, the nomination committee comprised of three
members. The chairman of the committee was Mr. Xiong Zheng
Feng. Other members included Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew and
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo. Accordingly, the majority of the members
were independent non-executive Directors.

The nomination committee shall review the structure, size
and composition of the Board (including skills, knowledge,
experience, past performance and qualification, etc.) and assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
the adequacy of Corporate Governance Code. The committee
is responsible for formulating nomination policy, identifying
candidates for Directors and making recommendations to
the Board in respect of the nomination, appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession plan of Directors.

The Company acknowledges that the diversification of the
members of the Board has positive effects on enhancing the
Group's performance. The Company sees the diversification of
the members of the Board as an important supporting factor
for the Group to achieve its strategic goals and maintain
sustainable growth. In deciding the composition of the Board,
the Company will consider the Board diversity from various
perspectives, including but not limited to sex, age, cultural
and academic background, race, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and terms of services. All appointments of
the Board are made on merits with objective consideration of
candidates, while taking into full account of the benefits of
the Board'’s diversity. The nomination committee reviews the
diversity of the composition of the Board on regular basis, and
monitors the implementation of this policy so as to ensure its
effective implementation.
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During the year under review, one meeting was held by the
nomination committee. Details of the Directors’ attendance at
the nomination committee meeting are as follows:
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REBFER REREEHABIT - REE &
FHRREEREEER ICHHABOT:

Attendance
Director X R E
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng AR IF & % A& 1/1
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew HEERLE 11
Mr. Yang Zhaoguo 15 IR Bl 5 A 1/1

The nomination committee considered and resolved that all the
existing Directors should be recommended to be retained by
the Company.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company was responsible for
considering the appointment of external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect on the Company. During the
year under review, the Group was required to pay an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$850,000 to the external auditor
for their audit service.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the
preparation of accounts, and confirmed that the financial
statements of the Company were prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, and having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any undisclosed material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hung Ching Yuen was appointed as the company secretary
on 13 June 2011. Ms. Hung Ching Yuen is an external
service provider to the Company and a solicitor practising in
Hong Kong. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training as required by the Listing Rules. The
primary contact person between the Company and Ms. Hung
Ching Yuen is Mr. Jiang Maoping, officer responsible for
compliance and legal matters.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company conducts regular reviews on its internal
control system and risk management program to ensure their
effectiveness and adequacy. The Company convenes meetings
periodically to discuss financial, operational, compliance and
risk management control. The purpose of the Group's internal
risk management control and program is to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
and eliminate risks of failure in operational systems. Through
the audit committee, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control and is of the opinion that
the resources for and the qualifications of the staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate and sufficient. The Board is satisfied with present
internal control.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividend to the Shareholders
of the Company by way of cash or shares. Any distribution
of dividend shall be in accordance with the Company's
articles of association and relevant laws and regulations. The
recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and no dividend shall
be distributed in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board. In deciding whether to distribute dividend, the Board
shall consider a range of factors including (but not limited to)
the financial results, earnings, loss and distributable reserve,
operations and liquidity capital requirements, debt ratio and
possible effect on the credit lines, capital requirements, current
and future development plans of the Company, interests of
the Shareholders, and other factors that the Board considered
relevant.
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During the year under review, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, former auditor of the Group, after taking into
account, among other factors, the level of audit fees, the
professional risk associated with the audit and available
internal resources in the light of its work flows, resigned as
the auditor of the Group with effect from 27 December 2019.
ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited was engaged to be the auditor of
the Group with effect from 6 January 2020 until the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM of the Company. The performance
of the external auditor of the Company was reviewed and
recommendation was made to reappoint ShineWing (HK) CPA
Limited as the external auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders
and potential investors. The Company welcomes suggestions
from investors, stakeholders and the public. The Company
has disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
and investors in compliance with the Listing Rules and uses
a number of formal communications channels to report the
Company’s performance to shareholders and investors. These
include (1) the publication of announcements and notices,
financial information and corporate governance information
available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Company; (2) the annual general meeting
or extraordinary general meeting which provide a forum for
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board; (3) information@akmcompany.com, an
email specifically set up by the Company for communications
with investors, which provides timely replies to the enquires
from investors; (4) the provision of services for shareholders
through the Company’s registered office and share registrar in
Hong Kong.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to Articles 65 of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, the Directors may, whenever they
think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. An
extraordinary general meeting shall also be convened upon
request by shareholders of the Company as provided by the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of the Laws of Hong Kong
("Companies Ordinance”), or, in default, may be convened by
the shareholders requesting the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting.

According to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Directors are required to call an extraordinary general
meeting if the Company has received requests to do so from
shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote
at general meetings. Shareholders of the Company may deposit
at the registered office of the Company a written request,
which shall state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting and include the text of the resolution
to be proposed at the meeting, and shall be signed by the
shareholders who made the demand. Where the Directors do
not, within 21 days from the date of depositing the demand,
duly arrange an extraordinary general meeting to be held
on a day not later than 28 days after the date on which the
notice convening the meeting is given, the shareholders who
made the demand or shareholders representing more than
half of the voting rights of such shareholders may convene an
extraordinary general meeting themselves in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which extraordinary general
meetings may be convened by the Directors of the Company,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholders who
made the request as a result of the failure of the Directors
to duly convene an extraordinary general meeting shall be
reimbursed by the Company.
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There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Articles of
Association of the Company or the Companies Ordinance.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting by
following the procedure set out in the preceding paragraph.

In relation to proposing a person for election as a Director,
please refer to the procedure available on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company's registered office in
Hong Kong at Rooms 2708-11, 27th Floor, West Tower, Shun
Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also send such enquiries and concerns to
information@akmcompany.com, an email specifically set up by
the Company for investor communications.
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The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report which is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). This report focuses
on the performance of corporate social responsibility of the
Group during the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019. The Group is committed to improving its strategy
and management in relation to environment, society and
governance through enhancement of infrastructure, internal
participation and external partnership to achieve a balanced
and win-win situation between interests of shareholders and
the society.

STAKEHOLDERS' PARTICIPATION

The Group has established a number of channels to allow
related institutions and individuals in the society (the
“Stakeholders”) to participate in the Group's operations so as
to understand and oversee the Group’s operating performance.
We are committed to creating a harmonious community with
various common interests, thus maximizing the overall social
benefits including the corporate benefits. Stakeholders can
participate in the operation of the Company through the
following means:

Channels and means of

Stakeholders
EREAA

Key targets and interests
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communication and participation Company’s measures

DAREIE

Shareholders and Protection of shareholders’ interests,

Shareholders’ meetings, investor

Publication of notifications and resolutions of
the shareholders’ meetings and disclosure of
information of the Company in accordance with

statements) and contact information  rules and regulations; organization of various

investors truthful, accurate and timely enquiries and site visits, disclosure
disclosure of information. of information (including financial
of the Company.
BRREEE BRRELRRE EAREEE KH-

BRAE REAZHXANER B BATEHNBRRAGBANZER
Refy o BE (SHBER) AAHEEIN-

investor activities; publication of the Company's
contact information on the Company's website
and reports, and assuring all communication
channels are smooth and unobstructed.
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Annual Report 2019 —Z—hEFER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HBREARS
Channels and means of

Stakeholders Key targets and interests communication and participation Company’s measures

BREEA TERERERH BESELANEE AREE

Employees Protection of basic rights, Workers union, communication Establishment of workers union to provide workers
compensation and benefits, work channels between employees and with a platform to communicate; payment of
environment, development and management, opinion boxes, staff  salaries and benefits in full and on time; payment
promotion and occupational health activities, training and education. of social security insurance in accordance with
and safety. law; provision of a healthy and safe work

environment; establishment of a fair promotion
mechanism; cared about our employees,
organization of employee activities, trainings and
learning activities.

8T EARGRE BANGHMGS TF Ie BINEREEATE BR MUISAN RUBIXRTE RERZEEN
BR BREM BERREZR2. K BEIEY HIEEE FHEN REERLeRE RERRE 228

IS BUATHEAKS: WEET AR
BTEE HIIEEE-

Customers Guarantee of the product quality Regular visits or maintain daily Strengthening of quality control, assurance of
and quantity, long-term and stable communication via telephone, emails steady production and smooth logistic process;
co-operation. and various instant messaging tools. provision of adequate products; entering into long

term sales agreements with customers.

BP nmENYERE REBTA FHRDARBRER BHLREEN NEREEH RELERENERRG RHR
o BEALERFARER. BEMm BARAGE-

Government Lawful operations, payment of Site visits, inspections, work Conducting operation in accordance with the
tax in accordance with the law, conference and discussion, work law; compliance management, payment of tax
production safety, fulfillment of reports, submissions and approvals.  in accordance with the law; strengthening of
social responsibility. the Company's safety management; acceptance

of government supervision, inspection and
examination in accordance with regulations, active
commitment to social responsibilities.

g RERE RERR RR2EE BT BBER BT IfEeEWE I AKE2 AaRER ARG NBRLRAIREE

Suppliers and contractors

RERLARR

%EE\1°

Fair bidding, long-term stable co-
operation and timely payment.

DYRE REREAE EBHR-

B R B

Public bidding meetings and business
meetings, daily communications.

REREH ANME A

HEE

B RATRXBNEE RELRGER R
AEHERE

Fair bidding, select by merit, performance of
contractual obligations, strengthening of daily
communications, maintenance of long-term
cooperation with quality suppliers and contractors.

AFRR BEER ROBEGTAR MEARER

n AEERERNARERAAE.
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Channels and means of

Stakeholders
EREAA

Key targets and interests

TERERMEE BESELNANEE

communication and participation Company’s measures

DAAEE

Community and the Job opportunities, community

public development, protection charity, volunteering services and
of ecological environment, participation in the construction of
compensation and assistance. the community.
itEEAR RERS HBRR REFERE HABHEERD ZEEDH SRER

BEEEY- B HBEAREY-

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has complied with international and national
environmental standards and ensured employee’s health
and safety in production, with an aim to establish a green
and civilized environment, to enhance energy efficiency and
minimize both energy consumption and pollutant discharge
through continuous improvements of management standards.
The production factories of the Group have passed the
certifications of 1SO9001, IATF16949 Quality Management
System and ISO14001 Environmental Management System, the
audit acceptance of clean production management, and have
received certificates on standardization of safety production.
In addition, the factory in Guangzhou has also passed the
certification of 1SO45001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System, and the factory in Suzhou has passed the
certification of IECQ QC 080000. A three-level environmental
monitoring system has been implemented by the Group to
ensure the full compliance with the relevant national standards
for different types of pollutants. The Group also implemented
an accountability and performance appraisal system to ensure
the specific responsibilities of various levels of personnel in the
execution and management of the environmental protection
system. During the year under review, the various emission
indexes of the Group have complied fully with the relevant
environmental protection standards. No penalty in relation to
the performance of environmental protection has been imposed

on the Group.

Co-hosting of community activities,

Promotion of community building and
development, provision of volunteer service,
establishment of communication channels for the
community and community members; hosting of
community activities, promotion of the building of
harmonious community.
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R HEREBRS

Emissions — The Group puts best efforts to control the amount
of emissions which affects the environment, strengthens its
competence in environmental supervision and has completed
the installment of online supervision device for waste water
and waste gas, in order to realize real-time supervision and
early warning of major pollution emission source. The Group
has installed an online monitoring system to keep track of the
sewage chemical oxygen demand (COD), pH level and flow
measurement, and also an online monitoring system to keep
track of the heavy metal in sewage. Other facilities include
underground water detection well and surveillance cameras
installed at the discharge outlets for the instant feedback of
information. An independent third party with appropriate
qualifications has also been engaged to operate, maintain
and manage these online facilities to ensure their proper
functioning. During the year under review, the operation of
the Group's facilities for the treatment of waste water, exhaust
gas, solid wastes and noise pollution were stable and met all
relevant inspection standards. As such, the Group is pleased
to report that it complied with national and local laws and
regulations on emission control in relation to the control of
waste gas, greenhouse gas emission, waste water discharge,
noise control as well as generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes in 2019.

R - AEERSASNEFTERENOG
ME - MR IRIFEDRIRE IR - STRCRE KRR,
REEMRBLEMENBE NEREH)S
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Pl - AEE D R EIS/KIEEFAE(COD)
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B HEREARS

(1) Emission of pollutants (1) SERMHR
No. Type of emissions Unit Total Amount Remark
Fr 5% BHRMESR B wne -k
1 COD Tonnes 6.25 Emissions in waste water
t2FaE 7] BEK P & BERU
2 Total Chromium kg 2.71 Emissions in waste water
18 % T REK P & BERU
3 Total Copper Tonnes 0.06 Emissions in waste water
18 iR 7] REK P & BERU
4 Total Nickel kg 1.34 Emissions in waste water
Gk TR BE K P & BERU
5 Total Phosphorus Tonnes 0.13 Emissions in waste water
B 7] BE K P & BERU
6 Ammoniacal Nitrogen Tonnes 0.29 Emissions in waste water
an WA BEK P & BERU
7 Hydrogen Chloride Tonnes 4.62 Emissions in waste gas
R o) WA BE SR 2 BER
8 Sulfuric Acid Fog Tonnes 1.44 Emissions in waste gas

B % WA JE& P2 R
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BE HBREARSE

(2) Quantity of greenhouse gas, waste water discharge (2)

and solid wastes

BERE SKERBRERY

No. Indicator Unit Total Amount Remark
FF 5% EEER B B i B
1 Total volume of Ten thousand 1.52 Total emission of CO2 equivalent
greenhouse gas tonnes
emission
BERBAINE A TEAZSLHM AT RE
2 Volume of industrial ~ Ten thousand 60.62 The Company has excellent sewage
sewage generated tonnes treatment facilities with sewage
treatment rate of 100%
ITH¥5KkEELS eyl NEIETENTKEIR R
TEKAE R IR ZE K E100%
3 Hazardous wastes Tonnes 1,968.52 A qualified hazardous wastes treatment
company has been engaged to handle
all hazardous wastes with 100%
compliance rate in wastes treatment
el EEEY A EHEXABEEN
EREREBNRE
EHREEE100%
4 Non-hazardous wastes Tonnes 122 Non-hazardous wastes of the Company
included mainly scrap materials, used
plastic sheets and used cardboard,
most of which are recyclable
BEREREY A NAEEEEYEELE AL

BERRNEANE
R%Z RA]EYER
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RIR HEREBRS

Use of resources — The Group insists on the principle of full,
reasonable and effective use of energy and makes every effort
to eliminate inefficiencies, and uses energy-saving equipment
as well as applies innovative energy saving technologies as
much as possible. The target of the energy conservation
management plan is to save energy, save resources, reduce
consumption, reduce environmental pollution and improve
economic efficiency. Multiple initiatives have been launched
for energy and resources conservation, optimization of energy
consumption, reduction of environmental pollution and
reduction of power consumption.

(1) Energy consumption

BERER-—ASEERUATD  &E LA MM
MARRRERERRRY RRABHHEEKE
ME - WHEEFMEMERBELEMEIF AR
1y EHBEEIRFT B AR AIRETR - MO ER - K
HE RO RBESAMRESEENEREE A
SR LER  BIEREFBR B RE
BREEEENHERERS AE G-

(1) BEREFE

No. Indicator Unit Quantity Remark
3 HEEH By HE B
1 Use of electricity 10,000 kWh 6,450 The Group mainly used electricity
as energy source. No coal or heat was used
as energy source
REE & TRk AEEBXZERERER
BEAREKRARERR
(2) Water resource consumption (2) KEREFE
No. Indicator Unit Quantity Remark
3 EEEH By HE B
1 Tap water usage 10,000 74.02 The Group used water supplied by the
tonnes urban water supply plant. There were no
issues related to water consumption or
demand
BHRKAE = 8 REE BT 8RR K
TE7KR (R A A SKER A 8
2 Reclaimed water usage 10,000 25.38 During the year, the use of
tonnes reclaimed water increased
by 45.36% on a year-on-year basis
KB AE &g FREAMEHKER -

B AERLEF EF45.36%
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(3)

(4)

Measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved

For the emissions of pollutants in waste water, the
Group has been promoting the adoption of technologies
and equipment with a high resource utilization rate
and low pollutant emission. The Group has also been
enhancing the use of reclaimed water and reducing waste
water discharge. Sales volume of printed circuits and
components business of the Group in 2019 increased
by approximately 19.08% as compared to 2018, while
the volume of industrial sewage increased by only
approximately 1.2%. The total amount of emissions of
pollutant in waste water increased by approximately
5.99% as compared to that of last year, with water
consumption increased by approximately 7.83% and
reclaimed water usage increased by approximately
45.36%. Efficiency of waste water treatment and water
resource utilization rate also increased. By stepping
up control, total volume of greenhouse gas emission
decreased by approximately 15.08% as compared to that
of last year.

For the emissions of pollutants in waste gas, the emissions
of waste gas has been reduced by enhancing the
operational management of waste gas treatment devices.
The total amount of emissions of pollutants in waste gas
in 2019 decreased by approximately 10.88% from 2018.

Means and measures to handle hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes and results achieved

The Group applies stringent measures in the handling
of hazardous wastes and a qualified hazardous wastes
treatment company has been engaged to handle all
hazardous wastes with 100% compliance rate in wastes
treatment. Comprehensive recycling policy has been
adopted for handling general waste with a comprehensive
utilization rate of approximately 72% in 2019.

(3)

(4)

HEHRENERRERR

HREKPRSENEER ASEIEHEE
KRAERMNAXRS SRUHEREIHT
B & W Anse oK E A R A BE K EE
WMo ZZE—NFEAEB 2 EHEREAEMHF
XS E B L2018F 2 h14719.08% « 12
TESKELESEHEFEEND1.2%
BEKFRFTE /52BN EE L XFIE NG
5.99% F/KEEKLT7.83%  F/KEHA=E
EHA#I45.36% 5KEBRETF  KE
BRI AXER - BBMKREE AEREE
PR E L R F R 2 4915.08% ©

HRBERP RS R BB NS ER
RIBEEMEITEERE ROBEIHENR =%
—NFEBERBAESRAMERBEL =
T NFERHLP#10.88% o

BRERERBEERRUNG % BERA
BRR

AEEBEREERCRERY 2 RFEA
BEENEREREENURE AREEXR
100% : HRN—AREERY) - SREUR & =2 4F
B —F-hFESKAMAENT2% -
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RIR HEREBRS

Environment and natural resources — The Group strives
to promote environmental infrastructure and improve the
environmental management system, in order to achieve energy
conservation, reduction of emission, clean production and
safe production and to minimize the impact of production
operations on the environment. The Group has implemented
the full process environmental management on its construction
projects, and introduced the pre-EIA pilot process. The system
of "Three Simultaneities” has been implemented. That is,
the design, construction and production of environmental
protection facilities as well as the main construction project are
carried out simultaneously. For the environmental risk factors
such as the emission of “three wastes” (waste water, waste
gas and solid waste) in the production process, we carried
out research and established a multi-level risk prevention
and control mechanism, and formulated strict environmental
protection measures to prevent pollution and protect the
ecological environment from the sources of pollution.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Employment and recruitment — The Group recruits talents
based on the principle of openness, equality, competition and
merits. It provides equal opportunities to employees, creating
a fair and non-discriminatory work atmosphere. Approximately
99% of the employees of the Group are located in China and
the Group strictly observes the requirements of labor laws and
regulations of China without breaching any relevant codes or
regulations. The Group also introduces production operation
staff through professional employment agencies. The Company
treats every employee as equal. Their employment, benefits and
promotion will not be affected by social identities including
ethnic group, race, nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual

orientation, political camp and marital status.

BERRRER-ASEZ NHEERRER
TERREEBR BREOERS BREE.
REEE BHIBLEELHRENTERD
R -AEEERERERDBIZRFEEE
THERMTHAM ATREREREETET

RRERT FAEET RASREERN =R
Bl B - St AEERRET =] (K B
RMERERY)IINERERARRER HARZ
%R E R BT S - N E B VRSB AR E
B i (EIRBADIR IS R AR L RE o

i

HEEAE

\

ERERE-AEEURH TF HF BE
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MBEER 2 RTE - EERBRER FOER - Nk
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Health and safety — The Group upholds the core principle
of “safety first”, fosters a people-oriented culture and
promotes healthy life and safe workplace. The Group has set
safety objectives and targets in accordance with the standard
established by International Standard 1SO45001 Occupational
Safety and Health Management System certification and
regularly evaluates to ensure compliance with the Group’
s health and safety requirements. The Group’s Guangzhou
Factory has passed the certification of I1SO45001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management System. In addition to
ISO, the Group has also established a safety committee to
monitor the Group’s health and safety matters. These internal
policies provide the Group with a framework to ensure timely
assessment of safety and to assess the current manufacture
process in accordance with the Government and the Group’
s health and safety standards. Facing the novel coronavirus,
the Group’s Guangzhou Factory and Suzhou Factory, being
relatively compact manufacturing enterprises, have strictly
complied with the requirements for epidemic prevention and
control in mainland China, and have set up leading groups
and emergency offices for epidemic prevention and control. By
promoting all the staff to take their responsibilities seriously,
management measures have been implemented in details. With
strict screening of employees’ health conditions, management
and control of external personnel, and assured supply of
epidemic prevention supplies such as masks and disinfectants,
normal working order of the factories is guaranteed. As of the
date of this report, the Group has no cases of novel coronavirus
infection.

Development and training — The training of the Group
focuses on important issues while giving a comprehensive
coverage on all matters. In 2019, the Group conducted training
in line with the training requirements for senior and middle
management, professional and technical personnel, first-line
management and production operation staff in accordance
with the training requirements of each position. Independent
professional organizations are engaged to provide training
on various aspects of mental health and lean management,
in order to cultivate staff with sound physical and mental
health and to enhance and improve the knowledge and
working skills of staff at different levels. During the year, a
total of 486 key training programs have been completed, and
approximately 3,280 hours have been devoted to staff training
for approximately 21,600 employees.

BREEZ2-ASERTF[Z2F -1 HZ%L
RE T AANBRE U HREBEREER
TEfZE - AEE DR EEFIZAEIS045001
BEZ2HLEEEBRAREZREHLZEE
ERIEE WEHTFEAERRENETNR
B ZERFHEER-AEEZENIHE B
BISO4S00 1 B ERBELX 2 EREB R 2RE K
ISON  REBENRERULEZESG AEER
AEEMREALTE2ET -ZERNBEEAL
SEREHIER BRENETZE2TE  URIE
RENEASEENREET2IZETGHRGR
ERE -mEFERS  AEEEMNITBRMERMN
IHERABRHTENREDE  BRIKET
PR AKESEEHENER R EIERIEE
BNEMEZHAE -EEREET BEERE
MEEEE M - BMBRBEmAETREMRR &
EINRAE BROZB HSREMHZEARAOMR
BERETIRMES TIERF - #EIEARE
BE AEBENATARRS LR -

BREZI - AEEEIIREED 2EERE -
RZTE—NEFE AEEZRBRFIFELSHR
BEBANE EERMAB -EEEEABRAE
FEETHITHE S B RMMERE K25
REFEBIEERBETOERRERBREE
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EMNRESHEIZNSE MR 2F
HEKASCIEETIFINEE - EEIHEIIHEE
AT3,2801E/ N - HETEFI4921,600 A K
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Labour standard - The Group strictly complies with the
provisions of labour laws and relevant laws and regulation
of China and we employ employees who have reached the
legal working age and hold valid identity documents. The
Group recruits on the basis of fairness, just, openness and
voluntariness, and does not force labor to sign an illegal labour
contract. The Group employs employees in accordance with the
requirements strictly, and there is no illegal employment. No
child labor is allowed to work in any workplace of the Group.
The Group also employs interns and temporary workers in
accordance with the law.

Management of supply chain — The Group has established
a relatively comprehensive supplier management system.
Requirements of confidentiality, integrity and product quality
are made clear to suppliers in the processes of supplier
recruitment, supplier evaluation, materials and equipment
procurement, price negotiation and supplier replacement
to ensure the confidentiality of both the Group’s and the
suppliers’ sensitive information, to guarantee the product
qualities and employees’ integrity in the management of
supply chain. The Group requires all suppliers of raw material
to provide test reports on hazardous substances issued by
qualified independent third-party testing institutions and carry
out long-term quality supervision and regular reviews on all
suppliers. In the event that there is a significant change in the
suppliers and/or their qualifications or there is a serious quality
problem in the supplied goods, the Group may suspend the
supplier in question at any time and, if necessary, revoke the
supplier’'s qualification as a qualified supplier of our Group to

ensure the reliability in the quality of our products.
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Product responsibility — The Group has adopted the following
measures to improve product safety and quality: in order to
reduce the quality risk in production, a quality assurance team
has been set up, the testing and grading at the product’s key
control point have been more frequent and product quality
issues are followed up in a timely manner; special testing
equipment to conduct internal supervision of product quality is
used and internal quality control processes are strictly enforced;
the "Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (“WEEE")
directive and the "Restriction of Hazardous Substances”
("RoHS") Directive of the European Union are complied with
and the halogen-free standard is adopted in the production
process.

Anti-corruption — We have formulated a “Guideline for
External Relations” for staff and entered into “Agreement on
United Front of Integrity” with suppliers in light of the actual
situation of the Group, in order to strengthen the corporate
governance and internal control, regulate the behaviours
in business operation, safeguard the legitimate rights and
interests of the shareholders and promote the healthy and
stable development of the Company. The Group encourages
employees to report behaviours which are suspected to involve
corruptions and has established a complaint hotline and e-mail.
The Group clearly stipulates that all employees who commit
fraudulent activities are subject to corresponding economic
and administrative sanctions and those who have violated the
criminal law shall be sent to the judicial authorities according
to the laws. During the year under review, such systems
played a sound monitoring and prevention role in the Group's
risk control and anti-corruption management in which no
significant weakness has been identified.

Participation in community — The Group attaches importance
in contributing to the community, improving community
through the devotion of time, energy and resources, offering
assistance to poor people or disadvantaged groups, and
improving the living conditions of the community. Looking
ahead, the Group will continue to identify new opportunities
for the promotion of sustainable development through business
operations, strengthen participation in the community, and
foster a culture of dedication within the community.

EREE-ASECRAUTERRESER
ZEMEkmE  RREEREENMERR
BPIRCIL Gn E R AE /AR ONOK S dn BE R PR I B
e Rl SRR e F A BB IREEmMmE BN
RMERABRARBYEME TN MmEER:
HITBEEBOANBREEFRT REEREE
BETEERBA(ERERNEFTRE) S
(TWEEE]) KBRRHIEEFERRETEA
REUBFERDHIES) (TRoHS |) MERIRAE -

RES—RINR A EaEMA BRG] - R EE
BITR HERRAZEERZ REQFRE B
EER BAAKEERBER GIETEI (Y
SIRERE) REHERREE (RBEARGE
£) F-AEERBE TERISME)TEENTT
BRI TRBEREFIRFNETEES-
AEEAERTHMAILARRTRANET
#4e TR EBEMITHE A - IR LA - 4K
BRI BERE - REBEFER  ZFHEMR
FRASEZAREHERFREEEREERS
ZEERED A WEBBEMERTDE-

HESHE-TEEEREELS  REEHE 1
HRERREL R BRI ELE - U
HEMREFGE -RERR AEESEEYD
EEBEBLEMRDAURERRIHKE N
MBS R WHMENERER AL -

53



54

AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Directors’ Report

ESERE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of the
manufacture and sales of flexible printed circuit and flexible
packaging substrates (including components) which are used
in electronic products. An analysis of the Group's turnover by
geographical market of its customers and operating segments
for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and is also
engaged in the sourcing of raw materials and equipment
and trading of flexible printed circuits related products. The
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year under
review and a discussion on the Group’s future development are
set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 7 of this
report and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
16 to 30. These discussions form part of this Directors’ report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year under review, as far as the Board and
management are aware, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and
operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to
meet its immediate and long-term business goals. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its employees,
customers and suppliers.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the environmental policy and performance
of the Group during the year under review is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 42 to
53 of this report. The Environmental, Social and Governance
Report form part of the Directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The industry which the Group’s businesses operate in and the
performance of the Group are influenced by changes in market
conditions, technology advancement, evolvement in industry
standards, customers’ demands for the Group’s products,
and changes in preferences of the ultimate customers. The
Group operates its businesses in accordance with various
industry standards and government laws and regulations.
In order to meet the market demands for product functions
update and new products, the Group has made relatively
substantial investments towards the research and development
("R&D") of new products and new production technologies,
notwithstanding that the R&D expenses of certain projects are
supplemented by government grants. Further, the majority of
the Group's turnover is generated from a few major customers.
Hence, the Group endeavours to respond to such operational
shifts and market demands in a timely manner, to develop new
product application sector, to successfully research and develop
new products and new technologies, to maintain good co-
operative relationships with our customers, so as to avoid and/
or minimize the negative impact of such risks.

The novel coronavirus pandemic and the unstable China-United
States relations has also brought relatively high uncertainties to
the market. The Group will pay close attention to the changes
in the economy, industry and major customers to evaluate its
risk exposures and the impacts on orders and supply chain as
well as take timely measures.

Furthermore, the Group is affected by market risks (such as
currency and interest rate fluctuations), credit risks and liquidity
risks during its ordinary course of business. Details of the
financial risks management of the Group is set out in note 28
of the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 82.

The Directors recommend the payment of final dividend of
HK1 cent per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: HK1 cent per share) to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday,
5 June 2020. Subject to the approval by the shareholders at
"AGM"), the
proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or around
Thursday, 18 June 2020.

the forthcoming annual general meeting (the

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 3 June 2020 to Friday, 5 June 2020 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the share registrar of the
Company in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 2 June 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements during the year under review in the

property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note

25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date
of this report are as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (Chairman)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Gao Xiaoguang

Mr. Jia Junan

Mr. Wang Chunsheng

Ms. Zhang Xiaoming

Mr. Yu Daochun

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Hung Chi Yuen Andrew

Mr. Cui Zheng

Mr. Yang Zhaoguo
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Pursuant to Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
exceeding one-third, shall retire from office, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last election.
Accordingly, Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng, Mr. Gao Xiaoguang and
Mr. Wang Chunsheng shall retire at the AGM in accordance
with the Articles of Association. Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng, Mr. Gao
Xiaoguang and Mr. Wang Chunsheng, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

During the year under review, no Director resigned from his
office or refused to stand for re-election to his office due to
reasons relating to the affairs of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years and
thereafter will continue until being terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other. Each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors has been appointed by the Company
under a letter of appointment for a term of three years which
is terminable by not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and chief executives’

are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company were as follows:

Name of Subsidiaries

MELATREME EEfR
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RBE-T—-NWF+_A=+—HILEFE K
REAMBARIZEERIATALHRE:

Name of Directors

AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd.

Chai zZhi Qiang (Chairman), Xiong Zheng Feng,

Li Ying Hong, Zhuang Zhijian

ZREMN(BEB)EFEEXEEARAA

AKM Electronic Technology (Suzhou)
Company Limited
ZREFEFEHE (8M) BR A A

Anrick Electronics India Private Limited
Anrick Electronics India Private Limited

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules:

wEw (FE)

CRRICUE - FHRAT AR

Xiong Zheng Feng (executive Director)

FRIEUE (H7TEF)

Xie Sheng, Xie Jianjun
W WEE

EERESITHRAERRKRM - HERD
REERz2EERAR

BRTXFIBEEN RZE—NAEFETA=1+—
B ZREFERARARRTRABRESFEA
ZHMBARARBDREREEE (EXRLER
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KRB GPIE352{F R F 2 B LA - HARE
EHRAME TS EMETAESETES
R ZBETR (MRESTA ) REMNE A QT
N Z P 2 s SRR



AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

60
Directors’ Report

ESERE

(@) The Company

(i) Interest in shares of the Company

Class and number
of securities of
which interested

(a) =27

() RERGRGZEZ

Approximate
percentage of
total number
of issued shares
in the Company

(other than as at

Name of Director or Name of the Company under equity Long/Short 31 December

Chief Executive in which interest is held derivatives)  Capacity position 2019

RZZ-nF

R R tZA=+—-H

EFERIRMA BEERARZH

REREEEEZ (R&HTE ERTROBER

ESYESTHRASHE DRER TAERD) &EH HR/RE BOELH

Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng  the Company 9,400,000  Beneficial owner Long 0.61
ordinary shares

REBRE NS 9,400,000 E#ZEBA e 0.61
L@k

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang the Company 7,975,000  Beneficial owner Long 0.52
ordinary shares

REBRELE NG| 7,975,000 EHEFA L3 0.52

¥l

(ii) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company

Class and number
of underlying

(i) ZRAEHEHERG 2R

Approximate
percentage of
total number of
issued shares in

Name of Director or Name of the Company shares in which Long/short  the Company as at

Chief Executive in which interest is held interest is held  Capacity position 31 December 2019

RZB-hF

+ZA=+-8

EARRER

RERERERERZ EERERG BRTRSG

ESYRSTHRAGHRE RAEH BRvERRBE &6 #E/ KR ZBAESIH
(Note)
(Hi:)

Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng  the Company 1,320,000  Beneficial owner Long 0.09
ordinary shares

FRIEEEAE NG 1,320,008 E&mHEAA L35 0.09
ERR

Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang the Company 1,170,000  Beneficial owner Long 0.08
ordinary shares

REBRELE VNG 1,170,008  EzHEAA L3} 0.08

EEk

I
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Note:

On 27 March 2019, 1,320,000 restricted stock and 1,170,000
restricted stock have been granted to Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng and Mr.
Chai zhi Qiang respectively at the grant price of HK$0.77 per share in
accordance with the restricted stock incentive scheme adopted by the
Company on 13 December 2018. There is no change in the number
of restricted stock granted to Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng and Mr. Chai Zhi
Qiang since the date of grant on 27 March 2019.

(b) The associated corporation

As at 31 December 2019, to the best knowledge of the
the Directors, none of the Directors nor chief executive of
the Company had or was deemed to have any interests
or short positions in the shares or the underlying shares
or debentures of any associated corporations of the
Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO and the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company,
its holding Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year under review or at the
end of the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the year
under review.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, to the best knowledge of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company, shareholders
(other than Directors) who had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly
or indirectly interested in 10% or more of all issued shares to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any members

of the Group are set out as below:

i

EaH

REFEEERL M T X EEMAL T2 H
REMEABB LB 2 ERRARZ AL -
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AEEEZERAARRFMA L ZHFMFBR
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Class and number of
securities in which

Annual Report 2019

—B-NEFH

Approximate
percentage of
total number of
issued shares
in the Company

interested (other than Long/short  as at 31 December
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity under equity derivatives) position 2019
RZE-N&
+=A=+-H
EEAREH
BEzRHZERREE ERTROBEZ
TERRER 54 (RASTET AR #R/ KR R
(Note 5)
(H5)
Alpha Luck (Note 1) Beneficial owner 553,900,000 Long 36.01
ordinary shares
ZMER (WE1) EREBA 553,900,000 % 4 i e 36.01
China North Industries Corporation Interest in controlled 553,900,000 Long 36.01
("CNIC") (Note 1 and 2) corporation ordinary shares
REEFIEBERAR (MLFIE]) WREFAR 2 BR 553,900,000 & i L35} 36.01
(Mit1k2)
China North Industries Group Interest in controlled 553,900,000 Long 36.01
Corporation (“CNIGC") (Note 2) corporation ordinary shares
HEEETEEEERAA WREFAR 2 BR 553,900,000 & i L35} 36.01
([PEERTEZE]) (Mit2)
China South Industries Group Interest in controlled 553,900,000 Long 36.01
Corporation ("CSIGC") (Note 2) corporation ordinary shares
PEASREEERERAR WREFAR 2 BR 553,900,000 & i L35} 36.01
([PEEREE]) (Mit2)
Goertek (HongKong) Co., Limited Beneficial owner 363,650,000 Long 23.64
("HK Goertek") (Note 3) ordinary shares
EETRBRERBERAF BREBA 363,650,000 & 1 & L35} 23.64
(IBEFBRR]) (HiH3)
Weifang Goertek Trading Co., Limited Interest in controlled 363,650,000 Long 23.64
("Weifang Goertek") (Note 3) corporation ordinary shares
EGTRESERAR ([EHTE]) WREFAR 2 BR 363,650,000 & 1 & L35} 23.64
(Hf#3)
GoerTek (Note 3) Interest in controlled 363,650,000 Long 23.64
corporation ordinary shares
B (H:23) WREFAR 2 BR 363,650,000 & 1 & L35} 23.64
Anjie Technology (Hong Kong) Company ~ Beneficial owner 200,000,000 Long 13.00
Limited (“HK Anjie") (Note 4) ordinary shares
ZEMB(EB)ERRA EHEBA 200,000,000/ & 1 fix L3} 13.00
(IERRR]) (Wit4)
Anjie Technology (Note 4) Interest in controlled 200,000,000 Long 13.00
corporation ordinary shares
REBE (Hit4) N VN A 33 200,000,000/ & 1 fix L3} 13.00
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Notes:

1. As Alpha Luck is wholly and beneficially owned by CNIC, CNIC is deemed to
be interested in the same number of shares of the Company held by Alpha
Luck under Part XV of the SFO.

2. As the equity interest of CNIC was owned as to 56.7% by CNIGC and as to
37.54% by CSIGC, both of CNIGC and CSIGC are deemed to be interested
in the same number of shares of the Company held by CNIC under Part XV
of the SFO.

3. As HK Goertek is wholly and beneficially owned by Weifang Goertek, which
in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by GoerTek, both Weifang Goertek
and GoerTek are deemed to be interested in the same number of shares of
the Company held by HK Goertek under Part XV of the SFO.

4. As HK Anjie is wholly and beneficially owned by Anjie Technology, Anjie
Technology is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares of the
Company held by HK Anjie under Part XV of the SFO.

5. None of Alpha Luck, CNIC, CNIGC, CSIGC, HK Goertek, Weifang Goertek,
GoerTek, HK Anjie or Anjie Technology was interested in any securities of
the Company under equity derivatives.

SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a shareholder of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year under review or at any time during the year
under review.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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RESERVE

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserve available for
distribution to shareholders comprised the retained profit of
HK$58,422,000.

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 85 and note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATIONS OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company considers that all of its
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group's retirement benefits schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merits,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME

The restricted stock incentive scheme (“the Scheme”) of the
Company was approved and adopted by the Board on 13
December 2018, and was duly passed by the independent
shareholders by way of poll at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 31 January 2019. The Scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme within the meaning of
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme of
the Company. The details of the Scheme are as follows:

(1) Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to further improve
corporate governance of the Group, retain and motivate
its participants of the Scheme (“Scheme Participants”) to
make contributions to the long-term growth and profits
of the Group with a view to achieving the objectives
of increasing the value of the Group and to promote
a greater alignment of interests between the Scheme
Participants and the Shareholders.

(2) Scope of Scheme Participants

The Scheme Participants shall include the executive
Director(s), members of the senior management and
management personnel who, as determined by the Board,
contribute directly to the overall business performance
and sustainable development of the Company. The
participation in the Scheme by members of the Board and
senior management, who are under the administration
of the party committee of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council ("SASAC"), have been approved by the SASAC on
28 December 2018. Unless approved by the Shareholders,
the Scheme Participants shall exclude Shareholders who
hold more than 5% equity interest in the Company
carrying voting rights on the grant date. The assessment
results of each Scheme Participant shall achieve grade B or
above according to the related measures for performance
appraisal of the Company.
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(3)

(4)

(5)

Restricted Stock

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board shall select the Scheme
Participants and determine the number of restricted stock
to be granted. The Company will appoint a trustee to
purchase the Shares from the secondary market and a
grant price shall be payable by the Scheme Participants.

Maximum Grant

The maximum total number of Shares comprised in the
restricted stock to be granted under the Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at the date of approval of the Scheme at the
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") (i.e. 31 January
2019).

Unless approval is obtained at the Shareholders’ general
meeting by way of special resolution, the total number of
restricted stock granted or to be granted to any Scheme
Participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as at the date of approval of
the Scheme at the EGM (i.e. 31 January 2019).

As at 31 January 2019, the Company’s total number of
issued shares was 1,538,237,500 ordinary shares.

Duration of the Scheme

The Scheme shall be effective for a term of 10 years
commenced from the adoption date (i.e. 31 January
2019), unless early termination is proposed by the Board
and approved by the Shareholders. Unless otherwise
required,

termination of the Scheme shall remain effective and could

the restricted stock granted before the

be unlocked according to the terms of the Scheme.

(3)

(4)
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(6)

(7)

Determination of the Grant Price

The grant price of the restricted stock to be granted to the
Scheme Participants shall be determined by the Board. The
base date for the determination of the grant price is the
grant date. The pricing basis of the grant price shall not be
set lower than the highest of the following: (i) the closing
price of the Shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
the grant date; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the grant date; and (iii) the average
closing price of the Shares in the 20 trading days, 60
trading days or 120 trading days immediately before the
grant date. The grant price shall be 50% of the pricing
basis and shall not be lower than the most recent audited
net asset per Share.

Lock-up Period and Unlocking Period

In principle, the lock-up period shall be for a period of
not less than two years commencing from the grant
date, during which the restricted stock granted to the
Scheme Participants shall be locked up and shall not be
transferred, used as guarantee or for repayment of debts.
In principle, the unlocking period shall be for a period
of not less than three years commencing from the expiry
of the lock-up period. Eligible restricted stock will be
gradually unlocked during the unlocking period.

Details of the Scheme were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 13 December 2018 and the circular
dated 16 January 2019.

On 14 February 2019 and 27 March 2019, the Board
approved the initial grant of restricted stock under
the Scheme, pursuant to which 27,500,000 shares of
restricted stock were granted to 81 selected scheme
participants on 14 February 2019 at the grant price of
HK$0.65 per share and 2,490,000 shares of restricted
stock were granted to Mr. Xiong Zheng Feng (executive
director) and Mr. Chai Zhi Qiang (chief executive officer)
on 27 March 2019 at the grant price of HK$0.77
per share. As of 31 December 2019, the trustee had
purchased 4,480,000 shares in aggregate from the
secondary market. As of 31 December 2019, none of the
restricted stock granted had been unlocked.
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(7)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount
of turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 64% of the Group’s turnover
and the turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer
accounted for approximately 27% of the Group's turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 24% of the Group’s purchases
and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier
accounted for approximately 7% of the Group’s purchases.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, their
respective close associates nor any shareholder (who or which
to the best knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company) has any interest in the
top five customers and top five suppliers of the Group during
the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed in this report, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31 December
2019.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or their respective close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
which causes or may cause significant competition with the
business of the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 6 December 2016, the Company (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) and GoerTek Inc. (“GoerTek”, for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) in relation to the
transactions for selling of parts, components and other
products (including but not limited to FPC products) for a
term commenced from 1 January 2017 and expired on 31
December 2019. Such transactions constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules. As the Purchase Agreement expired on
31 December 2019, on 13 January 2020, the Company (for
itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) and GoerTek (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a renewed
purchase agreement (the “Renewed Purchase Agreement”)
for a term commenced from 1 January 2020 and expiring
on 31 December 2022. The Renewed Purchase Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder, as well as the
annual caps for each of the years ending 31 December 2020,
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 were approved
by the independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 20 February 2020. Details of
the terms of the Renewed Purchase Agreement, the continuing
connected transactions and the annual caps were disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 13 January 2020 and
the circular dated 4 February 2020. The annual cap set for
the continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2019 was RMB300,000,000. During the year under
review, the Group sold circuit board products of approximately
RMB83,389,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$94,793,000)
to GoerTek and its subsidiaries.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 31
December 2019, AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Limited
("AKM Panyu”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
had commenced the sales of FPC products to Suzhou Anjie
Technology Co. Ltd (ERINZ 2B D BR 2 F) (“Anjie
Technology”) since June 2019 as part of its ordinary and
usual course of business. During the year under review, the
Group sold FPC products of approximately RMB5,762,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,550,000) to Anjie
Technology, which had exceeded the minimum exemption
threshold of HK$3,000,000, while the respective applicable
percentage ratios were less than 5%. The transactions
concerned are therefore subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but are exempted from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions concerned
have been approved, confirmed and ratified by the board of
Directors on 31 December 2019. On 31 December 2019, the
Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) and Anjie
Technology (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered
into a framework materials sale and purchase agreement
(“Framework Agreement”) for a term commenced from 31
December 2019 and expiring on 31 December 2020, and the
annual cap for the year 2020 was set at HK$60,000,000.
Details of the terms of the Framework Agreement, the
continuing connected transaction and the annual cap were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 31
December 2019 and 15 January 2020.

The Directors (including all the independent non-executive
Directors) had reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and had confirmed that the above continuing
connected transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company has
received report from the independent auditor containing their
finding and conclusions in respect of the above continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the independent auditor’s report has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The auditor has reported to the Directors that (a) except for
an amount of HK$6,550,000 related to the sales of parts
components and other products to Anjie Technology, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Company’s board of directors; (b) for
transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (c)
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions; and (d) with respect to the aggregate
amount of each continuing connected transactions, except
for the amount of HK$6,550,000 related to the sales of parts
components and other products to Anije Technology, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded the

annual cap as set by the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into certain transactions with parties regarded as “related
parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details
of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are disclosed in note
36 to the financial statements. The Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed in the paragraph
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report,
the other related party transactions disclosed in note 36
were not regarded as connected transactions or were exempt
from reporting, announcement and shareholder approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to
the Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the date of this report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The articles of association of the Company provides that every
Director, manager, secretary or officer as well as every auditor
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/
she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has not entered
into permitted indemnity provisions with the Directors. During
the year under review, the Company has taken out and
maintained appropriate insurance to cover potential legal
actions against its Directors.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the restricted stock incentive scheme disclosed on
pages 67 to 69 of this report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Group or existed during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

DONATIONS

The Group had not made charitable or other donations of
HK$10,000 or above during the year under review (2018: Nil).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited as the
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

AKM Industrial Company Limited
Xiong Zheng Feng
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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OPINION

33 Hysan Avenue

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AKM Industrial Company Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 82 to 215, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

B EETSE

MREFFEESRERMANBEHE A8
HEMBHRRNBIRAEENER -ZEFF
REERMBRABEEGAVBHRERLEARR
BETEEMN -RATeHELFTHEHRES
MER-

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on page 119.

The key audit matter
BRESSBE

BLHREMBHRERMFARFENIAN G R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMOET TENFEEEBEE

Allowances for inventories

FERE

We identified the allowances for inventories as
a key audit matter because of the significant
degree of management judgment and estimation
uncertainty to determine the amount of allowances
based on net realisable values.
HRREASRFEET 2 RESBINEREE
B0 e IR JE M K AR N EEE L FUE RIS F S R
BRERBREFEE

As disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amount
of the inventories as at 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$124,848,000
net of accumulated allowances for inventories of
approximately HK$12,712,000.
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BIT) °

Our procedures in relation to the allowances for inventories

included:

BPEFERERBNEF 2

Understanding the management’s assessment in
estimating the net realisable values of the inventories
and the Group's policy adopted for making allowances
to write off or write down inventories to their net
realisable values.
BHREREERNAAFEN SR FERNTER B8
| 5t 51 4 8 A LA 88 Sk MO 17 & 2 AT = 3R S B FTERER
B BUR

Testing the appropriateness of the aged analysis of
inventories on a sample basis by checking the ageing
date to date of purchase or manufacture.
mBWMEIRX SRR HAEBESEEB LY U
ARTFERKROITHSEIE-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

The key audit matter
HRESTER
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ESTTHENMEEERSEE

Allowances for inventories (Cont’d)

FEREE (F)

Management of the Group reviewed the aged
analysis of the inventories at the end of the
reporting period to determent whether any
provision is required to write off or write down
inventories to their net realisable values, based on
the latest selling prices and current marketable
conditions.

EXEEREER TRBERRIFERRD T
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OTHER MATTER

e  Evaluating the reasonableness of the management's
estimates of the net realisable values of the inventories
by comparing the unit cost of the inventories, on a
sample basis, to the latest invoice prices of sale.
BAMETN BEENEONEEREEMKRLLE
AAEREER TR ERFENMAANSE ML

e  Evaluating the historical accuracy of the allowance
made by the Group by comparing the allowance made
in prior year to actual amount of inventories written
off in the current year.
BEFFEONREERNFEMBETEENERBEL
B LRHE BESEEFELBENELERE-

HibEEH

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year E&£BEE T N\F+_A=Z+—HBILFE
ended 31 December 2018, were audited by another auditor HARAMBEHRELEH D —ZEAES ER =
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated ZT—NF=A+/\ARZERAMFHRFTER
BREER-

financial statements on 18 March 2019.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH THE
GOVERNANCE

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion,
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BRD R

RBE R F AR S M MR A AER
BEE)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M % BRD )R

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Li Man Choi.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Man Choi

Practicing Certificate Number: P03333

Hong Kong
27 March 2020
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AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEaRkHEtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FHERT FET
Revenue WA 5 1,463,630 1,223,803
Cost of sales & AR (1,254,943) (1,071,832)
Gross profit E A 208,687 151,971
Other income E b g A 6 41,171 56,253
Distribution costs Pol =IO N (20,952) (19,433)
Administrative expenses FTHE (40,017) (41,187)
Research and development expenses fift % & (57,352) (63,774)
Share of results of associates JEAG B & A R EE AR 1,202 163
Finance costs & AR 7 (2,091) (215)
Profit before taxation B B¢ B 4 A 8 130,648 83,778
Taxation g 9 (12,937) (14,444)
Profit for the year attributable to RATHER ANEBERFE
owners of the Company i A 117,711 69,334
Other comprehensive (expenses) Hih2m (Fx) Mz
income:
ltems that may be reclassified e s B BHREE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmoHE:
Exchange differences arising BREFINEB I B RE
on translation of financial EEZIERZE
statements of foreign operations (26,238) (60,102)
Share of exchange differences of JE1EEEE R A2
associates E N =58 (106) (183)
(26,344) (60,285)
Item that will not be reclassified to  #HT@REBRETHIEE
profit or loss: Ba&mIEE
Fair value gain(loss) on equity EEREZEANFERA
instruments designated Htzmk=sz
at fair value through other BHTAZAFE
comprehensive income W (BE) 8,253 (1,359)
Total other comprehensive expenses H fth 2 [ i % £8 58 (18,091) (61,644)
Total comprehensive income for KRABHEEABEEREE
the year attributable to FHWEETE
owners of the Company 99,620 7,690
Earnings per share BlRAEN
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREE (B 12 HK7.66 cents 1l HK4.58 cents 35l

E—

‘:



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

At 31 December 2019 R-ZFE—HF+-A=+—H
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2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=2 FExT FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER S 13 798,687 779,632
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 14 49,064 -
Prepaid lease payments TN HEERE 15 - 45,717
Interests in associates A EWNC] A e 16 36,415 3,828
Equity instrument designated at BEREBEATEFT AEAM
fair value through other THWE R TA
comprehensive income 17 25,808 18,078
Deposits for property, ME- -BEREB LS
plant and equipment 13 12,952 20,980
922,926 868,235
Current assets MEEE
Inventories EE 18 124,848 117,812
Trade and other receivables B 5 KkEMERFRIE 19 679,221 528,870
Prepaid lease payments AT &R IB 15 - 1,207
Tax recoverable Ay Y Bl F 18 - 102
Pledged bank deposits BRI RITER 20 2,364 2,358
Bank balances and cash wITHEBRLES 21 119,707 152,865
926,140 803,214
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMEMNKIE 22 467,545 425,940
Amounts due to associates JE W Bt R B 2 FRIE 16 4,617 -
Deferred income PEIE WA 23 3,968 763
Tax payables R R Rl 13,118 5,371
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 39,358 -
Lease liabilities HEHE 14 1,112 -
529,718 432,074
Net current assets FRBEE 396,422 371,140
Total assets less current liabilities BEERIBEE 1,319,348 1,239,375
o ST

g

— 4 ]\

~ "3-—1—4-
i
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B AR OR &

At 31 December 2019 R-ZFE—HFE+-A=+—H

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
k=2 FET FAET
Capital and reserves % AN K 15 1
Share capital % A 25 921,553 921,553
Reserves ] 345,597 266,464
Equity attributable to owners of KARHRE AEGER
the Company 1,267,150 1,188,017
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 3,481 -
Deferred income PRIE U A 23 37,262 24,042
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIE B E 26 11,455 10,196
Liability due to a shareholder EN—BREZEBE 27 - 17,120
52,198 51,358
1,319,348 1,239,375

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 215 were BBEE@N T -TF=F -+t AL ETRE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  FIZ5E82E2158 2 42 A M HKiRE  WH T7&E

27 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: BERREZF:
XIONG ZHENG FENG HUNG CHI YUEN ANDREW
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
REIF % HER

EF EBEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EREREHRK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

NG EPN 3
Fair value Restricted
Statutory through other stock incentive
surplus  comprehensive scheme
reserve income reserve
Share (note () ("FVTOCI") (note (b) Translation Retained
capital below) reserve below) reserve profits Total
RATEA
Hip2E
EERS Wi ([BATE RHMRE
e GAHRRE  ABTHESE
BE  (FAhiEE) W) RE  (Taliie) BERE REEH aE
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TER TER TER TR TER TiER TEL
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N§-A—-B 466,667 22,551 2,380 - 38,811 210,414 740,823
Profit for the year RERRT - - - - - 69,334 69,334
Exchange differences arising on translation ;85N ERHBHRE
of financial statements of foreign EECERER
operations - - - - (60,102) - (60,102)
Fair value loss on equity instruments BEARATEIAEMZE
designated at fair value through WHEzERIAY
other comprehensive income ATEBE - - (1,359) - - - (1,359)
Share of exchange differences of associates A58 &1 7] E % 2% - - - - (183) - (183)
Total comprehensive (expenses) income ~ AFE 27 (FX)
for the year wRE - - (1,359) - (60,285) 69,334 7,690
Issue of shares BORG 455,850 - - - - - 455,850
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BT B EER FMA

shares (964) - - - - - (964)

Transfer to statutory surplus reserve BRZETRNHERE - 11,408 - - - (11,408) -
Dividends paid (note 77) BRRE (Hit11) - - - - - (15,382) (15,382)
At 31 December 2018 “Z-\F+ZA=1-H 921,553 33,959 1,021 - (21,474) 252,958 1,188,017
At 1 January 2019 RZE-ALF-A-8 921,553 33,959 1,021 - (21,474) 252,958 1,188,017
Profit for the year RERRF - - - - - 17,11 17,111
Exchange differences arising on translation 2 '@%%Wﬁ%ﬁii
of financial statements of foreign EEZERER
operations - - - - (26,238) - (26,238)
Fair value gain on equity instruments EERRATEGALMEE
designated at fair value through HﬁlﬁﬁZﬁéﬁﬁIEZ
other comprehensive income AT ERE - - 8,253 - - - 8,253
Share of exchange differences of AMi-MRERAELER
an associate - - - - (106) - (106)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) — AFF2E M (FX) B8
for the year - - 8,253 - (26,344) 117,11 99,620
Purchase of shares under the restricted ~ RIER 1 REHBa 2IE
stock incentive scheme (note 34) iR (Hi34) - - - (5,105) - - (5,105)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve ERDETRBHE - 1,273 - - - (11,273) -
Dividends paid (note 71) BRRE (Hit11) - - - - - (15,382) (15,382)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1+-A 921,553 45,232 9,274 (5,105) (47,818) 344,014 1,267,150
Note: ki
(a) Statutory surplus reserve represented the People’s Republic of China (a) ‘ATZRHBHEIEPEARLME ([FE])EATHE-
(the "PRC") statutory reserves. Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations RETFRBEZERERAQR (T&EEME) P BEH B
and the articles of association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company NAIMERMAE FEMBAREABET L R10%8
(as defined in note 1), the PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer not e ERAEHE (A ECRARER) EAREBERE
less than 10% of their post-tax profit to statutory reserves (i.e. statutory © HERFAEEZTHEAMERNS0%HIE - RIEH
surplus reserve) as reserve funds until the aggregated amounts have EAERARA RS HEETAUBEBEEARA
reached 50% of their registered capital. These reserves should only FARBEREELERE
be used to make up losses, or conversion into capital, or expansion of
production and operation according to the relevant rules in the PRC.
(b) As explained in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, during (b)) AL EMIEHRERMEISAMEE 22— LF+=

the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company acquired 4,480,000
(2018:nil) ordinary shares of the Company from the open market by
the independent trustee of the Company with a total consideration of
approximately HK$5,105,000 (2018:nil) in respect of the restricted stock
incentive scheme of the Company. The carrying amount of the shares
held as at the year-end was presented as a deduction against equity as
"Restricted stock incentive scheme reserve”.

H_+ ALEEE AR WEISE%IJIMXW%&@J;#%JEEZK

AR Z BN ZFE AR AR TS E E4,480,0000% T @A
h@(*f J\EFF) - BR{BAAS5,105,000% 7T
RAFEEABENRZIEESERENBESD R
MR M E T B -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEHEMEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXER
Profit before taxation B B B S 130,648 83,778
Adjustments for: MTHSBEIEL AR
Share of results of an associate FE(—[EtE ARIFEE (1,202) (163)
Finance costs & B AR 2,091 215
Interest income B A (2,834) (7,372)
Provision for allowance EEEIEERE
for credit losses 402 127
Allowance for (net reversal of FERE
allowance for) inventories (BB mF5E) 99 (684)
Amortisation of prepaid lease T8 7H & 5) I8 4 8
payments - 1,250
Depreciation of property, ME- -BELREHB o ITE
plant and equipment 114,234 89,830
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FREEEZINE 3,119 -
Foreign exchange difference on SEANRRIBGEHZ
inter-company balances E W =% (9,406) (23,185)
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - WERZHE2
plant and equipment 51 2,272 5,598
Deferred income recognised B R 2 EE R A (25,112) (32,549)
Operating cash flows before HEESEDAILE
movements in working capital BEamRE 214,311 116,845
Increase in inventories FE N (9,202) (26,685)
Increase in trade and other B 5 K Ho b e U SRIE 8 h0
receivables (160,963) (187,814)
Increase in trade and other B 5 Kk E A FRIEIE N
payables 54,138 31,452
Cash generated from (used in) KERE (R BRe
operations 98,284 (66,202)
Hong Kong Profits tax paid ENBEENEH - (790)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMSH (3.373) (14,989)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REXBPTE (FTFE)
(USED IN) FROM OPERATING REFHE
ACTIVITIES 94,911 (81,981)

E—




Annual Report 2019 —Z—hEFER

87

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEBRERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXH
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BELKE

equipment (146,282) (288,198)
Acquisition of investment WER—HBERRMEE

in an associate (31,491) -
Interest received 2T B8 2,834 7,372
Proceeds from disposals of property, H&E#%E  fH&E M

plant and equipment REFTISEIR 1,528 3,974
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBAEREER

ACTIVITIES (173,411) (276,852)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEERK
New bank borrowings raised FIIRITEE 45,680 11,542
Payment of shares under the 1R 15 IR 1 1 AR 522 B

restricted stock incentive scheme HE S A D (5,105) -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMEEAE (873) -
Government grants received 2 U BT R BY 42,748 27,540
(Decrease) increase in liability due to R —RZE Z B &

a shareholder () #hn (17,120) 17,120
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIEITEE (5,602) (78,869)
Interest paid B FB (2,091) (215)
Dividends paid XTI’ E (15,382) (15,382)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT P15 5RR - 455,850
Expenses on issue of shares BITRGO A - (964)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RMEXBRESREER

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 42,255 416,622
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN HeRESZEEER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 4) #iF 4 (36,245) 57,789
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H¥EBE&SRBESESHEHER

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 152,865 89,288
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE /NEE RSB 2 5

RATE CHANGES 3,087 5,788
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HXRERBESLZEHER

AT END OF THE YEAR, BRITESBRERS

REPRESENTING BANK

BALANCES AND CASH 119,707 152,865

Ny, il
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mARME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

GENERAL

AKM Industrial Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 9 December 1993.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM
("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) with effect from 18 August
2004. On 18 June 2014, the Company transferred the
listing of its shares from GEM to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company
is situated at Rooms 2708-11, 27th Floor, West Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong, and the principal place of business of the Company
is situated at 63 Huan Shi Road South, Information
Technology Park, Nansha District, Guangzhou City, the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and is
also engaged in sourcing of raw materials and equipment
and trading of flexible printed circuits ("FPC") and related
products. Its subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC
Subsidiaries”) are principally engaged in manufacture and
sales of FPC and flexible packaging substrates, sourcing
and sales of electronic components and other components

and products during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first
time, the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA").

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK International Uncertainty over Income Tax
Financial Reporting ~ Treatments
Interpretations
Committee
— Interpretation 23
Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Hong Kong Settlement
Accounting
Standard
("HKAS")19
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of other new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and position for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mARME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases, and
the related interpretations.

Impacts on application of HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements
with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant
changes to the lessee accounting by removing the
distinction between operating lease and finance lease and
requiring the recognition of right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value asset. In contrast to lessee accounting,
the requirements for lessor accounting have remained
largely unchanged. Details of these new accounting
policies are described in note 3. The Group has applied
HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity, where appropriate, at 1 January 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17 Leases.

On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group has elected to apply
the practical expedient to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already existed

prior to the date of initial application.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

Impacts on application of HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to
the related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii)
transition.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the practical
expedients to leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the
extent relevant to the respective lease contracts, elected
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with lease term ends within 12 months of the date
of initial application.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. BRI RIGFT AT B HERELE

B (TEEMBREED]) (&)

ERUBHRELEANFE1REE (&F)

BREENBHREERFEI6FEEZZE
(#)

ABAHEA

AKEE BRI LAE 6
B R YEREREARN (ZFNF
—B—8)®i-

RZZE-NF—A—B AEEEREE
Mg S ERN6.C80)(INRMBENHEE
ERENSRERRBEIMNEERBENERRE

REER EAE BB REEF 165718
THRETEP AR REBIREREE
B BERBEAGTENE TR DA
REEHERRZXEESNHHEEERER
EBTNESEEN A BFTHEHIR
BRERBHEF12EARNERNEE
REMEEEREERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. BT RIEFTABT B EREE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING A (EBMEREER]) (£)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd) ERAMBRELEAEI6FEE (&)

Impacts on application of HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d) BREBHEREEREIHHEEZTE
(#&)

As a lessee (Cont’d) AR (E)

Differences between operating lease commitments as RZE-—N\EF+ZA=1T—H(BEVKX

at 31 December 2018, the date immediately preceding FEA B HARD) R A% = B XM KR &

the date of initial application, discounted using the EHEAREEN_T-NF—H —B®ER

incremental borrowing rate, and the lease liabilities WHEABECHANEZEHINWT !

recognised as at 1 January 2019 are as follow:

As at
1 January 2019
R-ZZE-hF
—A—H
HK$'000
FAT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as RZE-N\F+A=1T—HEREHN
at 31 December 2018 KT B R 410
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases  Ji = R — G HHE (410)

Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 relating to RERB BB ERERE 165K
operating leases recognised REEHER_T—-—NF—H—H
upon application of HKFRS 16 BRANEEBRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. BMFHEIRIET AT B KRS LE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING A (EBMERESER]) (£)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd) EBPBRELENF1REE (#&)

Impacts on application of HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d) BHREBHEREEREIHHAEZHE
(#&)

As a lessee (Cont'd) AN (B)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts NTAER=_ZT-—NF—A—HBNEEH

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BARARPBERANDSBEELAOFAE-T

position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not KABERUEBIESHZENEAIER -

affected by the changes have not been included.

Carrying
amount Carrying
previously amount
reported at Impact on as restated
31 December adoption of at 1 January
2018 HKFRS16 2019
BER R®
“E-N\F B4 “E-hE
T=ZR BRUBERE —-A—H
=+-A%E ERIE16% ER ;)
MEESE heg RESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Right-of-use assets (Note below) CREEE (TFXHE) - 46,924 46,924
Prepaid lease payments (Note below) ANBEERE(FXHE) 46,924 (46,924) -
46,924 - 46,924
Note: Wit
Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC were classified as prepaid RZE-N\F+-A=+—HB RPEESELHED
lease payments as at 31 December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, MEBNRBESEABNEERE REREEMBK
the non-current and current portions of prepaid lease payments amounting WEERIE 165818 - TE T ERRIEEY FEBD B K BN AR 50
to HK$45,717,000 and HK$1,207,000, respectively were reclassified to 45,717,000/ 7T 121,207,000 T EEFH S AF A

right-of-use assets. BEE-
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e B RS R aR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. BT RIEFTABT B EREE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING A (EBMEREER]) (£)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd) ERAMBRELEAEI6FEE (&)
Impacts on application of HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd) EREBHBHREEREIHFHEZHE
(#&)

As a lessee (Cont’d) AR (E)

On the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group RYRERTAMBREENEIHE 2

has also used the following practical expedients permitted H AEETTEFAEAMATH NIE

by the standard: BHOEEIRERR

e the accounting for operating leases with a remaining e RITE-NF-—A—BHTHHER
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January NREANKEEEEREBHEEA
2019 as short-term leases; and R &

e the exclusion of initial direct costs for the o RYIREARAHFECHEEERS
measurement of the right-of-use assets at the date of BRAIGE B RS ©

initial application.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. BFRMHFI RIEFTAEBH B RELE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING A (EBMERESER]) (£)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet EEMGEMRERNHTEBMBEREE
effective Al R A& FT 4

The Group has not early applied the following new and REBEWARZERZEATIIEEMERKRE
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not Rz el RABRT AR B BB S £ A -

yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? ERNBREEN  RREL?
F17%

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets ERUBREEL REFHABEAAK
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its Z10RREHRGH AELARCHNEELE
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture? RRE8F 2T FEA

Amendments to Definition of a Business* ERVBREEL  EBHNER
HKFRS 3 F3R AT

Amendments to Definition of Material’ ERGHENE IR EAHNTEE
HKAS 1 BEEHERF85
and HKAS 8 Z1EE]

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform' ERMBREEN  FEEgEgs
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 F% EEE
and HKFRS7 ERAEIRREE

BB IREERETR
Z1BE]

Conceptual Revised Conceptual Framework for ZE-N\FHBRE LB HBRERER

Framework for Financial Reporting' HaER

Financial Reporting
2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. BT RIEFTABT B EREE

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Cont’d)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

B([EBUHH/EEN]) (&)

CHEMERMRERNFTEBYBHREE
BIRAERT & (42)

! R-E-ZF-A-ARz&ARZFEHH
£

2 RZT-—F—A-ARZ&ARZFEHNH
X

: REFEEZ ARz BAR 2 FEAMER

¢ BRARKERRE-—TS_TF—A—B%zk
MW EEFERRMARE AR Z2RNEBKA
bR B E R

RABERTAE R LA A L&
BRI BB BREERNBRNEB R EE R
MBRRY EBEAZTE -

FTESFHE

REEBMBRRIIREL G ARG HEM
ZEEBMEREERNRR - I Rir a8
BREBEBIAES LTRAIREER
AMER DI AR E 2 B R

REMBBRRDIZELRAZLERE E
WINPT BRI E T2 T
AREHREHREZ QA FEFE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1
January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS
16), and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

BB S A — SRR IR IR M E AT (K
AF(EEH

AFE/MSELEEZRANGEARNEE
BKFRFHEEEREMMERKEER
ERAHNER M IAwmXEREEER
ABERERS - mEETAFELG -
Bt —HEEXBENRTFER A&H
EERMB2RENGFEANHEERA
BEEERMEBREERRBRL ZFK
BUBRRPIEAER ARBEAEROQ
FEDEUELEETE HEEBHBREE
A 257 AR D R E N FREE R ARD B
EENNARR S BRMBERELERF16
HF(E—T-NE-A—AE)XFEE:
FRENTHR (RERBEMBREEL SR
1eA HEHEAEER S RERFE
BB FRFENFE(NBELEE
A2/ FEMAIZR FEXRBTEGHE
AIE365R & ERENERERE) K-

FEMEENAFEAEFLRTSESEE
BERRARECAZEEERRER R
HEBKEEETHERAREEAZEE
ERRERENS BT H2EEMES
R 2R H BE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) FESTHE (Z)

w

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power
over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee; and (iii)
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the

amount of the Group's returns.

s B EHME - A FESERER

FEAENBABBEIEREELQFE

AENBABBHEREERUIBERSE
FEINE=R BT

—RBABBRERBENNAERR
X0k *EHE’JQ?&ET TR BB T 5 &Y
WE(KFHE) -

—RBABEBEATEREF —ARENE
EXAENAERAREZERNE AR
B R

E=REABBAAERREHFTRE
% A B -

BEBEHENR T

REMBBRREEARTARARARIESZ
BER Y B@RK-

ﬁ%‘J%?‘éﬁﬁl ()R EHWIRE EHRITE
BN (NVERBERXZE2EWREHRA
g&@%ﬁﬁzZﬂﬁfR&ﬁEﬁ R (i) P E R AR
BEHR o ENFEAEENERESE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control of the subsidiary and cease when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

RERE(HE)

MEFERBRBR L EAREH —IEK
NEHMRES ARKEENFEHEEE
BRREHRTFHEEGE-

(RN PNCIDEN AN SE: e W%QT%%%
BEgEAAR INAEERXEZMBL
8 Tl By A% L AR

(3= PN 72%A&ﬁ§m$glﬂ S
REAREASETHZEHZMBRARZ
A JJ:aJr)\,iv?/m\ Bam M EMEEKER -

Hi 2w kA& EE
REAFEBEAN -WEBREZ
FENARTEAA

mEZE B
BAEE
BRI

SYHMB RN BHRRELH
S BRREARE 2 G HE

AEEXRBZRAR S ZAAESERREHE
ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%*%*
RERA B -

WA X ERERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of the associate.

RBEQRZRE

BEARREARMEEALENHE
B EAYEN AL RRREN Y
T AR A TR R SRR F 2 33 R

BENBNEEREERAE JIRAR
SEIDEIAGRAM B HRE - RIFEEE
SHRENBE QAT BEHRRRELAKER
BUBRATHAERS REHRANER
SRR EE - RERESDE RBERQ
AR E NI RERA BB R BRIZKA
R UNERERAEEEIG XS
XA EY g N SRR 1 N E A 2 e T AR
HE -RN@BE AR zEERE (BEkHE
2R ARIN) BB AR BRIFEXFE
BEYAKEB A EAERLREY - E
AEE RS —FHEARNBEEBLASE
ERZBE R RNl (BREELE
RASEEREEREINKREFE-BOHH
EfREEDE)  AEESR LEBEEN
ME—FER BIBERERAKEDE
HEOETE S E B E SR & E QBT
77 T HERR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Investments in associates (Cont’d)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

RBERATZRE (&)

REERRNRERRRETKNABE R

AEREEREDEAR WERBER
MR ER IRE KRB AR B (53
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Revenue recognition WARER

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised HRMAEEHRAERMREETEET AU

goods or services to customers in an amount that RBMOFEEMIRE cHENSERTP

reflects the consideration to which the entity expects BRZEEMIRE - BEME AEBEHE

to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. AR EBRBWA

Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer F—F: BRIEEPITLIHNAL

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the FF: BAEHNFNENEME
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price F=F: BEXHER

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance FENYT: BRGERIEZEHNFTHELN
obligations in the contract 5

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity FRT: R(EZ)EETKBENRT
satisfies a performance obligation B 1 R U S

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance REBER (SPEZE) TR BELHEER (BNE

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods BREBANBTHEBENE M [12H#E ] E5E

underlying the particular performance obligation is TEFLE) BREA -

transferred to the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or BHOEEEPAEERIRSE (—HER

a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of SR )— RV ELD FHERMNBEES R

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same. SR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

=114
=
v
N
1
N—

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. £Eg

Revenue recognition (Cont’d) WARER (&)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised THIEERRESER  MAE A THA
over time by reference to the progress towards complete —IHEE AW AEREZ2ZHEERLD
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one EAMTIHEE TARER:

of the following criteria is met:

e The customer simultaneously receives and consumes s BAKEBEREX BFRRIFIER
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as REBBOMBEHEONE

the Group performs;

e The Group's performance creates or enhances an s BAKERAMABZIBRTERR
asset that the customer controls as the assets is BIES ARG EE 3

created or enhanced; or

e The Group's performance does not create an asset s AEEMEAHNVEBBREAEEFTE
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group RAZMNEE BASEEHLZSE T
has an enforceable right to payment for performance R BRI R A BRI IT 2 F o

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when DR W ARBEFESHES &AL H
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods. B RERR ©

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified WATIIRIBEEEZ PRI LB E AR R ERR
in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected BitE2 TEREREF=-FUBRNESE-

on behalf of third parties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation
to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is
an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified goods or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified goods or service provided by another party
before that goods or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue from sales of flexible printed circuits,
flexible packaging substrates and electronic
components

The revenue is recognised when control of the goods
has transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
Transportation and other related activities that occur
before the customers obtain control of the related goods
are considered as fulfillment activities. Following delivery,
the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when selling the goods and bears the risk of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The credit
term is 30 to 120 days from the issuance of invoices.

W AT (&)
ZEAABEEA

Er—rhkREPREHEESR
AEEEFAABIMERR
EmERBAGZBOEET (IAKES
ZRENBI LRS- TREZEFERH
R (AR EERBRIEAN) ©

5 AR 75 B

RIRHIETE
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PHEEEMARS AIARERREA

HWASEZBITEGRTYS —FiERMIE
ENE MR - MARESRIEA it
BT ERERKRBERETER ZAT
AEETEH Z—HRENETEREIR
BB ARERRIEAR BRI S —
FRBHRHEIEE E Mk S5 IE B A
BzEABES AT 2 S AEAWA -

HETMEHKNR FUHEERREFT
wHZUA

WAREYZEHREEER (NEMEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHHE (£)

Leasing (Upon applicable on or after 1 January 2019)

Definition of a lease

Under HKFRs 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract
or modification date. The Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect
to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except
for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For
these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted
by using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Leasing (Upon applicable on or after 1 January 2019)
(Cont’d)

Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the fixed lease payments (including in-
substance fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office properties and staff quarters
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight line

basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Leasing (Upon applicable on or after 1 January 2019)
(Cont’d)

Right-of-use assets

Except for the short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use).

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, such estimation is
recognised and measured under HKAS 37 “Provision,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Leasing (Upon applicable on or after 1 January 2019)
(Cont’d)

Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss.

Leases (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“right-of-use assets” in accordance with HKFRS16 or
“prepaid lease payments” in accordance with HKAS 17
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R aR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. SEHHEK (&)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

under the heading of translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHHE (£)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of that asset until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rationale
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits contributions

Payments to defined contribution plans, the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme and state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R aR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XFEE:HE (&)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Restricted Stock (“Restricted Stock”) granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (Restricted stock incentive scheme reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
restricted stock incentive scheme reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XFEE:HE (&)

Short-term employee benefits (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Cont’d)

Restricted Stock (“Restricted Stock”) granted to employees
(Cont’d)

When Restricted Stock was expected to vest, the amount
previously recognised in restricted stock incentive scheme
reserve will be transferred to capital reserve. When the
Restricted Stock are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not achieving vesting conditions at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share-based payments
reserve will be transferred to capital reserve.

Shares held under the restricted stock incentive
scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held
under the restricted stock incentive scheme) are recognised
at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group’'s own equity instruments.
Any difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration is recognised in equity. The number of shares
held by the trustee under the restricted stock incentive
scheme would be eliminated against the corresponding
amount of share capital issued in the calculation of the
earnings per share for profit attributable to owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R aR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation
because it excludes items of income and expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences arise from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable
income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the average tax rates that are expected to apply to
the taxable income of the periods in which the temporary
differences are expected to reverse.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R aR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Taxation (Cont’d)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction in progress as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHHE (£)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes provided during
the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction
are carried at cost, less any identified impairment losses.
Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management).

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Impairment loss on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets is estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHHE (£)

Impairment loss on tangible assets (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised as expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior year. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value is determined as the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, a credit adjusted effective interest rate is calculated
by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Financial instruments (Cont'd) EWMIAE(E)

Financial assets 2HEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial CHEESERAEFZE

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are MEATREERIZEHEX AT EN SR

subsequently measured at amortised cost BE

e The financial asset is held within a business model o LIKEBEHNREREF/BENMISEE
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; EZREEATHECEMEE K
and

e The contractual terms give rise on specified dates to e AHKRRNETRHELCZRESRE
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and mmAETNAeRAREBEELRS ZF
interest on the principal amount outstanding. Boe

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are MEATHREEREZEATFEFAREMETR

subsequently measured at FVTOCI WHETENEmEE

e The financial asset is held within a business model e LHERKBRAEHNRERERE M
whose objective is achieved by both selling and REEEZKEEATHREZS/ME
collecting contractual cash flows; and B R

e The contractual terms give rise on specified dates to e AHRIRNETRHELZRERE
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and HEAYNASRKREBERNS ZH

interest on the principal amount outstanding. Bo

121




122 AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R aR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont’d) S®MIA(Z)
Financial assets (Cont'd) SHEE (&)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial CTHEEDERAEZE (&)

assets (Cont’d)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FEEMeRmEEHBEATEFT ABR
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a R HEYVSEREHEE B - MER
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present TEEWHBEESR  MIEREFTEEE
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment M REEREIREREHMERANE
in other comprehensive income (“OCI") if that equity HEaMHPREANIARE REETAA
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent BogRERN EM2mE ([EMm2mik
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business wm])EIRAEERNFENEERES-
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
(i)  Amortised cost and interest income (i) BESERC A R B A
Interest income is recognised using the effective HERBENATHENSREETE
interest method for financial assets measured BEBRMEETA®ER - FEWATY
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is H—BEemAEROAEERBERAN
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to ETUAHE HEHEBERERBREDN
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except TREERIN(RTX) -BEFBHR
for financial assets that have subsequently become FERABENESREEMNS BT W
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that EHIRE P B U AT & Bl & E 8
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest A FER BN E T LA#HR - {5 A
income is recognised by applying the effective interest BESHRTAMNERRRITE $2
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset MEETHHRERAME RETE
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on ETHHBERRERER 8REHA
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so BEMEMATEHemEEREDAE
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, JERBRRA E T AR -

interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
OCI and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
"other income” line item in profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d) 3. XTEEHHE (£)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R aR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash). The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12 months ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and
bills receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balance and
collectively for other using a provision matrix based on
past due amounts.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

V)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e An actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

e Significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

e  Existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic condition that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e An actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. xEH

B 7% R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

e An actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term, and iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk if the asset has an internal rating of “Low risk”.
Low risk means that the counterparty has a strong

financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

V)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

e  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower,

e A breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

e The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

e |t is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

e  The disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
one year past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade and other receivables, are each assessed as
a separate group);

e  Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the

financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost

of the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. XEE:HE (&)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont’d)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 3. FEEHE (£)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
bank borrowing and amounts due to associates are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4, HEFTFHBRZZEFERIR

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amount of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimate and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to carrying amount of
assets and liabilities within the next financing year.

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

Management estimates the useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment. The estimated
useful lives and residual values are based on the expected
lifespan and original cost of those property, plant and
equipment respectively. The useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment could change
significantly as a result of technical obsolescence. When
the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment are different from their estimated useful
lives and residual values due to the change of commercial
and technological environment, such differences will cause
an impact on the depreciation charges.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4., HETFHBRZEZFTEREFR (£&)

UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The recoverable amount of the Group’s cash generating
units is determined based on the value in use calculation.
These calculations require the use of estimates and certain
key assumptions including projected revenue, gross profit
margin and discount rates of the cash generating units.
Changes in these key assumptions can result in changes
of carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets that may impact the
profit or loss.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets for the Group as at 31 December
2019 is approximately HK$798,687,000 (2018:
HK$779,632,000) and HK$49,064,000 (2018: HKS$Nil)
respectively. No impairment loss has been recognised for
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 as
the recoverable amounts are higher than the carrying

amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. HETHBRZZETERIR (&)

UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)
Allowance for inventories

The management reviews an aged analysis of the
inventories for production of FPC and flexible packaging
substrate at the end of the reporting period, and makes
allowance for slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in production. The
management estimates the net realisable value based on
the latest selling prices and current marketable conditions.

If the net realisable value of inventories is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
inventories is reduced to its net realisable value.

The carrying amount of inventories for the Group as at 31
December 2019 is approximately HK$124,848,000 (2018:
HK$117,812,000), net of allowance for inventories of
approximately HK$12,712,000 (2018: HK$12,613,000).
Allowance for inventories of approximately HK$99,000
has been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: net reversal of allowance for inventories of
approximately HK$684,000).

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Group’s unquoted equity instrument is measured at
fair values with fair values being determined based on
unobserved inputs using valuation techniques. Judgement
and estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could
affect the reported fair values of this instruments.

The carrying amount of equity instrument at fair value
through other comprehensive income for the Group as
at 31 December 2019 is approximately HK$25,808,000
(2018: HK$18,078,000). Details of the assumptions used
are disclosed in note 28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4., HEFTFHBRZZETERIR (&)

UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The management of the Group calculates ECL for the
trade receivables, which are assessed individually for
debtors with significant balances and collectively for
others. The provision rates applied are estimated using
the historical observed default rates of the debtors taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonably and supportably available without undue costs
or effort. At the end of each of the reporting period, these
historical loss rates are reassessed and updated if required
after considering the forward-looking information that
available to the directors of the Company.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables
are disclosed in note 28.

The carrying amount of trade receivables at for the Group
at 31 December 2019 is approximately HK$664,927,000
(2018: HK$506,359,000), net of allowance for credit
losses of approximately HK$520,000 (2018: HK$127,000).
The provision for allowance for credit losses of

approximately HK$402,000 has been recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$127,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manufacture and sells electronic products and
provides agency services to the customers. All revenue
generated by the Group is recognised at a point in
time when control of the goods has transferred to the
customers, being when the goods are shipped to the
specific location (delivery).

Sales-related warranties associated with products
cannot be purchased separately, the Group accounts
for warranties in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” unless the
warranty provides the customer with a service in addition
to the assurance that the product complies with agreed-
upon specifications.

Revenue is recognised from the Group’s contracts with
customers with fixed price and short-term duration.

Segment information

This segment information reported to the executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM"), for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on type of goods delivered and services provided.

For management purposes, during the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group had three business segments
namely (i) the business of manufacture and sale of FPC; (ii)
the business of manufacture and sale of flexible packaging
substrates; and (iii) other.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Segment information (Cont’d)

Principal activities are as follows:

FPC business —  the manufacture and
sales of FPC
Flexible packaging —  the manufacture

substrates business and sales of flexible

packaging substrates

Other —  the sourcing and sales of
electronic components

The CODM regularly reviews revenue and results analysis
by these three business segments. In the current year,
the presentation of reportable segments of the Group
are revised as detailed below as the CODM believes the
current reportable segments could provide better summary
to them in reviewing the Group’s operating performance
and making decision in resource allocation. Accordingly,
the comparative figures of the reportable segments have
been restated for the purpose of presenting segment
information.

The Group's business segments in relation to the "“FPC
business — the manufacture and sale of FPC" and the
“Flexible packaging substrates business — the manufacture
and sale of flexible packaging substrates” which were
presented as separate reportable segments in the prior
years are considered as a single operating segment by the
CODM in the current year. Accordingly, the information
of these operations has been aggregated into a single
reportable segment which is reported as "“Circuit boards
and components business — the manufacture and sale
of FPC and flexible packaging substrates (including
components)” for segment reporting. Accordingly, during
the year ended 31 December 2019, for management
purposes, the Group had two business segments namely
(i) the circuit boards and components business — the
manufacture and sale of FPC and flexible packaging
substrates; and (ii) other.

WARDEBER (&)

DEER ()

EEEBMT

Z M BT - BERHERHE
7% B& 1R

T - BEREERIEH
HIRER BEEAR

Eith - RERBEETT

BIED

ERERAREETNEHR=_EEXZHK D
%mw SREBEIT -RAFE AEE
A HD MO 2|MOEH T XA
A RAREZEERREMERFNHA
HHROBARNBEERHARENEERA
REMEBERDBRHRER ARSFRMHEE
mmx F itk - AT R LB F O 5L

B EBERHERED

AEEGMIRMEERRES —SENH
ERMERR] R [FRUEHEERER R
ENEEREHERER] MEBDEHNB
ELEFEERBINA RO ML
ﬁi%%%ﬁ REMAFERR/BHADE
Ea— Eome AL ZFEENEND
EARE—HB/OR ROBRETES
[BEEBREEFET - RERHEXME
BREFESRER (FEMF)] RE-E
- AFRNER AERERBE_T—NF
TZA=T-BLEFEEREXELD -
B EREAR R AR - RENMHET M
ERRAR MR EHERER R>)EAL-



Annual Report 2019 —Z—hEFER
139

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEER (&)
(Cont’d)
Segment information (Cont'd) oEWER (&)
Principal activities are as follows: FEEBOT
Circuit boards and - The manufacture and BEIR & — BEREEXMSE
components business sales of FPC and ke AR R M E R A
flexible packaging R (EEH)
substrates (including
components)
Other -  The sourcing and sale of Hh - RERHEEETFT
electronic components BB RIEER
and provision of agent 12 iR 7%
services
Segment revenue and results PBBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REBREERAARDHE S 2 HAR
results by operating and reportable segment. EEONIT -
Segment revenue -
external sales Segment results
FHBBA-HBHEE DEEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-NE —E-\F ZB-NE —T-)\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TER FTET
(Restated) (Restated)
(fg=7)) (&E5)
Circuit boards and components business & B iR J 4 1+ £ 7% 1,448,487 1,216,351 158,238 106,246
Other Hit 15,143 7,452 2,743 110
Total At 1,463,630 1,223,803 160,981 106,356
Interest income FBWA 2,834 7,372
Central administration costs HRATH A (32,278) (29,898)
Finance costs AR A (2,091) (215)
Share of results of associates DEBERAEE 1,202 163
Profit before taxation B B A1 % A 130,648 83,778

N <t
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Segment revenue and results (Cont’d)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by
each segment without allocation of central administration
costs, interest income, finance costs and share of results
of associates. This is the measure reported to the executive
directors, the Group's CODM, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

No analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
operating and reportable segments is disclosed as they
are not reviewed by the CODM nor otherwise regularly
provided to the CODM for review.

The Group did not have any significant inter-segment
sales during the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEBER (&)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information H fih 53 7B & B
During the year ended 31 December 2019 RBE-Z-—NAF+-A=+—HLEFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: AEOBEERBIE LKA

Circuit boards

and components Segment
business Other total
BERRRAHES Hith AEWEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THERT
Provision of allowance for EEHERE
credit losses 402 - 402
Allowance (reversal of TFEREME (BERR)
allowance) for inventories 99 - 99
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FAEEENE
assets 3,119 - 3,119
Depreciation of property, ME- -BEREENE
plant and equipment 114,234 - 114,234

Release of government grant AR A HibEZHE
for construction of factory RALE[02EE] 2

on existing lands and BUT 2B

"02 Major Project” of the

Group (1,796) - (1,796)
Government grant for research %18 B 2 BT 284

and development projects (23,316) - (23,316)
Government subsidies BT E B (4,936) - (4,936)
Loss on disposal of property, — HEME WE &

plant and equipment FiE 2 EBE 2,272 - 2,272

Research and development s ¥
expenses 57,352 - 57,352
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEER (&)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information (Cont’d) HttpBER (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2019 (Cont’d) RBE-ZE-NIWF+ZA=+—-BLEFE
(#&)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included THRE2EERKTERBEIBENG
in the measure of segment profit or loss: BoHER 2 HIA:

Circuit boards

and components Segment
business Other total
ERBRRAHEE Hith AWEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FER TR
Interest income FEWA (2,834) - (2,834)
Interest expenses MEFX 2,091 - 2,091
Income tax expense FTRiR X 12,937 - 12,937
Share of results of associates D {EHEE A B EE (1,202) - (1,202)
During the year ended 31 December 2018 BHE-Z-\F+-A=T—HIEFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or FTEDEERREE ZRIE
loss:
Circuit boards
and components Segment
business Other total
BRIRRAFES HAth DEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(Restated)
(&gE75))
Provision of allowance for EEBBERE
credit losses 127 - 127
Net reversal of allowance for 17 & % % [0 )% 58
inventories (684) - (684)
Amortisation of prepaid lease  TB I & FIE#
payments 1,250 - 1,250
Depreciation of property, mE HERZETE
plant and equipment 89,830 - 89,830
Release of government grant ~ ZEMNIEA i EERE
for construction of factory Z BT R,
on existing lands (791) - (791)
Government grant for research  # %18 B 2 BT 2 Bh
and development projects (31,758) - (31,758)
Government subsidies BITE B (2,484) - (2,484)
Loss on disposal of property, — HEDE HER
plant and equipment FiE A 5,598 - 5,598

Research and development ik
expenses 63,774 - 63,774
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDIER (£Z)

(Cont’d)
HittpIER (£)

Other segment information (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2018 (Cont’d) REEZ_FE—N\F+-_A=1+—HLFE

(%)

EHRAEIELERRERFEIRENG
R IEE /S

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment profit or loss:

Circuit boards

and components Segment
business Other total
BRIR M AHER Hit DBEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
(Restated)
(&&5)
Interest income F BUA (7,372) - (7,372)
Interest expenses FEMX 215 - 215
Income tax expense CIRCTib 14,444 - 14,444
Share of results of associates DG EE 2 A A ¥ 48 (163) - (163)
Geographical information i & & R

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas —
the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and Hong Kong (country
of domicile). The following table provides an analysis

AEERMEZIEMEEL-—FE(TE
BER)REE (EMARILBE) - TR
TAAREEIRE P PrEMIBALE 85 K E I

of the Group's revenue from external customers by the BEPZWAZ DT
geographical location of the customer:

2019 2018
—2-NF  —FT)\#E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
PRC other than Hong Kong RE(TEERE) 1,185,204 823,068
Hong Kong BB 184,794 298,740
Other Hits 93,632 101,995
1,463,630 1,223,803

Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets,
including property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are located in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDHER (&)
(Cont’d)
Information about major customers FHRTEEFZEHR
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years RERBRFE AT EEHE RES KA
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are 10%ER 2 EP ZWAT :
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Customer A’ R 383,830 276,322
Customer B! BvR 158,826 179,003
Customer C'&3 BRRE N/ATE 2 141,220
L Revenue from business of circuit boards and components business. ! KB B RABEER 2 WA
2 Revenue from Customer C did not contribute over 10% of the total 2 REBEFRAZWAHAEBIBABETR RN
revenue of the Group. 10% °
3 Customer C represents revenue from one of the Company's 3 EPREREARA —ERRAREMBRRZ

shareholder and its subsidiary. A ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

The amount included approximately HK$4,936,000 (2018: HK$2,303,000)
represent subsidies from various government authorities in supporting the

high technology research and development activities for the year ended 31

December 2019.

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HAbA
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Release of government grant for BRNIRAE T A E &
construction of factory on existing [025518 ] 2 BT ERE
lands and the “02 Major Project” (Hi323)
(note 23) 1,796 791
Government grant for research and BT EIE B 2 BT RRL
development projects (note 23) (Hit23) 23,316 31,758
Government subsidies (note) BT E B (K1:E) 4,936 2,484
Interest income B U A 2,834 7,372
Rental income el A 339 378
Compensation income from FARBRRZBERA
litigation claim 12 1,420
Scrap income FERFHA 6,616 4,307
Net exchange gain P& H U255 58 257 7,002
Others Hity 1,065 741
41,171 56,253
Note: Hiat -

SHBRERBE-T - NF+-A=1T—HILFEXE
Z AR S R e R EE A E 844,936,000
It (—ZF—/\4F :2,303,0008 L) °

FINANCE COSTS Al & B AN
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Interests on: AIP=NE

— Bank borrowings —RITEE 1,827 215
— Lease liabilities —-MHEaE 264 -
2,091 215
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. FR¥iAIE A
2019 2018
—E-RE —ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit before taxation has been arrived BrFiATH FIE 0k LA I8 B
at after charging
Research and development expenses s A
Staff costs 8 T A 9,524 17,419
Other research and development HmiAEER
expenses 47,828 46,355
57,352 63,774
Directors’ and chief executive's EENLFETHRAEMS
emoluments (note 10) (Htat10) 1,227 1,411
Other staff costs Hih8 T A 152,155 120,702
Other staff’s retirement schemes Hh BT 2 RREEI R
contributions 13,551 11,360
Total staff costs BT AEE 166,933 133,473
Less: Other staff costs included in WETA LN RIS ER 2
research and development Hh B TRA
expenses shown above (9,524) (17,419)
157,409 116,054
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 { i & 5t TE #4 §4 - 1,250
Auditor’s remuneration Z AT B & 850 980
Cost of inventories recognised as BEHRRASAXZZFEKRAR
an expense (Note (i) (K1aE3)) 1,254,943 1,071,832
Depreciation for property, ME - BMERIBEZINE
plant and equipment 114,234 89,830
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEECITE 3,119 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE WEREHEEE
plant and equipment 2,272 5,598
Minimum lease payments under THRBFREHEEETZ
operating leases in respect of SREE (a2 a0)
land and buildings (Note (ii) N/AFE A 698
Provision for allowance for credit losses 1= & 518 8 #5 ~ B 1 402 127

Note:

(i) The amount includes net allowance for inventories of HK$99,000
(2018: net reversal allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$684,000).

(i)  Operating lease payments in respect of premises for the year ended
31 December 2018 represent payments made and accounted for
HKAS 17. Details of the lease payment made for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in Note 14.

Bat -

(i)

SHEBEFEBERFBFEI00ET(ZF—N
FFERERDFEL684,00087T)

HE-_ZT-N\F+_A=+T—HILFEEHS
Fﬁzw’%?’rﬁ&ﬁ RIEENAERBEEE G AR
F17HRINE2 AR - FREE T —hhF+=-A
ST+ -REFEZENEENRFBRNME
140
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

9. TAXATION 9. H1E
2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Current tax: BVHA TR 18 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax HEMET - 416
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REI RIS 15,392 14,661
15,392 15,077
Over provision in prior years AR S B RE A
Hong Kong Profits Tax HERET - (27)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REIETEH (3,964) (2,169)
(3,964) (2,196)
11,428 12,881
Deferred tax: RAET A -
Current year (note 26) REF (Hit26) 1,509 1,563
12,937 14,444
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council RZEBE-—NF=ZAZ+—H BBLEE
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 BRE_E—EFHE (1BE]) (F75%) 1§61
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax BR([EHEZR]) S| AFIESHRAEH -
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March BHERN-_T-NF=ZA=Z+TNBEE
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the EEW URBEHEERTIE - BREFNE
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million MRAH cEBEEE®EKIL25%2
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at REGE2EB B UaMAMREEE Wik
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5% 2 Tt R ghiB 2 B & 7T 2 i AN
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for ME-AHFEHNEURRHNERCEEE
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be B2 255 TS # 4B 4216.5% 2 B — T R Ui

taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. HIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

TAXATION (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018, Hong Kong profits tax of the qualified entity of
the Group is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The profits of other Group entities
in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate
of 16.5%. For the year ended 31 December 2019, no
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
group company in Hong Kong has no assessable profits.

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based on
the estimated taxable income for each PRC subsidiary and
at its applicable tax rate. Under the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd. (“AKM Panyu”) and
AKM Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Ltd. (“AKM Suzhou")
were awarded the Foreign Invested Advanced-Technology
Enterprise Certificate in prior years. AKM Suzhou is
entitled to tax rate reduction from 25% to 15% for three
years commenced from 1 January 2016, which was then
renewed for a further term of three years commenced
from 1 January 2019. AKM Panyu was entitled to tax rate
reduction from 25% to 15% for three years commenced
from 1 January 2015, which was then renewed for a

further term of three years commenced from 1 January
2018.

BiIR (48)

HE-_Z-—NFH+ZA=1+—HEKZE
—NF+-_A=+—BHLFE AEBEBA
EREBOBENGHBEMASFE
MEHEAE - THFEMAHFEHES
ENBESEMEEEEN RN EEER
16.5%MIREREHT -REBEEZZT—N
F+ZA=Z+—HLEFE BARURES
WEBQARIWEERB SN WAL ERE
ERGTE LB -

FRECEMSHIESTFEWNB AT ZE
AR AT R AANEH B - R
BREARLMBECEREGTE ([BER
BRE]D) REEMEHEEBEN - - E
WEBRARZHEE -_EZTNF—A—HBR
£25% °

RBEFE  Z#EMN(FB)ETEXAR
RE ([BERELEMN]) RRENE 7R
(M) BARAR (THMLEFN])ERS
MBMEERE -BHMLEMNBE TR
F-RB-—BE=ZFFAHREHE25% NHZE
5% ZHMARR - XE-_F—NF—A—
REEEN RB=F -FBLEMNBE_-F
—REF-A-RE=ZFFBEWMEH5% [
HEISRZMBARR L E —F— \F—
A—REEEN AHi=%F-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

9. TAXATION (Cont’d) 9. BIE(#&)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit FAzMIBAEEGEGEE AR
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or FZBBAR MBI T

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Profit before taxation B 350 B 130,648 83,778
Tax at the applicable income tax rate  ZBEAAEHRBERAE 2

(note a) BIE (ffata) 19,597 12,567
Tax effect of income that are not FATE TE FE SR B s A By S AT

taxable in determining taxable profit — ®RF 2 WA 2 Bif £ - (377)
Tax effect of expenses that are not PAE TE FE ER B v ) B N AT

deductible in determining taxable MRzASZHBETE

profit 778 913
Tax effect on share of profit of JEAG— R E AR ZE M2

an associate Wz e (180) (24)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIERATHREGREE

differences not recognised B eE 74 (84)
Tax effect on further deduction of HEERANE— 2B 2

research and development expenses M E (Katb)

(note b) (5,476) (7,168)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FIERREEEZ HEFE 633 9,310
Overprovision in prior years AR E 2 iBRaaE (3,964) (2,196)
Effect of different tax rates of MR R E A R AR R4S &

subsidiaries operating in other NG vl -2

jurisdictions (34) (60)
Deferred taxation arising from R B e F 4 B FE 0 A

withholding tax on undistributed FrEE & 2 BAET IR

profits 1,509 1,563
Taxation for the year NEEIEA 12,937 14,444
Notes: Hiat -

a.  AKM Panyu is the Group's major operating subsidiary. Therefore, the a. HBRLBEMNARFAEKEZFEZEMBLAAC I
Group's applicable income tax rate is 15% (2018: 15%). bt NEE ZEAAEREERIS% (ZF—

F:15%) °

b.  Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations, PRC subsidiaries b. ARIEAMEBBIEN RG] P EKEAR AR
can claim PRC income tax credits on additional 50% of the qualified Bl & BB REREIN0% R BIFTSTE
research and development expenses in the PRC. Such PRC income tax oo TEEKA BAIRHIREEH B2 Mg i
credits are allowed, and are accounted for, as deduction from current EATEMEBHREREEETE ARSI ERE
income tax expenses when relevant conditions are fulfilled and tax FriS Rt B S R

approval is obtained from the tax bureau.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EBERETETHAEZHMERASR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BReFHM AL
INDIVIDUALS
(i) Details of directors’ and chief executive's (i) EERTETHAEZHMESHBRY
emoluments are as follows: mr:
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-—NF+-A=+—HL#F
B

Retirement  Performance

Salaries Benefit Related
and other scheme incentive Total
Fees benefits  contributions payments  emoluments

#ER BUEAN R%3
ik R A SEHRK  #HzRS Hed®
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THT FHER FHER FHR

Executive director: BOEE:

Xiong Zheng Feng KifE - - - - -
Non-executive directors: FHNTES:

Gao Xiaoguang Bl - - - - -

Jia Junan BER - - - - -

Zhang Xiaoming (note (b) below) — REEF ( FitfizE (b)) - - - - -

Wong Chunsheng (note (c) below) T&HE ( FiAE(C)) - - - - -

Yu Daochun (note (d) below) REF (TAMHEQ)) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BURNEE:

directors:

Hung Chi Yuen Andrew REE 60 - - - 60

Yang Zhaoguo (note (e) below) — BKE ( Fitfiite) 7 - - - 72

Cui Zheng 32 72 - - - 72
Sub-total N 204 - - - 204
Chief executive officer THBH

Chai Zhi Qiang (note (g) below) 5538 ( Fithi(g)) - 684 83 256 1,023

Total A%t 204 684 83 256 1,227
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID =5
INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

()

Details of directors’ and chief executive’s (i)
emoluments are as follows: (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

10. EERFTETHAEBZMERT R

BHEMAL (F)

EERTETHRAEZHEEERT
mE: (&)

BHE T \F+_A=1t—HLF

Executive Directors:

Xiong Zheng Feng

Non-executive Directors:

Li Ying Hong (note a)
Gao Xiaoguang

Jia Junan

Zhang Xiaoming (note b)
Wong Chunsheng (note ¢)
Yu Daochun (note d)

Independent non-executive

Directors:

Hung Chi Yuen Andrew
Yang Zhaoguo (note e)
Zhao Xiao (note 1)

Cui Zheng

Sub-total
Chief Executive Officer

Chai Zhi Qiang (note g

Total

E
Retirement Performance
Salaries Benefit Related
and other scheme incentive Total
Fees benefits  contributions payments  emoluments
Hek BRI BER
ne A h SRR Efiz®e B2 B8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERL TET TEL TER TARL
4EE:
I - - - - -
FHTES:
ZRA (fi#a) - - - - -
BEX - - - - -
R - - - - -
REH (fib) - - - - -
TEE (W) - - - - -
REE (Mitd) - - - - -
BUFRNEE:
REE 60 - - - 60
BKE (Mie) 45 - - - 45
g (zf) 12 - - - 1
Ef 7 - - - 7
It 189 - - - 189
THEBH
5% (Mig) - 705 82 435 1,222
Eh 189 705 82 435 1411

T I

R |
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERETETHAEZHMERASR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEaHmAL (&)

INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

(i) Details of directors’ and chief executive's (i) EERTETHAEZHMESHBRY
emoluments are as follows: (Cont’d) mE: (&)
Notes: Biat -
(a)  Resigned on 24 August 2018. (@ RZZE-NFNAZ+MHBAEE-
(b)  Appointed on 24 August 2018. b) R=F-NFNA=TEAEZE-
() Appointed on 30 January 2018. © RZF-N\F-A=TREZf-
(d)  Appointed on 27 November 2018. @ R=F-N\F+t-A-TLREZE-
(e)  Appointed on 15 May 2018. © R=F-/\FRAATHAMEME-
(f)  Retired on 15 February 2018. ® REF-NF=ATRARE.
(g)  Chai Zhi Qiang is the Chief Executive Officer. (9 HERITHMBE -
(h)  The performance related incentive payments are determined (h Eﬁiiéiﬁ}ﬂ(ﬁﬁz%ﬁ)ﬂ;?zl&%@,@%%%&
with reference to the Group’s operating results and individual fEAFS M E -
performances.
The chief executive officer's and executive directors’ EXFIRITHRBERNTEE ZMNE
emoluments shown above were mainly for their FEHRFETEARNTRAEEREE
services in connection with the management of the Frigft 2 IRTSHEFE -
affairs of the Company and the Group.
The emoluments of the non-executive directors and EXERIRIFITEE R B IERITE
independent non-executive directors shown above EVMe T RREBFEIERARAES
were mainly for their services as directors of the Frig o AR % A8 o
Company.
There was no arrangement under which a director or FA-BEEFIITHRAHNENXR
the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive ERER_ZE-NERZZE-NFH

any emoluments during the year 2018 and 2019. EREEA ke
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

(ii) Employees’ emoluments and five highest paid

individuals:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
emoluments of the five individuals with the highest

emoluments of the Group, one (2018: one) was

the chief executive officer of the Company whose

emoluments is set out in note 10(i) above. The

emoluments of four (2018: four) highest paid

individuals were as follows:

10. EERFTETHAEBZMERT R

ReHFMAL (&)

(i) EEMEREEESHFMAL:

REBE-ZE-NAF+A=1+—H1E
FE AEBREERTMALTH:
—H(ZE—N\F:—R) BARQFT
4B HE B R £t 2 B 100)
FleMEZB(ZE—NF NB) &S H
BA 2 #roiEs T

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FH T

Salaries and other benefits FekHMmER 2,278 2,550

Performance related incentive BRINE 2 e

payments 931 1,514
Retirement benefit scheme RORAE R ET B R AR

contributions costs 258 419

3,467 4,483

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEZMENFATHE:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AE

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 T A I0£1,000,000/8 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/& T2

1,500,0007% 7T 1 1

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no remunerations were paid by the Group to the

directors and the chief executive officer or the five

highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office.

BE_Z-NEFER-_FT-N\F+_-A
=t-HLEFE AEEYERNES
RiTRESRARZESHFMA LN
ERBE - AYER SR A S INA R
KBRS e R AEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

11.

DIVIDEND 11.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a final
dividend of HK1 cent per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2018 totalling HK$15,382,000 (2018:
HK$15,382,000) was declared and paid to the owners of
the Company.

Pursuant to the board of directors’ meeting on 27
March 2020, the directors recommended to declare the
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019
of HK1 cent per share totaling HK$15,382,000. Such
recommendation is to be approved by the shareholders at
the annual general meeting.

. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

iz =
BE_ZT-NAF+_R=+—BILFE"
ERMARRAEAATERRERNBE=-F

—NE+-_A=+—BIEFEZXRHRK
BERKREN A $£15,382,00008 7T (—Z=
— J\£ 115,382,000/ 7)) °

BER-_ZE_ZEF=A-_+tBEITZE
anﬁéigma»@t —E—hF
T AT HULEFEZREREFTR
Al A $£15,382,000/8 7T c 2 EHBRK
BRRERFRE L&

BRER

ARABEEANREERERNREERNZ
STETIRIE AT 85

2019 2018
—E-RE —ZE-)N\F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Earnings EZF|
Profit for the year attributable to RIESTEBRERBT 2
owners of the Company for RATHEB AEL
the purpose of basic earnings A F E 5 F
per share 117,711 69,334
Number of shares
B
2019 2018
—E-AE —E-N\F
Number of shares iR &
Weighted average number of ordinary ﬁﬁ{’E*i'Mth%ﬁE’ﬂZ
shares less shares held under the @R ke T EUR AR
restricted stock incentive scheme EE*I*WE il 14 A% 2= D
during the year, for the purpose of FEI TR ARG
basic earnings per share 1,537,398,075 1,514,092,021

There was no potential ordinary share in existence for the
two years ended 31 December 2019, basic and diluted
earnings per share are the same for both years.

HREBE-T-AFt+_-_A= —I— SRl
TIETI%‘%E@EE&EZ A A it
EFEENERERREERFER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/ 13. 9% BERRKE ME BER
DEPOSITS FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND RiB2EE
EQUIPMENT
Plantand  Leasehold Office Motor  Construction
Buildings  machinery improvements  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BT REREE HENELEE BOERE E§ ERIR &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AR TAL TR TARL TAL TR

Cost RA

At 1 January 2018 R=E-\¥-F-H 173,014 521,921 90,394 22,560 3,451 74,076 885,416
Additions RE 1,064 38,410 17,697 2,647 451 220,982 281,251
Disposals & - (19,659) - (6) (107) - (19,772)
Written off i - - (16,795) - - - (16,795)
Transfer a5 - 89,652 - - - (89,652) -
Currency realignment EHRE (7,995) (28,044) (4,184) (1,059) (133) (7,396) (48,811)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=T-H 166,083 602,280 87,112 24,142 3,662 198,010 1,081,289
At 1 January 2019 R-E-hNF-F-A 166,083 602,280 87,112 2,142 3,662 198,010 1,081,289
Additions AE - 30,270 5,361 2,163 - 115,903 153,699
Disposals HE - (11,750) - (20) - (206) (11,976)
Transfer g 1217 211,801 5,104 - - (218,122) -
Written off s - - (4,176) - - - (4.176)
Currency realignment SHHRE (3,656) (16,408) (1,939 (524) (62) (2,112) (24,701)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1+-A 163,644 816,193 91,462 25,761 3,600 93475 1,194,135
DEPRECIATION ik

At 1 January 2018 R=E2-\¥-F-R 31,253 185,038 23,244 9,902 2,670 - 252,107
Provided for the year FERE 8,585 63,330 14,638 2,889 388 - 89,830
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - (10,095) - (3) (102) - (10,200)
Eliminated on written off M - - (16,795) - - - (16,795)
Currency realignment EWAR (1,735) (9,931) (995) (529) (95) - (13,285)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=T-H 38,103 228,302 20,092 12,259 2,861 - 301,657
At 1 January 2019 RZE-n§-F-A 38,103 228,342 20,092 12,259 2,861 - 301,657
Provided for the year EREE 8,376 86,651 15,582 3,38 387 - 114,234
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - (8,171) - (5) - - (8,176)
Eliminated on written off R 3 - - (4,176) - - - (4,176)
Currency realignment KBAE (984) (6,110) (645) (301) (51) - (8,091)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1-H 45,495 300,712 30,853 15,191 3,197 - 395,448
CARRYING VALUES RHE

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-A=1-H 118,149 515,481 60,609 10,570 403 93,475 798,687
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\F+-A=1+-H 127,980 373,938 67,020 11,883 801 198,010 779,632

TR, A

5\

g
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/ 13.9% - BMERRE VWE - BER

DEPOSITS FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis after taking into
account of the estimated residual values at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
the lease of relevant land, or
40 - 50 years

Plant and machinery 5 - 15 years

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining term of the
lease or 4 years, whichever is

shorter
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 — 5 years

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged
buildings with carrying amounts of HK$46,488,000 (2018:
HK$49,291,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The buildings are located on leasehold land in the PRC.

Deposits for property, plant and equipment represents

deposits paid to suppliers and subcontractors for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
construction in progress.

Rz mE (&)

tat¥E - BB KREEEB E2RGFF
HREEREAEREIRUTFRFTE:

BF BFEAELT
FAHAs 40250
(B EE A%)

TR 5 K i 2% 5Z 154

MEWMHERE AR THES4F
(B EE A%E)

MRERME 5

Bl AE5E

R-ZE—hAhFE+_A=+—RH0 A&EED
1 48 B T (5 /546,488,000 7T (— T — )\
% :49,291,0008 70 ) 2 BEF {ERAEE
FTER—MRRITEEZER.

ZEBTFTHOUNRTEBEE 2 LM o
ME BELRBZREERBEDNE B

FEEREREZIRED N T HER kD&
BREZRE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/ 13.9% BMERRE VWE - BER

DEPOSITS FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies,
the Group reviews the carrying amount of its property,
plant and equipment to determine whether there is any
indication of that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. Where an indicator of impairment exists, a formal
estimate of the recoverable amount is made at the
reporting period. Indicators of impairment included drop in
average unit selling price of products.

As at 31 December 2018, the recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment is determined on the basis
of value in use calculation and certain key assumptions.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the value in use
calculation used the cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management of the Group
covering a 5-year period and discount rate of 10%. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations related
to the estimation of pretax cash inflows/outflows which
included projected revenue and gross margins during the
budget period. Budgeted revenue and gross profit margins
were determined based on past performance and the
management’s expectations for the market development.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no impairment
loss has been recognised for property, plant and
equipment, as the recoverable amounts are higher than
the respective carrying amounts as a result of impairment
assessment.

Rz mE (&)

REANEENEFBR AREEEZE
ME BEMERBZERE UEETEEH
EABSREAREEEL T REBRE &
HIRERRETR RS RS EH A K
Bl & BELEA G - BRETREREEM
FHHEEENE-

R—_E—\F+_A=+—10 D% HE
BEHAKESESREEREERTE
EETIERIXET -BHABAANS
FREEFEERR S RETEA  ZEA
TIRBEASEETIEEM ENSFHVKBTE
BERI0%MFHER - FREBENENEM
FERFEBABESRA R ZHE
W ZAEEREEAANEEREERRE
FE-FBERZERREMNEDRIFBARE
BELREREHMSEENTEEE -

HE-_T-NF+_A=1+—BLEFE"
RRETRIERHE BRI E  BFE R&E
MR E SRS N & B REE R &L
BERBERRERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

14. LEASES

14. HE
(i) Right-of-use assets (i) FRAEEE

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—EB-NF —ET-AF
+=-—HA=+—H —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Right-of-use assets: EREEE:
— Leasehold land in the PRC —RPBEZEELH 44,717 46,924
— Buildings —1gF 4,347 _
49,064 46,924

Right-of-use assets of approximately HK$44,717,000
represents prepayment for land use rights located in
the PRC and is amortised over 50 years on a straight-
line basis.

Besides, the Group has lease arrangements for
buildings. The lease terms are generally ranged from
two to five years.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the
year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$5,299,000 due to new leases
of buildings and it was treated as the non-cash

transaction.

4944,717,000/8 L B IEE EFEAL
AR B W% B 420K D S0F 8 i/ £ 3
FRRETE A -

BN REEAETHER - HE!
B—RAMFEERF-

E-FT-NF+_A=+—HIF
T ERHEERFRERAIES
X5 BB EIE IN#5,299,000/%8

o

g

Sl
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

14. LEASES (Cont'd) 14. 85 (&)
(ii) Lease liabilities (i) HEA®E
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-AF —E-NF
+=-A=+-—H —A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FH T
Non-current FEMED 3,481 -
Current & 1,112 -
4,593 -
31 December
2019
—E-NF
+=-A=+-—H
HK$'000
Amounts payable under lease liabilities HE&&E T B KE FAT
Within one year —F R 1,112
After one year but within two years —FREMRFNRN 1,144
After two years but within five years MFRERLFR 2,337
4,593
Less: Amount due for settlement R 121 A R B B AN B RRE
within 12 months (show under (R mEBEaEEBETNIIR)
current liabilities) (1,112)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 A 1& 2| 8 F& < #9 518 3,481
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group HE-Z—NF+-A=T—HLHF
entered into a number of new lease agreements in E-AEEREEMEIT LE THHE
respect of renting properties and recognised lease St WERHEEE(ES5,299,00008
liability of HK$5,299,000. JC°

~C T U

N e N
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

14. LEASES (Cont'd)

14. & (&)

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

(i) RIEBERIRE

31 December
2019
=E-NF
t=ZA=+—-~H
HK$'000
FET

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities

(iv) Others

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total
cash outflow for leases amount to HK$1,665,000.

. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

EREEEFTERX
HEREMNERAX 264

3,119

(iv) Hft

HE-_Z—NAF+-_A=+—HIL*F
E-HEMREeRHEREA1,665,000
BT

15. A{SHEHEME

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHET

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: ~ RNEB 2 B A EHKIE BT :
Land use right in the PRC B 2+ b 5 R 46,924

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEMAB 2N

Current assets MENE B 1,207
Non-current assets FMBEE 45,717
46,924

The prepayment for land use rights represents leasehold
land in the PRC and is amortised over 50 years on a
straight-line basis.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s prepaid lease
payments of HK$16,318,000 were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group. No
prepaid lease payments were pledged to secure general
banking facilities during the year ended 31 December
2019.

As explained in note 2, the Group’s prepaid lease
payments were reclassified as right-of-use assets as at 1
January 2019 upon the application of HKFRS 16.

T FREsBNRARTREZHE T
W% B4R A D S0F i gH o

RZZE—-NF+=ZA=+—H A£EZ
8T E 7 IE 16,318,000/ T & HIF1E A
REBFER —RBTEEZER -#HE
—E-NAF+-_A=Zt+—HLEFE HE
FENAERERIFEARNEEER —K
BITEEZER-

SN 2R - R EM S —F — h
A — B IR A BB B W85 LR 169
RN AERERN DA A BEAE -

E—

;
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS 16. REFE DA o R RENEZE QT

DUE TO ASSOCIATES 2 FRIE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Cost of unlisted investment iR/ L0 S = N D N
in associates 35,107 3,616
Share of post-acquisition profit and FEE W B R T &
other comprehensive income Hfh 2 MK 1,308 212
36,415 3,828
Amount due to associates (note) JE(TBE 2N B 2 538 (HaE) 4,617 -
Note: et -
The amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest free and trading in EBE AR zRELAEER 22 BEHHEERE
nature with the credit term of 30-120 days. EHA30HZE120H
The following is an aged analysis by invoice date of trade NTARBREHREZEZAHZ20 2B
payables to associates at end of the reporting period: i N R BR R BRER AT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within 30 days 30HA 3,989 -
31 - 60 days 31£260H 628 -

4,617 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS 16. REME NBl R REMNBEE QAT

DUE TO ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) ZRIE (#)
Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2019 AEBBREATIR_ZE—NLF+A
and 31 December 2018 are as follows: =t—BRkZE-NF+tZA=t+—AHZ
HBWT:
Place of Attributable interest
establishment and proportion of
and principal voting power held
place of Form of by the Group
Name of associates operation business structure (Directly/indirectly) Principal activities
rEEEGERR
3L 1t 2 % RERERLH
BEARAER TELEHYE LCEARER (E#/ B#%) TEEK
2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
New Career Guangzhou The PRC Sino-foreign enterprise 30% 30% Manufacture and
Electronics Company Limited HINEEDE (directly) (directly) sale of flexible
("New Career") (E#) (E#) packaging
BNTEEEEFARAA substrates
(TEMZMBE]) BUERHERM
HEER
Jiujiang Flex Co., Limited The PRC Sino-foreign enterprise 48% - Manufacture and sale
("Jiujiang Flex") s RONEERE (indirectly) of flexible copper
NIBKRHERAR (B#) clad laminate and
(ThIEH=H]) relevant products
BUERHERMN

B EARER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS 16. REFE DA o R RENEZE QT

DUE TO ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated
22 March 2019, ZR#M(EB)ETFTEXAR QA
(transliteration as AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu)
Ltd., “"AKM Electronics Panyu”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into: (1) the equity
transfer agreement with TA KT T HREL QA
(transliteration as Jiangxi Changjiang Chemical Co., Ltd.,
“Changjiang Chemical”, a state-owned enterprise with
limited liability established in the PRC, which is owned
as to approximately 71.89% by TR/ IBHR A
7] (transliteration as Jiangxi Changhua Chemical Ltd.,
“Changhua Limited”) and is an indirect subsidiary of
hEEEEHEEBAER QT (transliteration as China
South Industries Group Corporation, “CSIGC"), a wholly
state-owned enterprise with limited liability established
in the PRC and a connected person of the Company
in relation to the acquisition of 38% equity interests
in Jiujiang Flex and (2) the equity transfer agreement
with Capital Loyal Limited (R3EHBR AT, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and an
independent third party) in relation to the acquisition of
10% equity interests in Jiujiang Flex (collectively referred
to as the “Acquisitions”), at a total cash consideration
of approximately RMB28,182,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$31,491,000).

ZFRIE (#)

BREARRBHPA-ZT—AhEF=ZA=-+=
BHOAH AAr2EHBRRTER
(BER)ETEXARAA([ZENES
BEF])(NETIARTICIARELAF
(I&RIeT)) (—MRFEKILZAR
EAEALE BIARMIECIARAR
([RIEBRAR]) HEEKIT1.89% e« I
ATFREREHEEEERAR ([FEEHE
#E]) (—HARPEXIZERETEE
BEPERARNGB ZBEAL) ZHEEN
BRARVEERSER  WENIEHRE
T HAT38% AR iE R ()E R AR A A (—M
REBFMERLZERAR WHE—BB
NEZR)FVNEERSAER  WENIE
HAT10%RiE (REA [WEEE]) 2
ReENRELHAEARE28,182,000T (HE
R 4931,491,000/87C) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS 16. J}Aﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂjziféﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂp%’ El

DUE TO ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)

Jiujiang Flex is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sales of flexible copper clad laminate and relevant
products. The directors of the Company consider that
the Acquisitions will facilitate the Company to capture
pioneer advantage in the research and development of
new materials and better equipped the Company for the
5G network era. Besides, the formal inclusion of Jiujiang
Flex into the supply chain system of the Group following
the Acquisitions will create strategic synergies within the
Group, and is anticipated to increase the sales income of
Jiujiang Flex, thereby achieving enhancement of the overall
results of the Group. The Acquisitions were completed on
23 April 2019.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements, prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements.

ZFE (&)

NIRKRHEBEBREERHEER
RErBREAEERMERM A RAE
EHE WBFEERAEDHARFEETY
KT EN L ERS WEARAETER
PESGRM B R o B o TR TR
WEEHTREERNMAREE M EE
ES i IR LA b SvA ST 4Py
FHHIR R ST R e ST S B IR - 1t
MBAAREE 2 BEBEE - WBFEER
—NFHAZ+=HREK-

AERBERR M BENBEHI M
T-THMBEMNRREERZE R AIRRE
BB HREEARE M ERERAMZS
ZEH-

fERNAERRDERNZSHEAMBRE
51 B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS 16. REFE DA o R RENEZE QT

DUE TO ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)

ZFRIE (#)

New Career E M %= fB 4%
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE 6,246 6,268
Current assets mENEE 17,023 9,545
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (715) -
Current liabilities mEAE (8,315) (3,053)
Net assets BEFE 14,239 12,760
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ ANEE R EEE Q72
interest in the associate mEEER LA 30% 30%
Group's share of net assets of REEEEBERAZ
the associate BEFE 4,272 3,828
Revenue PN 30,813 14,046
Profit for the year NF [E % A 1,793 543
Other comprehensive expenses RNEFHAMPDEFX
for the year (313) (608)
Profit (loss) and other comprehensive ~ AREEHEF (FE) &
income (expenses) for the year o emiies () 1,480 (65)
Group's share of profit & B FEAE B T 538 163
Group's share of other AEBREGEMEERT
comprehensive expenses (94) (183)

Dividend received from the associate

JE W Bt 2 12 B 2 IR B
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNTS 16. REME NBl R REMNBEE QAT

DUE TO ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) ZRIE (#)
Jiujiang Flex NIRRT
2019
ZE-AF
HK$'000
FERT

Non-current assets EMEEE 22,069
Current assets MENEE 59,354
Non-current liabilities EMBEE (2,231)
Current liabilities mEBEE (17,086)
Net assets BESFE 62,106
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REBRBE NG 2 AR

in the associate 48%
Goodwill Ba 2,332
Group's share of net assets of the associate REEEEHE AR ZEEFE 29,811
Revenue WA 62,974
Profit for the year ARF [ A 1,383
Other comprehensive expenses REFEMPERX

for the year (25)
Profit and other comprehensive NF s F R B A2 e

income for the year 1,358
Group's share of profit REEEE RN 664
Group's share of other comprehensive expenses 7K £ [E [ {5 E fib 2 f 52 (12)

i)
I

Dividend received from the associate JE U Bt 2 R B 2 AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

17. EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE 17. BAFEF AR ZEH KRGS 2 i
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TH
2019 2018
ZE-NF —Z-N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH T
Unlisted equity investment EETIRERE
— Equity instrument at fair value — AV EFAEMETE
through other comprehensive Wa oz EmTE
income 25,808 18,078
The amount represented the Group's 6.40% (2018:7.11%) ZRENAEERFBIKLA R E /I
unlisted equity interests in a company established in the ETBRAEENE6.40% (ZF— \F:
PRC. The investee is engaged in research and development 711%) o WIREH RN E LRI EER
of semi-conductor packaging substrates. The directors of Wi AR AEEFCEEBRZ SR
the Company have elected to designate this investment THZEEEERRNFETAEMEE
in equity instrument as FVTOCI as they believe this wm ARRERRZERENIIERFIERS
investment is not held for trading and not expected to be BWAFEERA R R EE - JLIHIRE I
sold in foreseeable future. This investment is denominated HEEEER 2 EE IR ARES|
in RMB other than the functional currency of the relevant BoZIELMEZNAFETEFBRAMN
group entity. Detail of the fair value measurement of this FE28H R EE -

unlisted equity interest is disclosed in note 28.

18. INVENTORIES 18. B &

2019 2018

—E-NF —T— )\

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAET

Raw materials R & 32,282 44,618

Work in progress F R 54,143 34,936

Finished goods 2K, i 38,423 38,258

124,848 117,812
The carrying amount of inventories for the Group as at 31 AEBR-_ZFE-NAF+_A=+—B2Z
December 2019 is approximately HK$124,848,000 (2018: FEERMAELNA124,848,0008 L (=&
HK$117,812,000), net of allowance for inventories of — V& 117,812,000 L) ' BB 17
approximately HK$12,712,000 (2018: HK$12,613,000). ERBE12,712,0008 L (ZF — )\ F:

12,613,000 7T) ©

RS —
S <R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. E5 R H W FIE
Trade and other receivables include the following balances: B REAMBWKIBERIE T4
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 W I8 665,447 506,486
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBBEEE (520) (127)
664,927 506,359
Other receivables b Uk 5K I8 8,831 7,431
Prepayments TET 3K 5,463 6,655
Tax recoverable A] Uz B 75 18 - 8,425
14,294 22,511
679,221 528,870
The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to AEEMEZESREPEE ZEERNF30
120 days to its trade customers. Before accepting any ZNR0ORPF -HEWNEMFEL 28 B
new customer, the management assesses the potential BEeHETEP2EEER UETE
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by EPAZEZEEREE

customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 9. B NHMEWRIE (&)
PAT AR R4 B R (B4R fE U A B3R B 1
M) 8 S EUGERIE (SRR ZAH2
Iz EEEREE) (REBZEZEA
BHIZ 52 U E RN 2 BR B ST

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables,
net of allowance for credit losses presented based on
the invoice dates (other than bills receivables which are
presented based on the issuance date of relevant bills) at
the end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Within 30 days 308 A 332,680 266,561
31 - 60 days 31%60H 157,915 105,349
61 — 90 days 61%290H 97,291 58,657
91 — 120 days 91Z120H 54,475 54,909
121 days — 1 year 18 &21F 22,566 20,883
664,927 506,359

Included in the Group’s trade receivable is (i) amount
due from a shareholder and its subsidiaries amounting
to approximately HK$70,297,000 (2018:HK$72,190,000)
and (ii) amount due from an associate amounting to
approximately HK$1,207,000 (2018:HK$164,000).

The Group's trade and other receivables that are
denominated in currencies other than functional currencies
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

REEZEFRERBFBELGBIE)ER—

A% 3R K B B A Bl /9 5118 4970,297,000

BT (=ZZ—)\F :72,190,000/8 78 ) M (i)

fE W — R B & A R FRIE 491,207,000 7T
—ZF— \4F 164,000/ T) °

UHEREEERYES

WA 2 B FIE

ZAKEE S R HE M EUGRIESRI T

2019 2018
—E-hE —EF-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

usD ETT 72,182 84,005

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, refer to
note 28 for details.

AEBRBASERFEREREEREZS
HAEE RN ENEERE FE2
BB sE28 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

20. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

21.

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group
and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits of the Group carried at fixed
interest rate of 0.02% per annum (2018: 0.02% per
annum). The pledged bank deposits will be released
upon withdrawal of banking facilities. The pledged bank
deposits are denominated in HKS.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits with
original maturity less than three months which carry at
floating interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.00%
(2018: 0.01% to 3.34%) per annum.

Included in the Group's bank balances are short-
term deposits of approximately HK$43,796,088 (2018
HK$98,148,000) kept in banks located in the PRC.

In addition, included in the bank balances and cash are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are:

20. B FWITFRX

21.

ZRBREBRTRITZER BIEERE
TAEEZEHRTEE AEE2BERR

ANEEZBEEMRITEFRIZEEFHE
0.02% (ZF — \F : FH*E0.02% ) 5+
BoBEBRITFRENIRNRITEER
FRBR - B IR IRITIF R T AB TTETE -

RITHEBRRRE

IRITHEHRBIEUN T0.01%E3.00% 2%
FFEFKR(ZZFT—)\F:0.01%=3.34% )
FEERFBBE LR =ZEA 2B HEITE

Eo
A °

AEERTEBBEEREMLRATE 2
R17T 2 5% Bi1F 5 #943,796,0888 T ( — &
— J\£F 198,148,000/ 7T ) °

BEAN RITREB LR BRE N IIAARESE
BERBZHEERNUINZEEIE K
I8 :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT T T

usD ETT 17,591 95,880
KRW G2 E 62 104
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. BES REMENSFE

Trade and other payables include the following balances:

B 5 REMBNFIABRE TR

2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FH& T
Trade and bills payables (note (a) below) & 5 &~ X 18 % i Z 4%
( FXHiit(a)) 335,844 340,931
Payables for acquisition of property, WEME BELEEZ
plant and equipment JE A~ RE 31,371 29,522
Accrued staff costs Bt 8 T kA 36,965 26,188
Construction payables FET T2 FRIR 9,379 9,008
Amount due to a shareholder & — B IR R IR
(note (b) below) (FxXHaz®b)) 5,303 -
Other tax payables E h T B 1B 8,967 4,040
Received from restricted stock W ER B PR i) 1 A% 2= R B 5T &l
incentive scheme 12,221 -
Other payables and accruals E fh JE T 5RIE K fEET B A 27,495 16,251
467,545 425,940
Notes: Hi# -
(a) Trade and bills payables (a) BSEMNRERENSZEE

ITARBERREZEEAH " SHEEARY
2z E S RNFARENERZRE DT

The following is an aged analysis by invoice date/bills issued date of
trade and bills payables at the end of the reporting period:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZET-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Within 30 days 30B A 218,502 119,291
31 - 60 days 31260H 70,503 91,481
61 — 90 days 61290H 40,365 77,454
91 - 120 days 91£120H 6,370 40,818
121 days — 1 year 1218 &145F 103 8,198
Over 1 year 1 £ 1 3,689
335,844 340,931
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d) 22. ESREMBNRIE (&)

Notes: (Cont’d) st (&)

(b) Amount due to a shareholder (b) EF—BRRFE
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into HE_Z-NWE+_A=+—HLEE K£&
Technology Development Co-operation Agreement (the “CNIGC BEPEERTIEEEEGRAR ([PEERT
Agreement”) with R EEE THXEBEBR QA (transliteration as ¥ RPERI2EREFEEBECE R
China North Industries Group Corporation ("CNIGC"), a wholly state- AABZRRREAEBAL)FTILRMHEEIES
owned enterprise with limited liability established in the PRC which B (THFEERTESR]) BEFRERIE
is a shareholder and a connected person of the Company). Pursuant ER-AEEETEERTEEER ,\ﬁﬂé"‘IE
to the CNIGC Agreement, the Group participates in a research and A(THEERTHXEBER]) -FA R
development project with CNIGC Group (the “CNIGC Project”). ¥SEERTHRERITEER ﬁﬂﬁ%fiﬁﬁﬂ
During the year, research and development fee of RMB8,000,000 % 5 AR 8,000, OOOTE(*H%“ A #478,930,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,930,000) has been paid by CNIGC B) REE_T-NFTA=+—HILF
Group to the Group in relating to the CNIGC Project. The amount E BE8MA; AIEZ’JFEB 627,000/% 7t o AT AR B
of approximately HK$3,627,000 has been utilised during the year BIXFABR-_T_TF=MK-

ended 31 December 2019. It is expected the CNIGC Project will be
completed in 2020.

(c) Other () Hfb
The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated in RSB EREERUINZEEIEZ R
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group SEE S REAMENREBEEHINOT

entities are set out below:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-)\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

JPY A - 9,510
EUR BT - 313
usD ETT 30,610 40,474
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23. DEFERRED INCOME 23. EFEUR A
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Government grants received BTIEIBEMWER 2
in respect of: BT 2 B -
Development of new products and FEHERUAREE RF&
plant and equipment (note a) (Hiita) 17,714 -
Construction of factory on existing RIRE T FHERE
lands (note b) (Biath) 23,516 24,805
41,230 24,805
Less: Amounts to be recognised in B RER B N 2 FOE
profit or loss in the
following year (3,968) (763)
Amount shown under non-current FEMBEBBEBET RIS
liabilities 37,262 24,042
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23. DEF

Notes:

(a)

(b)

ERRED INCOME (Cont’d)

Development of new products and plant and equipment

(i) The Group has undertaken a research and development
project, “02 Major Project”, of certain flexible packaging
substrates products since 2014. Research and development
expenditure incurred for the project has been recognised in
profit or loss in prior years since the commencement. The
project has been completed in 2017. During the year ended
31 December 2019, an amount of HK$1,036,000 (2018: Nil) in
respect of the release of government grant for the plant and
equipment of the 02 Project was credited to profit or loss.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2019, a total amount
of HK$23,316,000 (2018: HK$31,758,000) was released to
profit or loss in relation to part of research and development
expenses incurred on the development of certain new
products.

Construction of factory on existing lands

In 2010, an amount of RMB26,750,000 was received in respect
of a development support fund for the construction of factory on
existing lands owned by the Group located at Suzhou pursuant to
“Implementation Measures for Development Support Policies for
Advanced Manufacturing Industries in Suzhou Gaoxin District”. The
amount would be released over the estimated useful lives of the
constructed factory upon the commencement of operation of the
new factory. The construction of the factory was completed and
was in use since 2011. During the year, an amount of HK$760,000
(2018:HK$791,000) in respect of the release of government grant for
construction of factory on existing lands of the Group was credited
to profit or loss. Details in relation to the grant of the fund had been
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 25 September
2008.

24. BANK BORROWINGS

23.

EIEWA (&)

Brat -

(a)

(b)

REMERURBEERRE

() AEEBE-T—NFREAE02HHE] -
REMBETRIMEHEERERZE
B-BEERBUNR ZIEBMEENH
ERIENBEFENBERTER Z
BEER T —+tE&EXZK -HE=-ZT— AN
F+—A=+—RILFE FHEER02E
TH RS K 7% 8 2 TR 2 B & #81,036,000
BT (ZE—N\F:&E)Bst AB&HE-

iy HEZFE-—hAhF+-_A=+—8BLHF
€ 4%823,316,0008 T (Z T — )\ :
31,758,000 L) EFAE A THERE
EZE DR ER TR

REBL LEERE

RZE—TF BHARK26,750,0007T .2 3IA
BAEERE [#HMNE N RER RS e
BERRBBRZERINE] RERSENEFHR
B FEEBEMBMZERKIFES &K
HE R E s & B R R TR ERE 2 &5 AT
FEREHER - ZREOERT YA T ——
FRABERA - FN BHERRASEREF L
i S5 R 5 2 BT 2 Bl 28760,00075 70 (=&
—\4 :791,000% 7T ) Bt A B4 - A BEATER
BEHMHEBORARBBHAE-_STNENA
—+HAMNAHPHEE -

24. RITIBE

2019 2018
—®-nE  -TN\%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
B T

Bank

Loan — Secured

RITER-FER

39,358 -
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24. BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 24. SR1TEE (&)
RZE-—NE+_A=1+—8 HRTEX
% %E#)/539,358,00008 7T (Z & — )\ F:
@) UAEBBFERRITFERELER
(H15£31) o

As at 31 December 2019, bank loans amounting to
approximately HK$39,358,000 (2018: Nil) were secured
by charges over buildings and bank deposits of the Group
(note 31).

RZZE—NEF+-_A=+—H KEEIR
TEERTEMNRGE TAER—FEANE
B(ZZ—N\F &)

At 31 December 2019, the bank borrowings of the Group
were bore interest at variable rates and repayable within
one year (2018: nil).

AEBEEZERMX (TBESZERETOFN

The ranges of effective interest rates (which also equal to

contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are as K)SHEMT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
Effective interest rates: BERF xR
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE LIBOR+1.5% P.A. N/AAT i A
ERABTEE
FESM1.5%H
FREFE

UHEREEEREERUINZEEIE
ZAKBERTIEEHNNOT

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —EF-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

usD ETT 39,358 N/AT i@ A
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. IR
Number of Share
shares capital
REER [N
HK$'000
FAT
Issued and fully paid: EBITRAR:
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF—AF—H 1,234,337,500 466,667
Issue of subscription shares BITRERD
(note below) (FXHIEE) 303,900,000 454,886
At 31 December 2018 and NZE— \¢+ A
at 31 December 2019 =+t—HERZZ—NF
+=—A=+— 1,538,237,500 921,553
Note: it -
On 30 January 2018, the Company issued 103,900,000 ordinary shares RZZE—NF—A=1+8 RARSHNUNFRI.5ET
and 200,000,000 ordinary shares at the subscription price of HK$1.5 per ZREEBMZRANEXEBERARIRZRMBZ(EE)E
share to Alpha Luck Industrial Limited and Anjie Technology (Hong Kong) fR 72 &) 8 17103,900,000% & 3 A% 52200,000,000% &
Company Limited respectively. The net proceeds raised by the Company AR o NR RIS 2 T3 5B FFEX) /454,886,000
were approximately HK$454,886,000. The number of ordinary shares in B ARE B ETEBKREEEE1,538,237,500
issue of the Company increased to 1,538,237,500 shares. The new shares RePIBITZHRMESHITZRBERNRAETE

issued rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares in issue. BHEBREMA -
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION

26. IEFEFLIE

The following deferred tax liability arises from temporary
difference associated with the undistributed profits of the
PRC subsidiaries and movement thereon during current
and prior year:

AT A B b B B /B8 2 A) 2 R 0 Bic s AU AR
MeEREZRMELEZEERARE &
ERAFERBEFEZEBE

HK$'000

FAET

At 1 January 2018 R-ZF—-N\F—A—H 9,106

Charged to profit or loss (note 9) EEEEMR (AE9) 1,563

Currency realignment B (473)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—HEK

—E-hF—H—H 10,196

Charged to profit or loss (note 9) BER RN (A529) 1,509

Currency realignment B (250)

At 31 December 2019 RZE—-—NAF+ZA=+—H 11,455

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
the deductible temporary differences in respect of
accumulated provision for allowance for credit losses and
accumulated allowance for inventories of approximately
HK$520,000 (2018: HK$127,000) and HK$12,712,000
(2018: HK$12,613,000) respectively. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$226,545,000 (2018:
HK$222,328,000) available for offset against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
The unrecognised tax losses arising from subsidiaries
operated in the PRC of approximately HK$225,108,000
(2018: HK$222,328,000) will expire from 2019 to 2022.
Other tax losses arising from group companies in Hong
Kong may be carried forward indefinitely.

RBERR AEEHEFHEEEEBRE
ZENBERTE 2R BEMRBR AT
TR ERE S RI4520,0008 T (ZF— )\
:127,000% 70) &% 12,712,000 7T (=
T — )\ :12,613,000/870) ° BH A 68
FERTER B R E AR =58 At
I 4 5% 0] R e B E B R R IR IR

RIREBR  NEBEEA AT R R ER
i M) 2 oK B A3 % 18 85 18 49226,545,000
BT (—ZF—/\%¥:222,328,000/ 7T ) ° M
A SR 3R FE SR B ) SRR R AT ORI - B ke
BREABCEHBEEE NPBIES 2B
N REERERTIIEE1849225,108,0007%
T (=% — )\ 4 :222,328,000/8 7T) #§ 1
CE-NEFEE__FHH - SEAQF
REBEE 2 HMHRIBEEN TERBA
B
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26.

27.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amount to approximately HK$148,717,000 (2018:
HK$142,681,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

LIABILITY DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
entered into Technology Development Co-operation
Agreement (the “CNIC Agreement”) with B4t 5 T
# G A A (transliteration as China North Industries
Corporation (“CNIC"), a wholly state-owned enterprise
with limited liability established in the PRC is a shareholder
and a connected person of the Company. Pursuant
to the CNIC Agreement, the Group participates in a
research and development project directed by CNIC (the
“CNIC Project”). During the year ended 31 December
2018, research and development fee of RMB15,000,000
(equivalent to HK$17,120,000) has been paid by CNIC to
the Group in relating to the CNIC Project. It is expected
that the CNIC Project will be completed in 2020. During
the year, the entire amount was fully utilised by setting off

the research and development expenses.

26.

27.

EIERLIR (&)

BERABECEMERE BT N\F—
A — BB B E A 7 A B & AT
FIRMRBBEBMENT - N2 E TR
KPUWERTENE AR RTEFNATESE
)RS 1 = 58 49148,717,0008 T (=&
— \4E © 142,681,0005 7T ) E LR T Fi 18
BE RARAAEEENTHZERFEE
BEHREKRE BZYRHEEET A8
AR KR A o

BN—URRzZEE

BE-Z-N\EF+_A=+—HILEFE-
ANEBMBERBFELFTEERAR ([dEHFT
¥ RHPERKYcBERETREBED
¥ BARRIZBRELKBEAL)I LR
MHAZEAEER (kA IEER]) - BRI
A IHEER AEELE—HRHILEFT
XEBEMHBIEE ([EFITHEEE]) -
HE-_T - \F+-A=+—HIEFE"
ATt TIX¥BEERAEES
i3 8 A A R #15,000,0000T (HHE R
17,120,000/ 7T ) » FaFHdL 77 TEIE B # R
ZEZTFRK - FAN - RIREC B
AR EEE R -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. eRIT A
Categories of financial instruments ERMIAEER
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FH& T
Financial assets cHMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost RBERK AT ECERMEE 795,829 669,013
Equity instruments designated EEREBEATVEFTARMEE
at FVTOCI W z#gm TR 25,808 18,078
Financial liabilities EA =R
Amortised cost B AR 449,582 383,370
Financial risk management objectives MERBREERE
The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's PRMIAHAEE  AFEEERAES -
daily operations. The Group’s major financial instruments AEEZFTZSRMIERREEEREAT
include equity instrument designated at FVTOCI, trade and Bt A\Hth2HWE 2 #am TR - BH K
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances Hitn eI - B RRITER - IRITAR
and cash, trade and other payables, amounts due to R\ & B 5 K HE bR I - BB E
associate and bank borrowings. Details of these financial ARARBERBITEE - ZFeMI A
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The BREBMERE TXEHINEZF SR
risks associated with these financial instruments and the T EB Mz R ks K a0 ] b K 7% 5 &L b 2 I
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. K-BEEEEREREEZSER  URRKRRK
The management manages and monitors these exposures I 75 2 R BUE 2 2 18 1 o

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. SRIT R (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d) MERBEEBEZE (&)
Market risk 5 E ke
Foreign currency risk management Sh R g B HE

Certain trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and bank balances and cash
of the Group are denominated in US$, other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The
Group has not used any financial instruments to hedge
against currency risk. However, the management monitors

AEBzETEGREMBKFTIE -B5
R B AN FRIE ~ SRTT 8 B A RIRTT A #R
MR DAET(FRAREHREERER
DR E®)FHE BEARKEAZINERR -
AEFBIARNBERNSRB T AL TEEE
oA BEEEEEIIERAR YEEHR
EREEHIPEARINE R

foreign currency risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

R@EAH AEBIUSINEFEZEEE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at ErEYaE s EEAENT
the reporting date are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
g EE
2019 2018 2019 2018

Sg-AF “FT\F ZE-AE “T)F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

THE  TEx  FER THR

usD ey 69,968 40,474 89,773 179,885




Annual Report 2019 —Z—hEFER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. ®RT A (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2018: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against US$.
5% (2018: 5%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis represents the
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
bank borrowings, and bank balances and cash where
the denomination are in US$, the major foreign currency
risks. A positive number indicates an increase in profit
for the year where RMB weakens against US$. For a 5%
strengthens of RMB against US$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year,
and the balances below would be negative.

MEEBERERR (&)

TEmE (E)

bEE €9

TRALARBEHARE LR TAERE
B5% (ZF—NF:5%) 2HFEE 5%
(ZF—\F:5% ) RREEE LI EE
Rl a BB 2 HE - HBREINE
BREERFEZNIIMNEHEZERKIER -
WRFERBERFFRINEE R 25% 2 E)1F
HFE - AR (EBIMNERR) FHE
BREIMRERES REMEKRE &
5 R E M FRIE - RITEE A RIRITA
BRIRE - WMARBAETRE EHAIK
REREMEMN - BN ARE L EXTTHE
5% #EFARRBREEMNE —EEE 28
REE mMTIEREERBEEC

2019 2018
—®-AE T \E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Increase in post-tax profit for the year: N4 & (& 4 1% 5% ) 48 A0 -
usD e 842 5,925

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits (see note 20).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances and bank borrowings. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider other necessary action when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of LIBOR arising from bank borrowings.

FIE 7 2 & FE

AEETHEHESCERRITERZAF
BMERE (ZHiE20)

AEETEHRITERIRITEREZR S
M) 2R L B o A 5% [ 3R By 3 4 R 2R B IR
ReAm EREERENEXAR YHR
BEHHOREAN KRR EBEMBNET
B AKEHRSANEXER  TBEFR
RITIEEEENRBERTRAEFR BN -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. SRIT R (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk management (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

The management considered that, the Group does not
have material interest rate risk exposure and hence no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investment in equity securities measured at FVTOCI.
The Group invested in unquoted equity securities for an
investee operating in research and development industry
sector for long term strategic purposes which had been
designed as FVTOCI. The Group has appointed a special
team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
Sensitivity analyses for unquoted equity securities with fair
value measurement categorised within Level 3.

Credit risk and impairment assessment
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which

will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising

from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group.

BEEBERERR (&)

T mE ()

F|EmpEE (&

BRRE DT

B E R AN B I & B KR X E R
A - A &2 5 SRR E DT -

1 (8157 B

AEERERZAFESAREMEE S
AEZERARBAFZREARIEMEREA
o AEEKRER —URARLAETE
RENREHR 2 AMERRES HE
HIBE BN RBEEEREAFEMAR
hEERE ARECZEEEEKRESR
B AHNBEHREREELHER -

BRRE DT

HRESM DR E®RE AR Z RAERE
RETE - BOBESMABHURFENE
HIRIR(E 2 S E SRR E D TR EN
—FO

1= B 7 B2 K 6l 18 5P 1

AEERE FHREBITE A LSRN
MEBEMEAENESEERRASTES
BMEERAEBG S MR IUR PR
FRmEE -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. ®RT A (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and bills receivables. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and
credit approvals. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group uses an internal credit scoring system to
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed once a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 on each individually for
debtors with significant balances and collectively for
other. The provision rates applied is estimated using the
historical observed default rates of the debtors taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonably and supportably available without undue costs
or effort. At the end of each of the reporting period, these
historical loss rates are reassessed and updated if required
after considering the forward-looking information then
available to the directors of the Company. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
90% (2018: 85%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2019.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 19% (2018:
23%) and 72% (2018: 69%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively within the circuit boards and
components business segment.

BEEBERERR (&)

EEm AR B EFE (F)

AEEWEERR T EZREE S ERHA
LEERE  RREREEERR AKE
EEEAEGEEEEGERBRETRE
EEM EERMNEAFELZH  AKEE
ERAMEEND ZGHEEEERPZE
EEx IBEEFPAZAZEERE &
FPRBEERFNEEFETEN A&H
TR E At 12 Fr B R BR BXUER A 15 it DA MR [B1 38
HIER - poh AEBEABRBYBRESE
AIFESR R IRIBEEMEEERRIURE RS
REREROER AETBLBER
mEMEBH ARG S G ETREE P
J& P RO & 1 R T 65 PR I WO IR I R S B AR
BAXRETHR ETPEZERBABEN
ARBHEAMENEEREEBEIFD
AIEEER - RERERR  HMEZEER
ARREZABHNAELEENRESAER
2 SENFEIERREELEOET 5
RS ARAEERRAKEZERRA
RPN

AEERMEESNEPEERBREEE
FEER=ZT-AF+ZA=1+—H0H
B 5B EENI0% (T — \F :
85% ) °

MR EBEIR A ER D EBAERKTER
BABRFRAREFNE 5 EKFED 5
I ERRENI9% (2T — )\F :23%)
572% (ZZE— 1\ : 69% ) ' th N EHE
BEEHEERR-




184 AKM Industrial Company Limited ZEFBEXERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R aR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. SRIT R (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than the concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with good
reputation and high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances has
not increased significantly since initial recognition and
has assessed the expected credit loss rate under 12m ECL
method based on the Group’s assessment in the risk of
default of the respective counterparties.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:
— internal credit rating
—  external credit rating

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligations

- actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor

BHEEBEERE (F)
1= B /7 B2 R Bl B P 14 (42)

RITERNEERRER REER 5
FHERBEETARES TEETR
ZERTTe

BERRZHABEBRIFIERREENR
MIRITHRBESHEAEREERARIN
AEBYBEIMEBENEFEERR
BRRR D BN ZEHFI7 -

AEBRREMEKRIE CEMBETHE
RIESRITRERR R E B R B V] B IAK
WEKE LT YERBEANEELHHEES
FHENRRNFERB12EAEREE
BRI AN GEEBEEREX

AEERNSEREERZEENME
UEREEREHEFEEREERRK
L RAFAEERREEARLA A
SEBNBEARNEEZLEDNEKRE

VIFHERBHNRORRELE EPE
BRAEGEXFUEMNRELEER AEE
MEREMAREEEFL-

LHEREMAATIER:

- ABEEFR

- INEMEERAR

- EB MBEALERRNERKEY

BERTHNES MK EREBAR
THERZRENBELEEARE

- EHAGEREZERIEREAT
L
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont‘d)

28. SRIT R (&)

185

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment

BHRAREERRE (&)

EEmBRBETE(E)

AEEHNAREERRTEFEREAT

comprises the following categories: A
Internal Trade Other
credit rating Description receivables financial assets
A E &R i g5 EWHE HitEmEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not  Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
e XHUFENRRE  TEEMBHARE FEHRHEEER- NEARHEEESR
(BEERE)
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle Lifetime ECL - 12-month ECL
after due date not credit-impaired
FER EBRARERHHERES ERENANBRRE FRERBHEEEE- NEAEHESEESE
(EEERE)
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
initial recognition through information developed not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
& BREBATELXERENBRBNERNSERN FEDRAEEHE- FEBRBCESHE-
X EERBBEEEM (EEERE) (BEEERE)
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired
R BERRKPEENREERE FERREEEFE- HFEBNELAEEER-
(EEHE) (EEHE)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe  Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
%3 ERSRAEBABARENMBRE AfAKEKE REERZHE TR AL

TENFEYE

B
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 28. €W T H (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d) HERREEREZ (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd) EEmERAETG (&)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of TRANAEBEEZEXFEREEBETG

the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL WemEENEERR

assessment:

2019 2018

—E-hE Z—Z-)N\F

Gross Gross

Internal credit carrying carrying

Note rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount amount

128 B 7

W ABEETR BHEESE AEEE BEEHEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FAT
Financial assets at
amortised cost

BRBERAGTECERMEE

Trade receivables 19 Note (i) & (ii) Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 665,447 506,486

Z 5 EWIE B2 3) R (i) FEHESAEEER

- ¥ EERE

Other receivables 19 Low risk 12-month ECL 8,831 7,431

Hofth U FR I8 g REAEBREEEE

Pledged bank deposits 20 Low risk 12-month ECL 2,364 2,358

BEEBRITER gl REABHEEBA

Bank balances and cash 21 Low risk 12-month ECL 119,707 152,865

ROTEBRER S g NREAEBEERSE

Notes: iz -

()  As at 31 December 2019, the gross amount of trade receivable () MZZE-NF+ZA=+—H0B BHRFENESE
arising from contract with customers amount to HK$665,447,000 8 E 5 FE W 3R IB 42 88 5665,447,0008 0 (= F
(2018: HK$506,486,000). The balances of trade receivable are no —J\4F : 506,486,000/& 7T ) « B 5 JEWGRIAN &
past due over one year. BRI R — R B -

(i)  For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach (il HEBEZEKFENS AXEEATEUBRS
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group ERIESRHE T A UFEPBEREERBE
determines the expected credit losses for individually significant trade FEEBRE AEEHEKXNE S EYGRIERES
debtors and collectively for others. ETEREERE mEMERRIBRSEE

TE e

—




Annual Report 2019 —Z—hEFER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont‘d)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

28. SRIT R (&)
MEERESERE (&)

EEmBRBETE(E)

e (&)

187

(ii)

(Cont’d)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has
been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

(ii)

(#)

TRETREMGETTARE 5 EUPRERK
FEAFEHAEEERNES-

(iii)

(iv)

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-

impaired)

FERBES

FEEA

(BiEERHME)

HK$'000

FET

As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—N\F—HA—H 12

Increase in allowance B 127

Exchange adjustments [ 56 3 & (12)
As at 31 December 2018 and R_ZE-NF+ZA=+—BER=Z—AF—A—AH

1 January 2019 127

Increase in allowance B LM 402

Exchange adjustments R 9)

As at 31 December 2019 RZE-—NE+A=+—H 520

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group
has applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at 12m ECL as there is no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. The Group determines the expected
credit losses for other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances by assessment of probability of default. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, in view of the nature of these balances,
historical settlement record and good reputations of the banks, the
Group considers the provision of impairment allowance for other
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances is insignificant.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the current reporting period.

EEOS TSI

RABEERBRERNS  dARNEERR B ER
VAR B A 0R EF - REBE B EBYBRE
EREIF M —M A 2@ A TEMSEEEE
AEERRE  AEEEBTERONRETE
IR - B IR IRIT R R RITA RN TER
EREER - REE-T-NF+-_A=t—R1
FEENZEEHROLE  BEANLERR
THREFBRE AEERAREMERR
ERBITF R ERIT AR ER B LS
WAEK-

37K 354 MR B AR f f B SRR L 0 B AR
RUEED -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. SRIT R (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the risk that the Group will have
insufficient resources to meet its financial liabilities as they
fall due. The Group's strategy to manage liquidity risk is to
ensure that the Group has sufficient funds to meet all its
potential liabilities as they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management also monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial

liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

BEEBERERR (&)
MEBE % E R

nBEERREAEEKETEEREN
Eﬂ%%ﬂEEZH CAKEEERD
ExRBcRESERRAKSEEREE
TREPRENHBEEERE:

ERDECRARERTEH ~AEBESER
LRgBEREERRRAEZLRERREEE
HEKF KMAAEELEERTEES R
REBReRERD X E - BEEENEE
RITBEZHARERETERZLY -

REE DK

TRALAREIFTESREBEZIRTA
RZIMBER  ZRREAKEANKZ &
FHMZERBEBEZARAFTRASRER
BB RIR - A REBRERGRNERTE
%E*A??Mﬁﬁ%' i % B RAT
BEBTERSEMNOA N LMIFITE
SREBENIERTDRERENERBH
B
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. ST H (&)

Financial risk management objectives (Cont’d) HERBEERE(Z)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) mEBELERE (&)
Liquidity tables (Cont'd) HEBE2 &K (&)

TRERNBEAE ZHEER

o

El]

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

On demand Total Total
and less undiscounted carrying
than 1 year 1-2 year 2-5year  cash flows amount
RERE
BERIR ARRE
1% 122% 2E5% REBE EHAE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TAT TAT TAT

At 31 December 2019 R-ZB-hE

+=p=+-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities: FTESRABE:
Trade and other payables ZH5REMENTE 405,607 - - 405,607 405,607
Amounts due to associates JERE & ARl 2 B 4,617 - - 4,617 4,617
Bank borrowings BITIEE 39,726 - - 39,726 39,358

449,950 - - 449,950 449,582

Lease liabilities HEAE 1,432 1,432 1,960 4,824 4,593
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F

+-A=+-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities: FTEeBaE:
Trade and other payables B REMERFTE 383,370 - - 383,370 383,370
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. SRIT R (&)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMIENAFEFE
AEEMBRAIEERSREHREZAFE
FrE. TRITMMEEBRAEE ZAF
B(LERGERERTAEE) -

The Group’s equity investment is measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of the equity
investment is determined (in particular, the valuation
technique and input used).

BEEMBEEL N FEFSENEEELTH

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis BELFHE
Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy  and key input(s) unobservable input
tREE RUTEHENAEE ATEER REEMRIEBAZE EATTEEBAYE
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
—E-NE —Z-N\F
+=A TR
=t-8 =f-H°
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FTiET
Unlisted equity instrument 25,808 18,078  Level 3 Market approach: estimated  Discount for lack of
designated at FVTOCI B3 net profits with main marketability 29.80%.

HERERATEFALDE
HRERIE EMRATA

multiple being Price-to-
Earnings multiples of
comparable companies and
a discounted rate for lack
of marketability

WiEE  EDFFAE 26
YO ELBR AR AL
EERER S T35 M ATk

(2018: 17.37%)
determined with reference
to the share price of listed
entities in similar industry

SREMUTELTEEZRE
ETRzmSREL T
#29.80% (=T —N\F:
17.37%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. ST H (&)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Cont’d)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Cont’d)

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk on the unlisted
equity securities in financial assets designated at fair value
through OCI at the end of the reporting period. Should
the discount rate for lack of marketability on such unlisted
equity securities had been 10% (2018: 10%) higher/lower
and all the other variables were held constant, the Group’
s FVTOCI reserve would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2,500,000 (2018: increase/decrease by HK$2,000,000)
arising from the equity instrument at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

EWMITANQTPEFE (&)

BEEMBEUAFEABHEIEBLH
BERAFHE(#)

RAFERER  &HI -~ RBI2FFZ BB 2 BR
BEB-

TXZBRERESMIIRIERE BRI TE
ARAFEFAHMEZERSIHEREE
FEELETRAFZSMEYHRANER
FERET - WZFIELEMBRAESFRZ™T
SHEMITINE LA TRI10% (ZFE—N
F10%)  MEMAIEEHERFIE K
SEARATFEFAHEMEE RO ERS
TEMEEMEAFEN ALt 2EKE
FEE BN, R A #2,500,0008 7T (= F
— )\ #0798 4>2,000,0005 7T ) ©
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 28. €RIT A (&)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SRMIANATETE (&)
(Cont’d)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are BEEMBEELL FEFENEIEFLH
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Cont'd) BERXAFHE(E)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of RIEEHEREHEMEEETEIRATF
financial assets on recurring basis: BitE 28K
Financial assets
at FVTOCI
BRAFEFA
H 2w W =
ZERMEE
HK$'000
FET
From available-for-sale to FVTOCI upon RZZE-—NF—A—HEXER
Initial adoption of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 &8 i & A 595k /R Al 11
HEERAFEFARMEEYE 20,325
Fair value change recognised in other REMEEAREERZ A FEED
comprehensive income (1,359)
Currency realignment B (888)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF-—HA—BK
—E-N\F+ZA=+—H 18,078
Fair value change recognised in other REME2ERGEER 2 QT EE S
comprehensive income 8,253
Currency realignment BT (523)

As at 31 December 2019 R—E—-—hF+=-_A=+—H 25,808
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29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. EXEmEE

The Group manages the capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remain unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings disclosed in note 24, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis. The Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital, and will balance its overall capital
structure through the raising of bank borrowings and the
redemption of existing debt.

AEEZEAEREERRAKEAZE
BOARBELE ANEBRELER K
REBRBRRRALRRE R NEE 2 E
BRBEFREBEFERE -

AEBZEARBEREME24KE 2 R1T
fEE MEReEIREFEREUNREAR
AHRAARGED (BREBETERA R
) e

AEEEREREENEARE - AKE
ERBNERAKNARZSRERNEEZ B
WA BIE IRITEE RBRIEF BN
FEoMEEBEARE-
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30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

30. MEEBEERGEZHIR

TRAVNAKEREZDMELABZE
B (BRATCEY) METDELEZRE
BEAKBZGARERERA HAS
MEFIR (RERRRSRESHKIIR)
KEMEZBH RS RE-

Lease Dividend

liabilities payable Borrowings Total

HEAE EBARE BE #st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT FAT FHET

At 1 January 2018 R-—Z—N\E—A—R - - 67,976 67,976

Financing cash flows BERERE - (15,382) (67,542) (82,924)

Foreign exchange translation SNEHRE - - (649) (649)

Dividends declared (note 71) BEERRE (MiE11) - 15,382 - 15,382

Finance cost incurred BEELARERAK - - 215 215
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE-N\F

at 1 January 2019 +ZA=+—8k

—E-NF-A—H - - - -

New lease arrangement FHEETH 5,299 - - 5,299

Financing cash flows HERSME (1,137) (15,382) 40,078 23,559

Foreign exchange translation SNERE 167 - (720) (553)

Dividends declared (note 11) BEIRKRE (MiE11) - 15,382 - 15,382

Finance cost incurred BELERMERA 264 - . 264
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-NF

TZA=+—H 4,593 - 39,358 43,951
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31.

32.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain bank deposits,
buildings, right-of-use assets and trade receivables were
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the
Group as follows:

31.

BEERA

RBEHR THETRITER BF £
REEERESEYFEE TER R
AEBERRITEEZERIDT

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FH& T
Bank deposits |ITFEN 2,364 2,358
Buildings gF 46,488 49,291
Prepaid lease payments TEfTHE & SRR - 16,318
48,852 67,967
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 32. REHE&AE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREEA

At 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

R-E—\F+_A=+—8B AEER
B REFAARMECEHEEMR T
MBIz A RFERBERE Z RBITE

buildings which fall due as follows: T
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
THETT
Within one year —F RN 410

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of the office properties and staff
quarters. Leases are negotiated for terms within one year
(2018: one year).

REMENFTEARERETHAIEME
EBRIBEAXNzEE HREFER
—FR(ZFE-NF:—F)-

e —

g .
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33.

34.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

33. EREE

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET
Capital expenditure in respect of BEVE BELEHEZ
acquisition of property, plant and BARRT  BFTHERR
equipment which is contracted for eV BmERNEE
but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 83,658 66,222

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “"MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The retirement benefits scheme contributions
charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of approximately HK$37,000
(2018: HK$50,000) represent contributions payable to the
MPF Scheme by the Group, which contribution is matched
by employees.

The employees employed in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The Group
is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The state-managed retirement benefits scheme
contributions charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted
to approximately HK$13,597,000 (2018: HK$11,392,000).
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

4. RKBRIEE

AEBAMBEEEZAERERR LR
I AEeETE ([RERFTE]) - REE
B kEME2ERERANZ ZRIKET
STEIH R AB37,0008 T (T — )\ &F:
50,000 7T) - JYERAEBE I TaE e
B\ mMEESELERMER-

AEBTBEMNELAREAZEE AP
BFEEzZEERKEFGTEZKE -
AEBERRKENFEEINHE2H
TEOUIERENE RicGBRERHEM
2EWERAI L 2B RKEHEE
HF 4 513,597,000 T (- — N\ &
11,392,000 7T ) © 2 & B 70 3R K& B &t
Bz —EFRBEZEEL R E 2 #

=+
e

AR B A A58 WA SRAT R R 3R A R A
Z K-
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35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 35. PR &I IR Z B 5T 2

(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive (a) PREMERERBFTEME
scheme

DT 2 IR R A 8 (T3
HOR-T-NE+-A+=gKE
FRBBREM LR B NE—
B=+— BB REBHAR LE

The restricted stock incentive scheme (“the Scheme”)
of the Company was approved and adopted by the
Board of Directors on 13 December 2018, and was
duly passed by the independent shareholders by way

of poll at the extraordinary general meeting held on B IR ER B o

31 January 2019.

(1) Purpose (1) B8
The purpose of the Scheme is to further improve STEIEEE - T HEREEND
corporate governance of the Group, retain and AER B RYEFE2EE

([FH8128%E ) AAEENKE
BRREMEHER B3Rz

motivate its participants of the Scheme (“Scheme
Participants”) to make contributions to the long-

)

term growth and profits of the Group with a
view to achieving the objectives of increasing
the value of the Group and to promote a
greater alignment of interests between the
Scheme Participants and the shareholders of the
Company.

Scope of Scheme Participants

The Scheme Participants shall include the
executive director(s), members of the senior
management and management personnel who,
as determined by the Board of the Directors,
contribute directly to the overall business
performance and sustainable development of the
Company.

2

RAASEEBEMNER £5E
S EERANR R Z EEF
FHBR B

it B2 B E

FHEI2EE R BEARFNRT
EE SABEABURKES
SRENHARNRAEBEENE
BEREEEFENEERTRA

=
B o
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35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 35. R&BIMERE M BRI (&)
(Cont’d)
(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive (a) REIERERBAEME (£2)

scheme (Cont’d)

(3) Restricted Stock (3) R#EIMKRE
Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of the RiBFTE EFgHREHE2
directors shall select the Scheme Participants and HiZE N0 MR T A9 PR M AR
determine the number of restricted stock to be FHE-ARAKEAXTAL
granted. The Company will appoint a trustee to ZHRMEBEERD FTEREE
purchase the Shares from the secondary market EEXMETER ([ME5E]) -

and a grant price shall be payable by the Scheme
Participants (the “Trust”).

(4) Maximum Grant (4) BFLR

The maximum total number of Shares comprised RIFFT B TR S MR E AP
in the restricted stock to be granted under the EOROEE ZRE LR BT
Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the total issued 1S AE B & AR A RER A
share capital of the Company as at the date of AefEER (IZE—hF—
approval of the Scheme at the extraordinary A=+T—H)ERAFEETRA
general meeting of the Company (i.e. 31 BEEH10% - N _ZE—NFE—A
January 2019). As of 31 January 2019, the =t+t—B ARABEETRHE
Company's total number of issued Shares was 1 /1,538,237,50008 L i@k -

1,538,237,500 ordinary shares.

(5) Duration of the Scheme (5) rEIBEHE

The Scheme shall be effective for a term of HEBEREBATE BRMAE
10 years commenced from the adoption date (ZZ2—hE—HA=+—H)&
(i.e. 31 January 2019), unless early termination FEOBIEKEFSRBLER
is proposed by the board of directors and NEIRRBERBIRIE -BRIES
approved by the shareholders of the Company. BRE BAEASIKRLENET
Unless otherwise required, the restricted stock RIBR &I MR R E B WA
granted before the termination of the Scheme 1R IR AT S B 15 TR AR 5 o

shall remain effective and could be unlocked
according to the terms of the Scheme.
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35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME
(Cont’d)

(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive
scheme (Cont’d)

35. [REIMEIRZ MBS (&)

(a) REMEREBBAEIBE (&)

(6) Determination of the Grant Price (6) BFEKNET
The grant price of the restricted stock to be EEYRBERTHE2HEEN
granted to the Scheme Participants shall be REIERENRTER - KTE
determined by the Board. The base date for BHEBETEEAARTH BT
the determination of the grant price is the BERHEEEETHER TN
grant date. The pricing basis of the grant price E=REE: )VRORKX T BT
shall not be set lower than the highest of the RFFTERE M TE : (HRMH R E
following: (i) the closing price of the Shares as ERTAZAAERZSAERR
quoted on the Stock Exchange on the grant FFT 3R (& R (i) AR 10
date; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares REERTHBR0ERZ S H 60
as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five B2 2 B21208 5 B K FH
trading days immediately preceding the grant KHE RTEESEBEER
date; and (iii) the average closing price of the EHS50%HETE BTN EERKE
Shares in the 20 trading days, 60 trading days or HMEEZTREEFBE-
120 trading days immediately before the grant
date. The grant price shall be 50% of the pricing
basis and shall not be lower than the most recent
audited net asset per Share.

(7) Lock-up Period and Unlocking Period (7)) ZEHREHR

In principle, the lock-up period (the “Lock-up
Period”) shall be for a period of not less than
two years commencing from the grant date,
during which the restricted stock granted to the
Scheme Participants shall be locked up and shall
not be transferred, used as guarantee or for
repayment of debts.

In principle, the unlocking period shall be for a
period of not less than three years commencing
from the expiry of the lock-up period. Eligible
restricted stock will be gradually unlocked during
the unlocking period.

ZER(TEER)RERTH
R ETNDRME - REEH
WX TEHE 2 8mE R B
ERWHEE TFEE ARE
REMEEERS

REPSARER R BRERA
ERDPR=%F - A BERRH MR
ERNEEHB AR SREH -
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35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 35. R&BIMERE MBS (&)
(Cont’d)
(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive (a) REIEREHBFEME (£)

scheme (Cont’d)

(8) Initial Grant

(8) EXRTF

Under the Initial Grant, approximately an EERETE m84fsrE| & E
aggregate of 27,500,000 Restricted Stock will be HE T HFT4927,500,000 % BR
granted to 84 Scheme Participants. MR o

(9) Conditions for Unlocking the Initial Grant (9) BXTETHBEEMKM
Conditions for Unlocking the Initial Grant are as B TRBEGREDT
followings:
Unlocking Period Performance Assessment Target
% 85 HA EBEEZEE

First Unlocking Period o

55 — {8 % 55 1] .

the return on equity (“ROE") for 2019 shall be not lower than 9%
and not lower than the 75 percentile of benchmarking enterprises;
ZE-NFFEEWRE ([ROEL) TMEMRI% - B MEREZE R
759 R B IKF

based on the net profit attributable to the owner of the parent
company in 2017, the compound profit growth rate of the net
profit attributable to the owner of the parent company in 2019
shall be not lower than 20%, and not lower than 75 percentile of
benchmarking enterprises; and
NZZE—+FHBBRERFARAAANAENA/REE — T NFHE
REREER ANAERESEMNEREMER20% B MEREHR
PEISHMUEKRTFE R

based on the Company’s operating income in 2017, the compound
revenue growth rate of business income in 2019 shall be not lower
than 20% and not lower than the 75 percentile of benchmarking
enterprises.

NARARZZE—tFHRERAREE — T NFEBEAN
BEEWmERENER20% B MERERBEISHLEKTF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 35. REIMEREREEE (£)
(Cont’d)
(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive (a) RREIMEBREZEFEBE (&)

scheme (Cont’d)

(9) Conditions for Unlocking the Initial Grant (9) BEXBFHIEHEME (E)
(Cont’d)
Unlocking Period Performance Assessment Target
% 5 HA XEERBE

Second Unlocking Period e  the ROE for 2020 shall be not lower than 10% and not lower than

the 75 percentile of benchmarking enterprises;
55 — {7 S5 5P o T TFROETEMNI0% B NEREIZREISHEKTE:

e based on the net profit attributable to the owner of the parent
company in 2017, the compound profit growth rate of the net
profit attributable to the owner of the parent company in 2020
shall be not lower than 20%, and not lower than the 75 percentile
of benchmarking enterprises; and

s UZZE+FRENERAFEEANAENSEE —T_TFKE
REREER ANMERESREMNERETER20% B MEREHR
PEISHLENRT: R

e  based on the Company’s operating income in 2017, the compound
revenue growth rate of business income in 2020 shall be not
lower than 20% and not lower than the 75 percentile of the

benchmarking enterprises.
o HUARAN-ZT—LFHRLEBRAREH —ZT_TFEBKKAN
ARG RETENR20% B NMEREERETSHLEKT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 35. R&BIMERE MBS (&)

(Cont’d)

(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive

scheme (Cont’d)

(9) Conditions for Unlocking the Initial Grant

(Cont’d)

Unlocking Period
i S5 SR

(a) REMEREBBFEME (2)

(9) BXRBETFHBEHEEME (F)

Performance Assessment Target

XEZRER

Third Unlocking Period

5 = &g 1 1

the ROE for 2021 shall be not lower than 11% and not lower than
the 75 percentile of benchmarking enterprises;

ZEFE T —FROENMER11% B NMEREIZ D ETSH A EKF

based on the net profit attributable to the owner of the parent
company in 2017, the compound profit growth rate of the net
profit attributable to the owner of the parent company in 2021
shall be not lower than 20%, and not lower than the 75 percentile
of benchmarking enterprises; and
NZZE—+FHBBRERARAANAENAREE —T-—F5B
RERRHEE ANMIES BNIERETMER20% B TERER
PEISHMEKRTFE R

based on the Company’s operating income in 2017, the compound
revenue growth rate of business income in 2021 shall be not
lower than 20% and not lower than the 75 percentile of the
benchmarking enterprises.

NEARAR - ZE—LFHRERAREE — T - —FEBRAD
BEEWmERENENR20% B MERERBEISHLEKTF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 35. REIMEREREEE (£)
(Cont’d)
(a) Summary of the restricted stock incentive (a) RREIMEBREZEFEBE (&)

scheme (Cont’d)

(10) The Unlocking Period of Initial Grant (10) B X T HyAE 25 B
The details of the Unlocking Period of Initial BRARTHREBEHFBEOT

Grant are as followings:

Proportion
Unlocking of unlocking
arrangement Time of unlocking shares
% S5 7 Bk 7 85 B RS i S5 £ 51
First Unlocking Period From the first trading day after 24 months from 33%

the Grant Date to the last trading day within 36
months from the Grant Date

5 — (& 4% 35 5 BRTHE24EARNEERIZHEER T H36/EA 33%
W &% — AR SHEEHR IE

Second Unlocking Period From the first trading day after 36 months from 33%
the Grant Date to the last trading day within 48
months from the Grant Date

& — {E 87 5 HR B TRE3EARNHEERSBREER T HI8EA 33%
N &% —ARSHEEHR IE

Third Unlocking Period From the first trading day after 48 months from 34%
the Grant Date to the last trading day within 60
months from the Grant Date

28 = {2 fi% 85 B BRTHEBEARNEARS BAREX T H60EA 34%
W &% — AR SHEEHR IE

Details of the Scheme were disclosed in the EFBERARRIBHAST
Company’s announcement dated 13 December —\F+ZA+=BzAMRA
2018 as well as the circular dated 16 January MEZZE-—NF—H+ R AZA

2019. BK 157 75 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME
(Cont’d)

(b) Initial Grant of the Restricted Stock under the
Scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 14
February 2019, on 14 February 2019, the Board of
the Directors approved the granting of 27,500,000
restricted stock (the “Restricted Stock”) under the
Scheme to 81 selected Scheme Participants, details of

which are as follows:

An aggregate of 27,500,000 Restricted Stock,
representing approximately 1.788% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 14 February
2019 was granted to 81 Scheme Participants,
including executive director(s), members of the
senior management and management personnel
who contribute directly to the overall business
performance and sustainable development of the
Group.

Grant Date: 14 February 2019.

Grant Price: HK$0.65 per share.

The Grant Price shall be payable by the Scheme
Participants at their own cost.

All the Restricted Stock granted will be subject
to the Lock-up Period of not less than two years
commencing from the Grant Date, during which
the Restricted Stock granted to the Scheme
Participants shall be locked-up and shall not be
transferred, used as guarantee or for repayment
of debts.

Please refer to the Announcement and the Circular

for details of other specified conditions and timing for

unlocking under the Scheme.

E—

35. PRI E

SR B ET & ()

(b) REFEHERIARTRAERE

BERARARBHAEA-ZT—NF_A
TRz A R_ZE—HhLF_A
TR E=eitEREFEIRS1E
B FRT B2 8 E % F27,500,0000% R
R ZE ([RAERE])  FBE®W
T

i HES /\27 500,0000% & | 14% J%
Z(ER=ZT—hLF-_A+THEA
AN/ Ta?fﬁﬂleizi’m 788% )
WIRT8IZFTEILHE  BIEH
TEE =SAEEABRETE

EREEBRARBERREER
EHEBZEEAE -

i. ®B¥PH:ZZ
EO

—NE-A+MH

ii. WTPER: SRRM%0.658 T

v, BTIEMARHESAELEY
fit o

v. FIAERTHRHIERRESEE

SEETREFTORMEZE
S8 EMHHE ETiEza
EZRFEREBEETE  TE
B ARERKEEES-

B BART 8ITR T EL At 5 5E IR 1F B R SRS
B2 15 L&A MmRZE K
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_-A=+—HIFFZE

35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME
(Cont’d)

(c) Further Grant of Restricted Stock under the
Scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 27
March 2019, the Board of the Directors approved
the granting of 2,490,000 restricted stock under the
Scheme to Xiong Zheng Feng, an executive director

and Chai Zhi Qiang, the chief executive officer of the

Company, details of which are as follows:

An aggregate of 2,490,000 Restricted Stock,
representing approximately 0.162% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 27 March
2019 was granted to Xiong Zheng Feng and
Chai Zhi Qiang, including executive director,
members of the senior management personnel
who contribute directly to the overall business
performance and sustainable development of the
Group.

Grant Date: 27 March 2019.

Grant Price: HK$0.77 per share.

The Grant Price shall be payable by the Scheme
Participants at their own cost.

All the Restricted Stock granted will be subject
to the Lock-up Period of not less than two years
commencing from the Grant Date, during which
the Restricted Stock granted to the Scheme
Participants shall be locked-up and shall not be
transferred, used as guarantee or for repayment
of debts.

Please refer to the Announcement and the Circular

for details of other specified conditions and timing for

unlocking under the Scheme.

35. BRI R BT S (&)
(0 BEHBE-—SRTRELRE

BEAXNTAEBHAEA-_ZT—NLEFE=A
—ttBAzah EEeHERE
ZIMMITE FRRIEE R ARFITRE
LB 58 % F2,490,0000% R I £ A%
E-FHEBEHOT:

i, A2£2,490,0000% R HI R ZE (48
ER_ZE—AFE=ZA-FTLHNK
NEIEBEITRALI0.162% ) X
FRRIFIEREER BIEWNITE
E SREBABREAEEE
BEBRARBEZREEED
BRIZEBEAB-

e

%

N

& a3

i. ®R¥YH ZE—hF=ZA=-++t
EO

ii. WTPERS: SRRHKH00.778 T

v EFERARHESEEARS
fit o

v. FEERTHORSIERRGKE
STEETREFTORMEZE
S8 EUHHE ETiEza
EZRFEREBWETE  TE
BE ARERNEEES-

B BT 81T T E AL E R K % 85
M5 FLHRAMEZENL-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 35. RFIMERERBEE ()

(Cont’d)

(d) Outstanding of restricted stock under the scheme (d) REFTEINRITERGERE
During the year, three Scheme Participants resigned RAEEA ZHtE2HEERAE
from the Group and accordingly, 2,750,000 restricted B BT - [E1th2,750,0004% #8 FE BR il 1E
stock was forfeited thereon. [i% 22 4 8 WL o
Set out below are details of the movements of the TXHIWNBEZ_ZFT—LF+=A
outstanding restricted stock granted under the =+ —BIEFEREBFEE THRT
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2019: BRI EZEB RS :

Outstanding
Granted Expect to Forfeited as at 31

during  vest during during  December
the year the year the year 2019
R®
ZB-NE
+=A
B =+-H
FART RERNEE FREK RTE
February 14, 2019 “Z-NF-At+WAE 27,500,000 - 2,750,000 24,750,000
March 27, 2019 ZE-NFZAZttH 2,490,000 - - 2,490,000
Total @t 29,990,000 - 2,750,000 27,240,000
Weighted average fair value BRMETHATE
per share (HK$) (&) 0.7179 - 0.7198 0.7178
In respect of the Restricted Stock granted during the RAFEAERTHRGMERENS
year, the weighted average fair value per share at the RETAHROEGRMETFHRTESR
date of grant was HK$0.7179. 0.71798 7T °
The estimated fair values of the Restricted Stock BTHRSIMERE 2B ATEOR

granted are approximately HK$19,552,000. 19,552,000/ 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

35. RESTRICTED STOCK INCENTIVE SCHEME 35. [R&IMERZ MBS (&)

(Cont’d)

(d) REFEHRTERFERE (£)

(d) Outstanding of restricted stock under the scheme

(Cont’d)

The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

RFERBAAAR -FRHEBEER
B BEABARIENAT:

As at As at

14 February 27 March

2019 2019

R=ZB-IF R=ZB-1F

—A+mWmA =A=++tH

Life of the restricted stock PR 1) 1 i 3= 4F 2R 2.00 2.00
Risk Free Rate 42 [ i ) < 1.56% 1.56%
Expected volatility T8 BB 1R 57.63% 57.63%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B & 0.00% 0.00%
Spot Price REE 1.289 1.249

Expected volatility was determinated by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 2 years. The expected life used in model
has been adjusted, based on management is best
estimate.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company acquired 4,480,000 (2018:nil) ordinary
shares of the Company from the open market by
the independent trustee of the Company with a
total consideration of approximately HK$5,105,000
(2018:nil) in respect of the restricted stock incentive
scheme of the Company. The carrying amount of the
shares held as at the year-end was presented as a
deduction against equity as “Restrict stock incentive
scheme reserve”.

During the year, the Group do not fulfill the unlocking
condition under restricted stock incentive scheme.
Therefore, no Restricted Stock was expected to vest
by the Scheme Participants and all the Restricted
Stock are remain at the Trust.

BEHIRBERARRRRERBEMR
FRZELRIEEE - B P E A
ZERAEREFHERBEEE &
EfFTEL A

HEZZT—NF+ZA=+—HLF
NN B R e b 5 B
RRRZ2BIZTEARREAMEHE
4,480,000 A A Al LAl (ZF—N
F:F)  #BRELAS5,105000% T
(ZBE-—N\F ) REAFERFAE
B AR 19 AR T & 58 15 HORU R 2 B9 [ PR 5l
MRE BB EIFEE]

RAFER A5 B I 582K R S 1
B 280 BD & &1 7R N 2 BR S R AT o
it B 81 2 B E TR HI R B R H1%E
BERMARGERRDRIETR
5o

RS —
S <R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. @SR B

(i) Saved as disclosed in the respective notes, the Group (i) ﬁ? REBWZEEZEEN REFE
entered into the following transactions with related CAREETREEBAR T TR
parties during the year: % :

2019 2018
—E-nEF — N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx T T
Shareholder and its subsidiaries A% 5 & E ] B A 7
— Sales (note (iv) —HE (K dv) 101,343 141,220
— Purchases of raw materials —BERME (52) -
— Technology and — X ERENER
technical fee paid (20,745) -
Associate i RN
— Sales —HE 11,812 2,008
— Purchases of raw materials —BERME (27,074) (2,283)
— Rental income received for office —# A= & W A (339) (378)
— Disposal of property, plantand — &Y% - BE M &G
equipment 150 1,750
— Subcontracting expenses paid  — SO BEE A - 1,879
— Purchases of property, —WEWE WEIZE
plant and equipment - (1,129)
— Finance cost paid — X TR E KA (182) -
Fellow subsidiaries EESEANS
— Rentals paid for office —XNHAERES - 120

(ii) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment
currently predominated by entities directly or
indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC government
("state-controlled entities”). In addition, the Group

is significant influenced indirectly by CNIC, a state—

owned enterprise established in the PRC.

(i) EPHAAEMEREFNCEELEZRS
/R

AEEREMEZKEREBAATS
BRFEZAERER TR ZEE
(TERZEFEE]) TB I KK
EREXNPERIZEEREILT
TEERTE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F—NF+-H=+—HIFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC (Cont’d)

The Group also conducts business with other
state-controlled entities. The directors of the
Company consider those state-controlled entities to
be third parties so far as the Group's businesses with
them are concerned.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
certain banks which are stated-controlled entities in
its ordinary course of business.

The directors are of the opinion that the transactions
with other state-controlled entities are not significant
to the Group's operations.

Compensation of key management personnel

The emoluments of key management during the
year 31 December 2019 and 2018 represented
emoluments paid to directors of the Company as
disclosed in note 10(i).

The emoluments of key management personnel are
determined by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

Sales of goods to shareholder

Sales of goods to Goertek (Hong Kong) Co.,
Limited amounted to HK$94,793,000 (2018:
HK$141,220,000) and Suzhou Anjin Technology
Company Limited amounted to approximately
HK$6,550,000 (2018: Nil).

36. EAE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

X5 (%)

EPEEMEAREFNECREEZRS
S RER(E)

ANEEINEEMBEIRIEHDEEITE
B RRAEERE MASEEKE
CEBME ZEERIZHCELRS
=F-

AN AEEEREEREXHBRES
BB RKEEIREZETRITAILE
BRS BREFR EBELREM—RIER

IEE-

EERRBHEMEREFNECRZRS
BASEZEELFER-

FTEEEBEASC2HHE
BE-_Z—NErE_Z—N\F+_A
=+ BUHEFE FTZEEEBEABZH
SHEMFI0)THEEL N ARRSE
B2 -

TEEEABZHEeAFTFHEEER
BEAXRBLETSEEERE -

ARREELER

MEENBEERARAGHEEER
") & 58 594,793,000 T (ZZE— N\
1 141,220,000 7T ) M A &M &
BREROBRAFBEEERNEHE
BI147 46,550,000/ 70 (—ZF— N\4F:
)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. KRR BRI KRR GF#HE
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ESR 33 39
Right-of-use assets HREEE 410 -
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z2®”E 466,740 931,516
Investment in an associate R—HEBE AR ZEE 3,616 3,616
470,799 935,171
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 4,575 7,394
Trade and other receivables g 5 & H b e W R IE 68,187 70,969
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU B B A RIZRIE (M ita)
(note a) 438,178 6,872
Tax recoverable Ay Y Bl F 18 - 102
Pledged bank deposits BIEMIRITFER 2,364 2,358
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIR S 21,993 11,765
535,297 99,460
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables B NEMENFIE 25,087 31,683
Amount due to an associate (note a)  FE{S — B & A A A
(Bata) 628 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 210 -
25,925 31,683
Net current assets FMEEE 509,372 67,777
Total assets less current liabilities REERABDEE 980,171 1,002,948

—



Annual Report 2019 —Z—hEFER
211

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e maRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. AR BB R RN GEE (2
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT T T
Capital and reserves MR % Rt 4
Share capital [N 921,553 921,553
Reserves (note b) & (Hratb) 58,422 81,395
Equity attributable to owners of RACIER ANEMRER
the Company 979,975 1,002,948
Non-current liabilities FEREBAEE
Lease Liabilities HEBRE 196 -
196 -
Total equity R 980,171 1,002,948
The statement of financial position of the Company KAk REEEEEN T =
was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of TEZAZ+TtHAETEERE  WHh
Directors on 27 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf TIESEREEE:
by:
XIONG ZHENG FENG HUNG CHI YUEN ANDREW
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BEIE 12 HEER

EF EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

37. R AR HARR KRR (&)

(a) BUHEARREBL—EBHEQ
AIRMIA

(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries/Amount due to
an associate

R-E-AFE+-A=+—8 EK
Bt 8 A B RRIE K FE A — B R ALK
HRAEER SERNERKEE (=
Z-N\F:BERMNERRNER R
amounts due from subsidiaries of approximately BEEAR 2ERBEAR—FAEED
HK$464,776,000 was unsecured, interest free and J& U B 88 2 B 3R I £)464,776,00078
not repayable within one year.). 7T e

At as 31 December 2019, the amounts due from
subsidiaries and amount due to an associate was
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand
(2018: Included in interests in subsidiaries, the

(b) XRTRBEZED

(b) Movement in the Company’s reserves

Restricted
stock
incentive
scheme Retained
reserve profits Total
PR i 1 B 32
BB 8RB = 8% A et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H - 83,195 83,195
Profit for the year and total AN E3E | R AN E
comprehensive income for T HEH YR AR
the year - 13,582 13,582
Dividend paid ERRE - (15,382) (15,382)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE—NF
1 January 2019 +TZA=FT—HK
—E-NAF—H—H - 81,395 81,395
Loss for the year and total RNEEEBRAFE
comprehensive expense FHRMZ B
for the year - (2,486) (2,486)
Dividend paid ERE - (15,382) (15,382)
Purchase of shares under the 1B & [R %I M4 I% Z;
restricted stock incentive Bhat S E R D
scheme (note 35) (B 5E35) (5,105) - (5,105)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZFB—NF
+=—A=+—H (5,105) 63,527 58,422
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ=—F—NF+=HA=1+—HIFE

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 38. AN AMB AR ZFHE
COMPANY
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries as at 31 December RZBE-NEFERZZE-N\F+A=*+—
2019 and 2018 are as follows: AZAEEMRBARZFBUOT:
Place of Attributable
establishment and equity interest
principal place  Form of held by the
Name of subsidiaries of operation business structure  Paid-up capital Company Principal activities
KItER HALTEE
HWEAR AR TEQENS PEARER BEER EERAER  TEEH
2019 2018
ZE-nf ZTN\E
AKM Electronics Industrial The PRC Wholly owned-foreign US$21,700,000 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of
(Panyu) Ltd. enterprise FPC and flexible packaging
substrates
REFN (BB)EFEXARRA TH NEBELYE 21,700,000% T 100% 100% RERFEZUERRREN
HEER
AKM Electronic Technology The PRC Wholly owned-foreign US$37,642,460 100% 100% Manufacture and sale of FPC,
(Suzhou) Company Limited enterprise manufacture of flexible
packaging substrates
REMNEFRR (BN ERAR HE NEBELYE 37,642 460% T 100% 100% RERHEZHTRR R
FUHEER
Anrick Electronics India Private  India Wholly owned-foreign US$1,447,948 100% - Manufacture and sale of FPC
Limited enterprise
Anrick Electronics India Private  EIfZ NEBELE 1,447,948% 7T 100% - RERHEFEERR
Limited
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities B B8 2 B A4 M 8 4R 2 K PR 1 4F 8 R 19 f 8%

during both years and at the end of both years. THEMEEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_-ZF—NF+=-H=1+—HIFE

39. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 39. REHIESE\E

(a) Formation of a joint venture company (a) RAIEERAT

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 27
December 2019, AKM Electronics Panyu, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
joint venture agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with
EBILE (EM) AR AR ((transliteration as Meizhi
Investment (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.), EFT} EEIR EEH
AR A Al (transliteration as Xiamen Semiconductor
Investment Group Co., Ltd.) and ZEAIZ (EF) %
BEEABLE (BRAER®) (transliteration as Anmei
Ventures (Xiamen) Equity Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) for the formation of a joint
venture company (the “JV Company”). Pursuant to
the JV Agreement, the JV Company shall be, after
its formation, owned as to 6% by AKM Electronics
Panyu, 53% by Meizhi Investment (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.,
40% by Xiamen Semiconductor Investment Group
Co., Ltd. and 1% by Anmei Ventures (Xiamen) Equity
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership). The
registered capital of the JV Company is expected
to be RMB4.50 billion. AKM Electronics Panyu will
contribute a total amount of RMB270 million in the
form of cash. The relevant entities will contribute a
total amount of RMB4.23 billion in the form of cash.
The JV Company will be incorporated in the PRC
and the business scope of the JV Company primarily
includes production of optoelectronic products and
other electronic devices, printed circuit boards,
electronic components, integrated circuits, electronic
vacuum devices, semiconductor discrete devices and
other electronic equipment. As at 31 December 2019,
the capital commitment of the amount is RMB270
million.

Details of which are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 27 December 2019.
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39. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (Cont’d)

(b) Acquisition of certain companies

(c)

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 23
January 2020, the Purchaser, ZHEME®E ¥ (B
F9)BBR & LA A (transliteration as AKMMeadville
“"AKMMeadville
Electronics”) a company in which the Company

Electronics (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.,

indirectly holds around 6.4% equity interest, TTM
Technologies China Limited (the “Seller”, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
and the Seller's ultimate controlling shareholder.
TTM Technologies Inc., entered into the equity
interests purchase agreement, pursuant to which
AKMMeadville Electronics conditionally agreed to
acquire, and the Seller conditionally agreed to sell
all of the equity interests of the certain companies,
namely EMZE4E FHER QA (transliteration as
Guangzhou Meadville Electronics Co., Ltd.), F/8%#
BT ARAT (transliteration as Shanghai Meadville
Science & Technology Co., Ltd.), F/E4&REER
/N A] (transliteration as Shanghai Meadville Science
& Technology Co., Ltd.) and E/EEIEBMETERA
Al (transliteration as Shanghai Kaiser Electronics Co.,
Ltd.), for a consideration of US$550,000,000 (subject
to adjustment).

Details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 January 2020.

Novel Coronavirus

The wide spread of the novel Coronavirus since the
beginning of 2020 is a fluid and challenging situation
facing all the industries of the society. The Group has
already assessed the overall impact of the situation
on the operation of the Group and taken all possible
effective measures to limit and keep the impact in
control. The Group will keep continuous attention on
the change of situation and make timely response and
adjustments in the future.
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Financial Summary
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RESULTS
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t+-BLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

ZE-hE —T-N\F —T—+& TR —T-IF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FEL TER TERL FiER

Revenue A 1,463,630 1,223,803 1,118,838 821,662 630,631
Cost of sales HEMK (1,254,943) (1,071,832)  (898,627)  (646,373)  (551,392)
Gross profit EF 208,687 151,971 220,211 175,289 79,239
Other income Hp A 41,171 56,253 17,874 15,037 36,321
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBLRZEE - - (3,224) - -
Distribution costs DEKA (20,952) (19,433) (16,760) (15,897) (16,360)
Administrative expenses TH XM (40,017) (41,187) (36,551) (31,852) (25,234)
Research and development expenses 2 & F (57,352) (63,774) (79,882) (92,122) (70,324)
Share of profit of an associate FEE— R & AR 2 & A 1,202 163 40 - -
Finance costs BEXAE (2,091) (215) (2,850) (5,198) (3,598)
Profit before taxation R 750 31 48 A 130,648 83,778 98,858 45,257 44
Taxation HE (12,937) (14,444) (19,850) (17,567) (366)
Profit (loss) for the year RERERMN (BE) 117,711 69,334 79,008 27,690 (322)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERER

At 31 December

R+=A=+-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-hE ZE-N\F T+t ZE—RF —T-hfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT THET THET THET

Total assets BEE 1,849,066 1,671,449 1,268,416 981,651 831,541
Total liabilities meE (581,916)  (483,432)  (529,973)  (497,594)  (336,353)
1,267,150 1,188,017 738,443 484,057 495,188

Equity attributable to AREHEAEGRER
owners of the Company 1,267,150 1,188,017 738,443 483,426 491,969
Non-controlling interests FERER - - - 631 3,219
Total equity b 1,267,150 1,188,017 738,443 484,057 495,188
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